
            

 

Special Planning Sub Committee 

 
MONDAY, 3RD FEBRUARY, 2014 at 19:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD 
GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Basu, Beacham, Demirci (Chair), Mallett (Vice-Chair), 

McNamara, Reid, Reith, Rice, Solomon and Strang 
 

This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s 
internet site.  At the start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or part of 
the meeting is to be filmed.  The Council may use the images and sound 
recording for internal training purposes. 
 
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed.  However, by entering the 
meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being 
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for web-
casting and/or training purposes. 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Committee Clerk at 
the meeting. 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
1. APOLOGIES    
 
2. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 It being a special meeting of the Committee, under Part Four, Section B, 

Paragraph 17, of the Council’s Constitution, no other business shall be considered at 
the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

2 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a matter 

who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is considered: 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest becomes 
apparent, and 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must withdraw 
from the meeting room. 
 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not 
registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a pending 
notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days of the 
disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests are 
defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of Conduct 
 

4. PLANNING APPLICATIONS    
 
 In accordance with the Sub Committee’s protocol for hearing representations; when 

the recommendation is to grant planning permission, two objectors may be given up 
to 6 minutes (divided between them) to make representations. Where the 
recommendation is to refuse planning permission, the applicant and supporters will 
be allowed to address the Committee. For items considered previously by the 
Committee and deferred, where the recommendation is to grant permission, one 
objector may be given up to 3 minutes to make representations.  
 

5. HORNSEY REUSE AND RECYCLING CENTRE, HIGH STREET, LONDON, N8 7QB  
(PAGES 1 - 136)  
 

 Demolition of existing structures and buildings and redevelopment of the site 
to provide a mixed-use development comprising approximately 3,250sqm (GIA) 
foodstore (A1 use) and 114 space surface level car parking for the foodstore; 438 
residential units including affordable housing and ancillary residential gym, 
approximately 356sqm (GIA) unit on Hornsey High Street (flexible A1, A2 (including a 
temporary marketing suite), or D1 use); two live/work units fronting onto Cross Lane; 
together with private amenity space and new public realm, including publicly 
accessible routes through the site; an energy centre; 178 car parking spaces for the 
residential use (within a basement and undercroft); cycle parking; refuse storage; 
recycling centre in the foodstore car park; access; and other infrastructure work. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: grant permission subject to referral to the Mayor of London 

and subject to conditions and s106/s278 Legal Agreement.  

 

 
 



 

3 

6. DATE OF NEXT MEETING    
 
 The next scheduled Planning Committee will be on 10 February.   

 
 
Bernie Ryan 
Assistant Director – Corporate Governance and 
Monitoring Officer 
Level 5 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Maria Fletcher 
Principal Committee Coordinator 
Level 5 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 
Tel: 0208 4891512 
Email: maria.fletcher@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Friday, 24 January 2014 

 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Sub-Committee 3rd February 2014     Item No. 
 
REPORT FOR CONSIDERATION AT PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Reference No: HGY/2013/2019 Ward: Hornsey 
 

Address: Hornsey Reuse and Recycling Centre, High Street, Hornsey, London N8 7QB 
 
Proposal: Demolition of existing structures and buildings and redevelopment of the site 

to provide a mixed-use development comprising approximately 3,250sqm (GIA) foodstore 

(A1 use) and 114 space surface level car parking for the foodstore; 438 residential units 

including affordable housing and ancillary residential gym, approximately 356sqm (GIA) 

unit on Hornsey High Street (flexible A1, A2 (including a temporary marketing suite), or D1 

use); two live/work units fronting onto Cross Lane; together with private amenity space 

and new public realm, including publicly accessible routes through the site; an energy 

centre; 178 car parking spaces for the residential use (within a basement and undercroft); 

cycle parking; refuse storage; recycling centre in the foodstore car park; access; and 

other infrastructure work. 

 
Existing Use: Household waste reuse and recycling facility  
 
Proposed Use: Residential (C3), foodstore (A1), flexible commercial and temporary 
marketing suite (A1/A2/Sui Generis), live/work (Sui Generis) 
 
Applicant: St James Group Ltd And Sainsbury's Supermarkets Ltd 
 
Ownership: Part Council and part private owned land 
 

 

DOCUMENTS 

Title 

Design and Access Statement September 2013 

Planning Statement September 2013 

Environmental Statement – Volumes I, II and III September 2013 and addendum 

December 2013 

Retail Statement September 2013 

Transport Assessment September 2013 

Energy Strategy September 2013 

Sustainability Statement September 2013 

Statement of Community Involvement September 2013 

Landscape Strategy September 2013 

Tree Survey September 2013 

Heritage Statement September 2013 

Demolition Management Plan September 2013 

Agenda Item 5Page 1



Site Waste Management Plan September 2013 

 

 

PLANS 

Plan Number  Rev. Plan Title  

PL_001 P1 Location Plan 

PL_002 P1 Existing Plan 

PL_003 P1 Demolition Plan 

PL_099 P3 Basement Plan 

PL_100 P3 Ground Floor Plan 

PL_101 P4 First Floor Plan 

PL_102 P4 Second Floor Plan 

PL_103 P4 Third Floor Plan 

PL_104 P4 Fourth Floor Plan 

PL_105 P3 Fifth Floor Plan 

PL_106 P3 Sixth Floor Plan 

PL_107 P3 Seventh Floor Plan 

PL_108 P3 Roof Plan 

PL_110 P3 Ground Floor Plan Store 

PL_111 P3 First Floor Plan Blocks A-G 

PL_112 P4 Second Floor Plan Blocks A-G 

PL_113 P4 Third Floor Plan Blocks A-G 

PL_114 P4 Fourth Floor Plan Blocks A-G 

PL_115 P3 Fifth Floor Plan Blocks A-G 

PL_116 P3 Sixth Floor Plan Blocks A-G 

PL_117 P3 Seventh Floor Plan Blocks A-G 

PL_118 P3 Roof Plan Blocks A-G 

PL_120 P2 Ground Floor Plan Blocks H-N 

PL_121 P1 First Floor Plan Blocks H-N 

PL_122 P3 Second Floor Plan Blocks H-N 

PL_123 P3 Third Floor Plan Blocks H-N 

PL_124 P3 Fourth Floor Plan Blocks H-N 

PL_125 P1 Fifth Floor Plan Blocks H-N 

PL_126 P1 Sixth Floor Plan Blocks H-N 

PL_127 P1 Roof Plan Blocks H-N 

PL_129 P2 Basement Plan Store 

PL_200 P1 Existing Elevations Z and Y 

PL_201 P1 Existing Elevation X 

PL_202 P1 Existing Elevation W 

PL_203 P1 Existing Elevation V 

PL_204 P1 Existing Elevation U 

PL_301 P3 Elevation A-A and Elevation B-B 

Page 2



PL_302 P3 Elevation C-C 

PL_303 P3 Elevation D-D 

PL_304 P3 Elevation E-E 

PL_305 P3 Elevation F-F and Elevation G-G 

PL_306 P4 Elevation H-H and Elevation I-I 

PL_307 P3 Elevation J-J 

PL_308 P4 Elevation K-K 

PL_309 P3 Elevation L-L and Elevation M-M 

PL_310 P3 Elevation N-N 

PL_311 P3 Elevation O-O 

PL_350 P3 Hornsey Gardens Bay Study 1 

PL_351 P2 Hornsey Gardens Bay Study 2 

PL_352 P2 Moselle Quarter Bay Study 1 

PL_353 P2 Moselle Quarter Bay Study 2 

PL_354 P2 Moselle Quarter Bay Study 3 

PL_355 P2 Cross Lane Bay Study 

PL_356 P4 High Street Bay Study 

   

Case Officer Contact:  

Jeffery Holt 

P: 0208 489 5131 

E: Jeffrey.Holt@haringey.gov.uk 

PLANNING DESIGNATIONS: 

 
Local Plan 2013 SP1 Haringey Heartlands Growth Area 
Saved Unitary Development Plan 2006 Policy Site Specific Proposal 4 (SSP4)  
Conservation Area (part) 
Local Shopping Centre (part) 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

GRANT PERMISSION subject to referral to the Mayor of London and subject to 

conditions and s106/s278 Legal Agreement 

  

Page 3



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

1.0  SITE PLAN 

2.0  BACKGROUND 

3.0  REASONS FOR DEFERRAL 

4.0  OFFICER RESPONSE TO REASONS DEFERRAL 

5.0 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION 

6.0 RECOMMENDATION 

7.0 APPENDICES:  
 
Appendix 1: Consultation Responses 
Appendix 2: Previous officers’ report to Planning Sub-committee 20 January 2013 (with 
amendments) 

   

 

 

  

Page 4



1.0 SITE PLAN 
 

 
 

2.0 BACKGROUND 
 

Page 5



2.1 Members will recall deferring the determination of this planning application 
at the planning sub-committee on the 20th of January 2014.  
 
Reasons for deferral 
 

2.2 Members deferred the application in order for officers and the applicant to 
further consider/review the following: 

 

The proposed dwelling mix, in particular the low proportion of family 
size units relative to the one- and two-bedroom units 

The height, bulk and massing of the scheme  

Overlooking to properties on Miles Road, Moselle Close and Cross 
Lane 

The provision of child playspace 

The size of the foodstore and its retail impact 

Views of Alexandra Palace 
 
 

2.3 Officers have engaged with the applicants in respect of the matters above. 
The applicants have advised that for the reasons covered in the report, they 
do not wish to amend the application at this time. They have asked that the 
planning application be submitted for determination on the basis of the 
details prepared through the pre-application process and submitted to the 
Council 30th September 2013 and 6th December 2013. The report presented 
to the planning committee at their meeting on 20th January 2014 has been 
updated to reflect the contents of the previous addendum prepared prior to 
the meeting, and where clarification and correction was required. The 
updated report is appended below (appendix 2). The following sections 
have been prepared to address the specific points raised by the 
committee’s reported reasons for deferral of the application.   
 

3.0 OFFICER RESPONSE TO THE REASONS FOR DEFERRAL 
 
Dwelling mix 
 

3.1 The main report sets out the policy basis against which the housing mix 
should be considered. In this case, the mix and tenure of the scheme has a 
clear emphasis towards one and two bedroom units. This mix does not 
reflect the housing mix that is set out in the Council’s policies.  
 

3.2 To consider whether this mix is acceptable, having regard to its departure 
from established policy, officers have reviewed local demand for affordable 
housing as described by the housing register with officers from the housing 
team. This indicates that within the Borough as a whole there are 11,162 
applicants for housing, of whom 2,789 (25%) require homes of 3 beds or 
more. There are currently 893 applicants for housing who have a Hornsey 
post code of whom 171 (19%) require 3 beds or more. Within all 
assessment Bands, some 722 applicants from Hornsey require 1 or 2 
bedroom homes. For those Hornsey applicants deemed to be in priority 

Page 6



need  (categories A and B), there are 52 seeking 1 bedroom 
accommodation, 132 seeking 2 bed accommodation and 96 seeking 
accommodation with 3 bedrooms or above.  
 
The breakdown of the overall mix and affordable homes is set out at Paras 
8.7.2 and 8.8.4 of the main report respectively (Appendix 2). The overall mix 
of new housing is skewed towards smaller units (reflecting the site’s 
location, accessibility and density) with the vast majority (96%) of the 438 
units (423) being 2 bed or smaller. The affordable housing component 
comprises affordable rent and intermediate housing. Only the proposed 
affordable rented housing provides 3 bed (7 units) and 4 bed (8 units) 
accommodation. This represents some 20 % of the intermediate housing 
(by unit number) and 11% of the affordable housing (by unit number) 
overall.  
 

3.3 Policy SP2 of the Local Plan Strategic polices indicates that housing mix 
should comply with the Councils adopted SPD (2008). The SPD indicates 
that the recommended dwelling mix for private market housing is split as 
follows:  

 

Size of Dwelling Percentage Mix 

1 37 

2 30 

3 22 

4+ 11 

   
For affordable housing, the recommended mix is as follows.  

 

Size of Dwelling Percentage Mix 

1 19 

2 26 

3 27 

4+ 28 

 
3.4 The proposals do not follow the recommended housing mix. London Plan 

policy 3.9 and Strategic policy SP2 both promote mixed and balanced 
communities through the tenure and unit mix across communities. Policies 
3.9 and 3.12 of the London Plan promotes the creation of mixed and 
balanced communities (by tenure and household income) whilst seeking to 
maximise affordable housing delivery but recognises that this objective will 
need to have regard to local requirements, the need to encourage rather 
than restrain development and local site circumstances, together with the 
need to promote balanced and mixed communities and a priority for family 
housing.  The policy also recognises that all negotiations need to take 
account of individual site circumstances.  
 

3.5 Available evidence in this case suggests that whilst not meeting the 
recommended unit mix and tenure targets of the SPD, the proposed 
development will address an identified need for affordable and private 

Page 7



market housing in the locality (depending upon final rent and sales values). 
The extent to which the proposals will engage with under occupation of 
larger affordable family homes elsewhere in the borough is likely to be very 
limited given the likely rent levels. 
 

3.6 In addition the Council is currently undertaking an infill housing programme 
and as part of this 28 three and four bedroom units are proposed to be built 
for affordable rent on infill sites in the west of the borough. 
 

3.7 Having regard therefore to the specific circumstances in this case, and 
against the policy background that officers have set out, officers are 
satisfied that the mix of unit types will make a positive contribution to 
housing delivery in the borough such that departure from the 
recommended unit mix set out in the 2008 SPD, could be justified.  

        
Height, bulk and massing 

 
3.8 The report sets out the rationale for the scheme, including consideration of 

the impacts associated with the height and scale and massing of the 
development. Representations to the previous committee have pointed out 
that the density of the development exceeds the density ranges set out in 
policy 3.4 of the London Plan (200-450Hr/ha). The commentary to the 
London Plan policy makes clear that the density ranges should not be 
applied mechanistically and consideration of local context, design and 
transport capacity being particularly important. The Haringey Heartlands 
Development Framework (informing the Haringey Heartlands Area for 
Intensification) suggests that densities up to 700hr/ha may be appropriate 
to development in the designated area for intensification. This is consistent 
with London Plan policy 2.13 which recognises that intensification areas 
have the capacity to support redevelopment at higher densities. The 
recently published Further Modification to the London Plan (currently 
subject to consultation) reaffirms the Mayor's expectations that 
intensification areas make a particularly significant contribution towards 
meeting housing need.  
 

3.9 It is for the committee to consider whether the height, bulk and massing of 
the development are acceptable, having reviewed the application and site 
circumstances. Whilst acknowledging the density of development exceeds 
the range set out in London Plan policy, subject to the committee’s 
conclusions on the impact of the scheme on the character, appearance and 
amenities of surrounding properties, the approval of the application is not 
unreasonable having regard to the wider policy context within the London 
Plan, Local Plan and Haringey Heartlands SPD.  
 
Overlooking 
 

3.10 Members specifically referred to the potential of overlooking of existing 
neighbouring properties on Miles Road, Moselle Close and Cross Lane. 
These are considered in turn. 

Page 8



 
Miles Road 
 

3.11 The Quadrangle building faces onto Miles Road and there is a distance of 
at least 12.4m between this proposed building and the gable wall of the 
nearest residential property. However, these properties are at right angles 
to the Quadrangle building and their gable elevations have no windows. 
Clearly the new building will be an appreciable structure when viewed 
obliquely from the properties in Miles Road and from the gardens but the 
relative positioning and separation means that officers consider that 
overlooking will not be significantly harmful to residential amenity within 
these existing, or new homes. 
 
Moselle Close 
 

3.12 The houses on the southern side of Moselle Close are between 6.5m and 
8.5m away from the proposed three-storey element of Moselle House. 
These existing houses are aligned at a right angle to the development and 
the gable walls have no windows. Given the relationship between the two 
buildings, oblique overlooking would be possible but this is not considered 
to be dramatically different to the relationship between the existing 
properties on Moselle Close. The existing houses on the northern side of 
Moselle Close will directly face windows on the proposed Moselle House 
however these windows on both sides are street facing windows where 
(notwithstanding the 20m separation guideline in the Councils SPD) such 
relationships are not unusual within an urban context.  
 
Cross Lane 
 

3.13 In respect of Cross Lane, the distance between the proposed development 
and residential properties opposite is 11.7m. Although this is less than 
20m, the windows are street facing windows where some level inter-
visibility could be expected. Overlooking, associated with the development, 
on this property will need to be a consideration for members, albeit that 
officers consider that the character and urban form of surrounding 
commercial buildings mean that this relationship is, on balance, 
satisfactory.  
 
Child Playspace 
 

3.14 Members raised concerns as to whether the development is served by 
sufficient child playspace. Using the formula set out in the Mayor’s 
“Shaping Neighbourhoods: Play and Informal Recreation” SPG 2012, the 
development has an estimated child yield of 130 children generating a need 
for 1300 sq.m of child playspace, of which 670 sq.m is required for 0-4 year 
olds. The development provides 3,180 sq.m total of communal space, of 
which 2,290 sq.m is provided for the Hornsey Gardens building and 
890sq.m for the Quadrangle. The format of the spaces and buildings that 
enclose it provide good opportunities for safe, informal play for younger 

Page 9



children within the development. More energetic, intensive sporting 
pursuits and play can take place off-site at Alexandra Park, some 800m 
away. The route to the park does not involve any dangerous crossings such 
that the distance, topography or route provides a significant barrier to 
residents seeking to engage in more active play. It should be noted that the 
public realm will include play-friendly features to provide additional informal 
play opportunities over and above that provided by the private communal 
spaces. Care in the design and location of such features will be required 
nevertheless, to ensure that accidental opportunities for unsocial play are 
avoided. The design and siting of formal and informal play facilities within 
the site is addressed by virtue of condition 4.  
 
The size of the foodstore and its retail impact 
 

3.15 The proposed food store represents a mid size supermarket in the context 
of current retail trading formats. The retail impact assessment suggests that 
based upon forecasts of local consumer spending power, and the level of 
convenience floorspace locally, the existing Hornsey High Street stores are 
over-trading. This does not mean that individual shopkeepers are 
experiencing excessive surpluses in trading, but that consumer spending 
may be leaking from the locality, to other larger format convenience stores 
located nearby.  
 

3.16 Policy SP10 of the Strategic Policies Local Plan promotes retail growth in 
Metropolitan and District Town Centres and makes a commitment to 
support Local shopping centres such as Hornsey through providing core 
local shopping facilities catering largely for the local catchment area within 
walking distance. The proposed retail store is located in a Local town 
centre (where retail facilities would be acceptable) and the current proposal 
follows previous decisions to approve a similarly sized store in 2000. 
Discussions between the potential operator and local traders have taken 
place and precipitated a request for extended free parking, to encourage 
linked trips. This is being proposed by way of a planning condition. Based 
upon the location, size and modelled impact of the store, officers are 
satisfied that the proposals will not adversely impact upon trading 
conditions and footfall locally so as to undermine the policy objectives for 
town centres in the Local Plan.       
 

 

3.17 In addition it is expected that the introduction of the foodstore will increase 
footfall on the High Street and as such benefit local traders.  
 
 
Views of Alexandra Palace 
 

3.18 During the previous committee meeting, members queried the effect of the 
loss of the view of Alexandra Palace from across and over the public bath 
buildings, which are proposed to be demolished. Council Officers have 

Page 10



further considered this aspect of the proposal. 
 

3.19 Having assessed the existing view, it is evident that the main 8-storey 
element of the development and the higher elements of the Quadrangle 
building would not impede the view of Alexandra Palace as this view is only 
available at an oblique angle. It is the extended three storey wing at the 
High Street frontage that would impede the view of the palace. If the 
scheme were to retain the view, only a single storey building to the High 
Street frontage would be required, along with possibly a reduction in the 
height of Myddleton House block (currently five storeys). 
 

3.20 From a conservation point of view, whilst the existing single storey bath 
buildings allow the view to the Palace, it also creates a wide opening in the 
High Street frontage. As such, a scheme retaining the view would need a 
similar single storey building to achieve the same result. This is considered 
to be detrimental to the enclosed and ‘tight’ nature of the High Street, 
dominated by three storey buildings on both sides.   
 

3.21 It is acknowledged that this incidental view is an important part of the 
current streetscene, but the gap in the street frontage that the view can be 
seen through is to the detriment of the character of the High Street. Whilst 
it is to some extent regrettable that the proposed scheme would 
necessitate the loss of the former bath house building as well as the view of 
the palace, it would also reinstate the original High Street character by 
enclosing this large opening within the streetscene. In that respect, the 
scheme adds to the character of the conservation area. 
 

3.22 On balance, it is considered, that the loss of the view does not outweigh 
the benefits of the proposed scheme in terms of recreating the historic 
‘enclosed’ nature of the High Street. 

 
4.0 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION 

 
4.1 The application for redevelopment of this site has been the subject of 

considerable local comment. The proposals represent an investment of 
£80m into the Haringey Heartlands regeneration area. The proposals are 
forecast to create 11 new jobs and support over 1000 existing jobs during 
construction and create some 120 new jobs in the foodstore once trading, 
whilst contributing 438 new homes (including affordable housing) to meet a 
recognised housing need for London and for the Borough.  
 

4.2 The application proposals involve mixed use development on an allocated 
but derelict development site frontage to Hornsey High Street. The 
proposals are at a density and scale that falls within the parameters set by 
the adopted local guidance but above the London Plan density frameworks 
levels. There is local concern that this density and scale is excessive. The 
associated Planning Policy considerations, do not however prevent such a 
density from being proposed. For the reasons set out in the report, officers 
consider that the impacts of the scheme are acceptable. Similarly the 

Page 11



concerns relating to play space provision and the relationship with 
surrounding homes are considered to be satisfactorily addressed by the 
scheme.  
 

4.3 The building will enclose the High Street and obscure view of Alexandra 
Palace. These views are not deliberate or planned and are not explicitly 
safeguarded in the Local Plan such that refusal of planning permission on 
this basis would be justified. The building form, and its impact on the 
character and appearance of the conservation area, is considered to be 
acceptable, having regard to the statutory obligations in respect of such 
new development.  
 

4.4 A retail impact assessment has been submitted and reviewed as part of the 
application process. Understandable concern has been raised by local 
traders about the impact of this mid size food store on local trading 
conditions and adjustments have been discussed with local traders and the 
potential future operator. Balancing the methodology used for the impact 
assessment and its conclusions, with local comment, officers consider that 
the overall effect of the food store size will not undermine the trading 
conditions or vitality of Hornsey High Street or nearby centres, subject to 
the car park being managed and priced to support linked trips.  
 

4.5 Members and the community have understandably questioned the mix of 
dwellings and the focus towards smaller (as opposed to family size) units in 
line with the Council’s usual practice and policy. The specific site 
circumstances and design of the scheme (and its density) mitigate against 
a majority of large family units being introduced to this high street location. 
Instead, the development seeks to maximise affordable housing delivery 
whilst addressing the clear local need for smaller unit sizes evidenced by 
the housing waiting lists and borough wide demand. The Hornsey area 
contains a wide mix of housing tenures and sizes and the proposals will not 
unbalance or adversely impact upon the strategic policy aspirations for 
mixed and balanced communities. It is for members to consider whether, 
taking all other matters into consideration, the mix on its own, renders the 
scheme unacceptable.  
 

5.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 

5.1 GRANT PERMISSION subject to referral to the Mayor of London and 
subject to conditions (as amended) and s106/s278 Legal Agreement as set 
out in the attached report. 
 

5.2 Since they were last reported to planning sub-committee, the conditions 
have been refined further to allow for more effective phasing of the 
development should permission be granted.  
 

5.3 A further condition has been added limiting the net internal sales area of the 
foodstore to no larger than 1,825 sq. m.  
  

Page 12



6.0 APPENDICES 
 

6.1 Appendix 1: Consultation Responses  
 

6.2 Appendix 2: Previous officers report to Planning Sub-committee 20 January 
2013 (with amendments/updates to report text, conditions and consultation 
responses) 
 

  

Page 13



APPENDIX 1 – Consultation Responses 
 

Page 14



N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 
L

O
C

A
L

 

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

/B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
E

S
 

 

 
2

 o
b

je
c

ti
o

n
s
 f

ro
m

 l
o

c
a

l 

r e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

s
 o

f 

2
4

/0
1

/2
0

1
4

 

1
.

Im
p

a
c
t 

fr
o

m
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d

 p
o

p
u
la

ti
o

n
2

.
S

iz
e
 o

f 
fo

o
d

s
to

re
 

3
.

S
iz

e
 o

f 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 d
e
n
s
it
y
 

4
.

H
e
ig

h
t 

o
f 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

5
.

B
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

 i
s
 m

o
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 
6

.
Im

p
a
c
t 

o
n

 t
ra

ff
ic

 a
n
d

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 

7
.

L
iv

e
/w

o
rk

 u
n

it
s
 o

v
e
rl

o
o

k
in

g
 G

re
a
t 

N
o

rt
h
e
rn

 P
u
b

lic
 H

o
u

s
e
 

8
.

Im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 f
lo

o
d

in
g

 a
n
d

 d
ra

in
a
g

e
 

9
.

Im
p

a
c
t 

fr
o

m
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 

1
0

.
Im

p
a
c
t 

o
n

 C
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
 a

n
d

 d
e
m

o
lit

io
n

 o
f 

b
a
th

s
 

b
u
ild

in
g

 
1

1
.

Im
p

a
c
t 

o
n
 v

ie
w

s
 t

o
 A

le
x
a
n
d

ra
 P

a
la

c
e
 

1
2

.
L
o

s
s
 o

f 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 

1
.

D
e
m

a
n

d
 o

n
 l
o

c
a
l 
G

P
s
 a

n
d

 d
e
n

ti
s
ts

 i
s
 l
o

w
. 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 p

la
c
e
s
 f

u
n

d
e
d

 b
y
 s

1
0
6

. 

2
.

F
o

o
d

s
to

re
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 s
iz

e
 t

o
 a

c
t 

a
s
 a

n
c
h
o

r 

3
.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

d
e
n
s
it
y
 i
s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 t
o

 a
n
 ‘
a
re

a
 

o
f 

in
te

n
s
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 w
it
h

in
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 r
a
n
g

e
. 

4
.

H
e
ig

h
t 

is
 v

a
ri
e
d

 a
n

d
 t

a
lle

s
t 

e
le

m
e
n
t 

is
 s

e
n
s
it
iv

e
 

s
it
e
d

 

5
.

B
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 f
o

r 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

. 

B
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

 f
o

r 
fo

o
d

s
to

re
 i
s
 n

o
t 

v
ia

b
le

 

6
.

Im
p

a
c
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 e
x
te

n
s
iv

e
ly

 m
o

d
e
lle

d
 a

n
d

 i
s
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 

7
.

L
iv

e
/w

o
rk

 u
n

it
s
 f

a
c
e
 o

n
to

 C
ro

s
s
 L

a
n
e
 

8
.

E
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

a
g

e
n
c
y
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
q

u
e
s
te

d
 s

tr
in

g
e
n
t 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 

9
.

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
d

 b
y
 C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

la
n

 a
n

d
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 C

o
n
s
id

e
ra

te
 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
to

rs
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 

1
0

.
Im

p
a
c
t 

is
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 o

n
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 

1
1

.
E

x
is

ti
n

g
 v

ie
w

 i
s
 l
im

it
e
d

 a
n

d
 n

o
t 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 

1
2

.
R

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
-l

o
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 w

e
s
te

rn
 

R
o

a
d

, 
N

2
2
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

a
m

e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

 
O

n
e

 c
o

m
m

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 C
ir

c
le

 

3
3

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 T

ru
s
t 

 

 U
n
s
u

p
e
rv

is
e
d

 p
la

y
 i
n

 i
n
a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 p
la

c
e
 i
s
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 p

ro
b

le
m

. 
S

o
m

e
 S

1
0

6
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 t

h
e
 

H
a
ri
n

g
e
y
 P

la
y
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 p

la
y
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

in
 t

h
e
 N

e
w

 R
iv

e
r 

V
ill

a
g

e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

    

Page 15



N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 
E

n
g

li
s
h

 H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 

 

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

 a
re

 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
m

o
lit

io
n

 o
f 

a
ll 

o
f 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 o

n
 t

h
is

 

s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
s
it
e
 a

n
d

 r
e
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
u

p
e
rm

a
rk

e
t,

 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 c
a
r 

p
a
rk

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
fl
a
ts

. 

T
h

e
 s

o
u
th

e
rn

 s
e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 l
o

c
a
te

d
 p

a
rt

ly
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 

H
o

rn
s
e
y
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

C
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 A

re
a
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 

c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
e
d

 b
y
 m

id
 a

n
d

 l
a
te

 1
9
C

 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 o

f 
v
a
ry

in
g

 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
s
ty

le
s
 c

o
n

ta
in

in
g

 r
e
ta

il 
u

s
e
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u

n
d

 f
lo

o
rs

 w
it
h

 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
u

s
e
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 u

p
p

e
r 

fl
o

o
rs

. 
 T

h
e
s
e
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 a

re
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 

o
f 

th
re

e
 s

to
re

y
s
, 
w

it
h

 s
o

m
e
 m

o
re

 a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
lly

 o
rn

a
te

 b
u

ild
in

g
s
, 

s
u
c
h

 a
s
 p

u
b

lic
 h

o
u
s
e
s
, 
ri
s
in

g
 a

b
o

v
e
 t

h
is

 g
e
n

e
ra

l 
h
e
ig

h
t 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 

e
m

p
h

a
s
is

e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

p
lo

ts
. 
  

T
h

e
 s

it
e
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 o

n
to

 H
o

rn
s
e
y
 H

ig
h

 

S
tr

e
e
t 

c
u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 c

o
n

ta
in

s
 a

 s
in

g
le

 s
to

re
y
 m

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
b

u
ild

in
g

 w
h

ic
h

 

a
p

p
e
a
rs

 t
o

 d
a
te

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 1

9
5

0
s
 a

n
d

 w
a
s
 f

o
rm

e
rl
y
 u

s
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

a
s
 o

ff
ic

e
s
. 
 W

h
ils

t 
th

is
 b

u
ild

in
g

 i
s
 o

f 
s
o

u
n
d

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 

a
n
d

 i
s
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
lly

 w
e
ll 

b
a
la

n
c
e
d

, 
it
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

re
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 

p
re

d
o

m
in

a
n

t 
c
h

a
ra

c
te

r 
o

f 
th

is
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
 a

n
d

 a
s
 

s
u
c
h

, 
w

e
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

o
b

je
c
t 

to
 i
ts

 d
e
m

o
lit

io
n

, 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

a
 

s
u
it
a
b

le
 r

e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 

b
u
ild

in
g

 c
a
n
 b

e
 s

e
c
u
re

d
. 
 

 T
h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 a

 f
o

rm
e
r 

d
e
p

o
t 

d
a
ti
n
g

 f
ro

m
 1

8
8
8
, 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 l
o

c
a
te

d
 o

u
ts

id
e
 o

f 
a
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
. 
 A

n
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
n

 t
h

is
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
 w

ill
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 h
a
v
e
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 s

e
tt

in
g

 

o
f 

th
e
 H

o
rn

s
e
y
 H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e
t 

C
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 A

re
a
 a

n
d

  
H

o
rn

s
e
y
 W

a
te

r 

W
o

rk
s
 a

n
d

 F
ilt

e
r 

B
e
d

s
 C

o
n

s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 A

re
a
, 
w

h
ic

h
 b

o
u
n
d

s
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 

o
n
 i
ts

 n
o

rt
h
 e

a
s
t 

s
id

e
. 
 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

c
o

m
p

ri
s
e
s
 3

 m
a
in

 b
lo

c
k
s
 o

f 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
n

 o
p

e
n

 a
re

a
 o

f 
c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g

. 
 T

h
e
 m

a
in

 

R
e
s
p

o
n
s
e
 f

ro
m

 L
B

H
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 O

ff
ic

e
r

 D
e

m
o

li
ti

o
n

 o
f 

B
a

th
 b

u
il
d

in
g

s
 

E
n
g

lis
h
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e
’s

 c
o

m
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
th

e
 b

a
th

 

b
u
ild

in
g

s
 i
s
 t

h
a
t 

‘W
h
ils

t 
th

is
 b

u
ild

in
g

 i
s
 o

f 
s
o

u
n
d

 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
s
 a

rc
h

it
e
c
tu

ra
lly

 w
e
ll 

b
a
la

n
c
e
d

, 
it
 

d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

re
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 p

re
d

o
m

in
a
n
t 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o

f 
th

is
 p

a
rt

 

o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
’.

  

In
 t

h
e
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r,

 i
t 

is
 f

e
lt
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 d

e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 

th
is

 b
u
ild

in
g

 i
s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 

a
n

d
 w

h
ils

t 
re

g
re

tt
a
b

le
, 
th

is
 l
o

s
s
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

o
u

tw
e
ig

h
 t

h
e
 

p
u
b

lic
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
. 

 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 E

n
g

li
s
h

 H
e

ri
ta

g
e

’s
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 

E
n

g
lis

h
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

a
is

e
d

 n
o

 o
b

je
c
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

d
e
m

o
lit

io
n

 o
f 

th
e
 b

a
th

 b
u

ild
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
e
p

t 
th

a
t 

th
e
 

v
ie

w
 o

f 
A

le
x
a
n

d
ra

 P
a
la

c
e
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
 c

o
m

p
o

s
e
d

 v
ie

w
, 
a
n

d
 

is
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ta

l 
in

 n
a
tu

re
. 
 

T
h

e
y
 h

a
v
e
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 r
a
is

e
d

 c
o

n
c
e
rn

s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 h

e
ig

h
t,

 

s
c
a
le

 a
n
d

 b
u
lk

 o
f 

th
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 T
h
is

 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

n
d

 i
t 

is
 f

e
lt
 t

h
a
t 

g
iv

e
n
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
’s

 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
 a

s
 h

ig
h

lig
h
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y
 

H
e
a
rt

la
n

d
s
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

, 
th

e
 s

it
e
 o

u
g

h
t 

to
 

b
e
 a

 h
ig

h
 d

e
n
s
it
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 r
e
q

u
ir
in

g
 t

h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

to
 b

e
 l
a
rg

e
r 

in
 s

c
a
le

 i
n

 c
o

m
p

a
ri
s
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

c
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
. 
 

G
iv

e
n

 t
h

e
 s

it
e
’s

 s
e
n

s
it
iv

e
 l
o

c
a
ti
o

n
, 
a
n
y
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
o

u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 

c
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
. 
A

s
 s

u
c
h
 i
t 

is
 a

c
c
e
p

te
d

, 
th

a
t 

th
e
 

Page 16



N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

c
o

n
c
e
rn

 f
o

r 
E

n
g

lis
h

 H
e
ri
ta

g
e
 i
s
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

 o
n

 t
h
e
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 H

o
rn

s
e
y
 H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e
t 

C
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 A

re
a
. 
 

 T
h

e
 s

o
u
th

e
rn

m
o

s
t 

b
lo

c
k
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
o

u
ld

 r
is

e
 

fr
o

m
 3

 s
to

re
y
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

fr
o

n
ta

g
e
 u

p
 t

o
 7

 o
r 

8
 s

to
re

y
s
 

m
o

v
in

g
 n

o
rt

h
 i
n

to
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
. 
 A

lt
h

o
u
g

h
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

fr
o

n
ta

g
e
 i
s
 3

 s
to

re
y
s
, 
it
 a

p
p

e
a
rs

 o
v
e
r 

s
c
a
le

d
 i
n

 c
o

m
p

a
ri
s
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u
ri
n
g

 p
ro

e
p

rt
ie

s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
ta

ll 
fl
o

o
r 

to
 c

e
ili

n
g

 

h
e
ig

h
ts

 a
n
d

 a
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
fi
n
e
 d

e
ta

ili
n
g

. 
 T

h
e
 4

th
 f

lo
o

r 
is

 a
ls

o
 l
o

c
a
te

d
 

c
lo

s
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 

fr
o

n
ta

g
e
 a

n
d

 i
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 p

ro
m

in
e
n

t 
d

u
e
 t

o
 i
ts

 

p
o

s
it
io

n
in

g
, 
re

la
ti
v
e
 h

e
ig

h
t 

a
n

d
 b

o
x
 l
ik

e
 a

rc
h

it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n

t.
 

T
h

e
 t

a
lle

r 
e
le

m
e
n

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
th

is
 b

lo
c
k
 w

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o

 a
p

p
e
a
r 

a
s
 

p
ro

m
in

e
n
t 

b
a
c
k
d

ro
p

 f
e
a
tu

re
s
 w

it
h

in
 v

ie
w

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 H

o
rn

s
e
y
 

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

C
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 A

re
a
 a

n
d

 w
o

u
ld

 i
n

tr
o

d
u
c
e
 a

 n
e
w

 s
c
a
le

 

a
n

d
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
c
h

a
ra

c
te

r 
to

 t
h
is

 a
re

a
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
k
e
s
 m

o
re

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 

to
 t

h
e
 N

e
w

 R
iv

e
r 

V
ill

a
g

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 t

h
a
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

c
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
. 
  

 In
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

, 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

 a
re

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 c

a
u

s
e
 s

o
m

e
 h

a
rm

 t
o

 

th
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
a
n

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 H

o
rn

s
e
y
 H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e
t 

C
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 A

re
a
. 
 A

t 
p

re
s
e
n

t,
 w

e
 a

re
 n

o
t 

in
c
lin

e
d

 t
o

 a
g

re
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

 w
o

u
ld

 o
u

tw
e
ig

h
 t

h
is

 h
a
rm

, 
in

 

a
c
c
o

rd
a
n
c
e
 w

it
h

 p
o

lic
y
 1

3
4

 o
f 

th
e
 N

a
ti
o

n
a
l 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

o
lic

y
 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

. 
 W

e
 w

o
u

ld
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 h

a
rm

 i
s
 

in
s
te

a
d

 m
it
ig

a
te

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 s

e
c
u
ri

n
g

 a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 b

u
lk

, 
s
c
a
le

 

a
n
d

 d
e
ta

ile
d

 d
e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 i
t 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e
s
 H

o
rn

s
e
y
 

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t.

 

  

o
v
e
ra

ll 
b

u
lk

 a
n
d

 m
a
s
s
in

g
 a

s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 w
o

u
ld

 a
ls

o
 h

a
v
e
 

a
n

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n

 i
ts

 c
h

a
ra

c
te

r.
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

ly
 o

u
t 

o
f 

p
la

c
e
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 f
o

rm
 a

 m
o

re
 c

o
h
e
re

n
t 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 N

e
w

 R
iv

e
r 

V
ill

a
g

e
 s

it
e
. 
A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
th

e
 

h
a
rm

 t
o

 t
h
e
 c

o
n

s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
’s

 c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

lim
it
e
d

 t
o

 t
h
e
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

fr
o

n
ta

g
e
 a

n
d

 c
a
n
n
o

t 
b

e
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 o

u
tw

e
ig

h
 t

h
e
 w

id
e
r 

p
u

b
lic

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
. 

 

Page 17



N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n

W
e
 w

o
u

ld
 u

rg
e
 y

o
u

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 a

b
o

v
e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
, 
a
n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

 
th

a
t 

th
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 
n

a
ti
o

n
a
l 
a
n

d
 l
o

c
a
l 
p

o
lic

y
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
, 
a
n

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 

y
o

u
r 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

c
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

d
v
ic

e
. 
It

 i
s
 n

o
t 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 f
o

r 
u
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
e
d

 a
g

a
in

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
f 

y
o

u
 w

o
u

ld
 l
ik

e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
d

v
ic

e
, 
p

le
a
s
e
 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

u
s
 t

o
 e

x
p

la
in

 y
o

u
r 

re
q

u
e
s
t.

 

 S
u
p

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 c

o
m

m
e
n
t 

re
c
e
iv

e
d

 1
6
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

I 
w

is
h

 t
o

 a
m

e
n

d
 m

y
 c

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 t

o
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 t
h

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 H

ig
h

 
S

tr
e
e
t 

fr
o

n
ta

g
e
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 b

a
th

s
 d

a
ti
n
g

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 1

9
3
0
s
. 
  

T
h

e
 b

a
th

s
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n
a
l 
a
n
d

 h
is

to
ri
c
 

v
a
lu

e
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

, 
c
o

u
ld

 m
a
k
e
 a

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

c
h

a
ra

c
te

r 
o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h

, 
th

e
ir
 l
o

s
s
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 c

a
u
s
e
 s

o
m

e
 h

a
rm

, 
w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 j
u

s
ti
fi
e
d

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

p
o

lic
y
 1

3
4

 o
f 

th
e
 N

P
P

F
 a

n
d

 w
e
ig

h
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
n
y
 

p
u
b

lic
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

. 

I 
m

u
s
t 

a
d

m
it
 t

h
a
t 

I 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 

a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

A
le

x
a
n

d
ra

 P
a
la

c
e
 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 b

a
th

s
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
, 
w

h
e
n
 v

ie
w

e
d

 f
ro

m
 r

a
is

e
d

 g
ro

u
n
d

 t
o

 t
h
e
 

e
a
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t.

  
T

h
is

 v
ie

w
 d

o
e
s
 a

llo
w

 t
h

e
 

p
a
la

c
e
 t

o
 b

e
 f

u
lly

 a
p

p
re

c
ia

te
d

 i
n

 i
ts

 s
e
tt

in
g

, 
b

u
t 

is
 n

o
t 

a
 c

o
m

p
o

s
e
d

 
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 i
s
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ta

l 
in

 n
a
tu

re
. 
  

 A
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e
 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
th

is
 v

ie
w

 
n
e
e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 w

e
ig

h
e
d

 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

a
la

n
c
e
. 
  

 

 

Page 18



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

Appendix 2 - Previous officers report to Planning Sub-committee 20 January 2013 

(with amendments/updates to report text, conditions and consultation responses) 

  

Page 19



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

Planning Sub-Committee    Item No. 
 
REPORT FOR CONSIDERATION AT PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Reference No: HGY/2013/2019 Ward: Hornsey 
 

Address: Hornsey Reuse and Recycling Centre, High Street, Hornsey, London N8 7QB 
 
Proposal: Demolition of existing structures and buildings and redevelopment of the site 

to provide a mixed-use development comprising approximately 3,250sqm (GIA) foodstore 

(A1 use) and 114 space surface level car parking for the foodstore; 438 residential units 

including affordable housing and ancillary residential gym, approximately 356sqm (GIA) 

unit on Hornsey High Street (flexible A1, A2 (including a temporary marketing suite), or D1 

use); two live/work units fronting onto Cross Lane; together with private amenity space 

and new public realm, including publicly accessible routes through the site; an energy 

centre; 178 car parking spaces for the residential use (within a basement and undercroft); 

cycle parking; refuse storage; recycling centre in the foodstore car park; access; and 

other infrastructure work. 

 
Existing Use: Household waste reuse and recycling facility  
 
Proposed Use: Residential (C3), foodstore (A1), flexible commercial and temporary 
marketing suite (A1/A2/Sui Generis), live/work (Sui Generis) 
 
Applicant: St James Group Ltd And Sainsbury's Supermarkets Ltd 
 
Ownership: Part Council and part private owned land 
 

 

DOCUMENTS 

Title 

Design and Access Statement September 2013 

Planning Statement September 2013 

Environmental Statement – Volumes I, II and III September 2013 and addendum 

December 2013 

Retail Statement September 2013 

Transport Assessment September 2013 

Energy Strategy September 2013 

Sustainability Statement September 2013 

Statement of Community Involvement September 2013 

Landscape Strategy September 2013 

Tree Survey September 2013 

Heritage Statement September 2013 

Demolition Management Plan September 2013 

Page 20



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

Site Waste Management Plan September 2013 

 

 
PLANS 

Plan Number  Rev. Plan Title 

PL_001 P1 Location Plan

PL_002 P1 Existing Plan

PL_003 P1 Demolition Plan

PL_099 P3 Basement Plan

PL_100 P3 Ground Floor Plan

PL_101 P4 First Floor Plan

PL_102 P4 Second Floor Plan

PL_103 P4 Third Floor Plan

PL_104 P4 Fourth Floor Plan

PL_105 P3 Fifth Floor Plan

PL_106 P3 Sixth Floor Plan

PL_107 P3 Seventh Floor Plan

PL_108 P3 Roof Plan

PL_110 P3 Ground Floor Plan Store

PL_111 P3 First Floor Plan Blocks A-G

PL_112 P4 Second Floor Plan Blocks A-G

PL_113 P4 Third Floor Plan Blocks A-G

PL_114 P4 Fourth Floor Plan Blocks A-G

PL_115 P3 Fifth Floor Plan Blocks A-G

PL_116 P3 Sixth Floor Plan Blocks A-G

PL_117 P3 Seventh Floor Plan Blocks A-G

PL_118 P3 Roof Plan Blocks A-G

PL_120 P2 Ground Floor Plan Blocks H-N

PL_121 P1 First Floor Plan Blocks H-N

PL_122 P3 Second Floor Plan Blocks H-N

PL_123 P3 Third Floor Plan Blocks H-N

PL_124 P3 Fourth Floor Plan Blocks H-N

PL_125 P1 Fifth Floor Plan Blocks H-N

PL_126 P1 Sixth Floor Plan Blocks H-N

PL_127 P1 Roof Plan Blocks H-N

PL_129 P2 Basement Plan Store

PL_200 P1 Existing Elevations Z and Y

PL_201 P1 Existing Elevation X

PL_202 P1 Existing Elevation W

PL_203 P1 Existing Elevation V

PL_204 P1 Existing Elevation U

PL_301 P3 Elevation A-A and Elevation B-B

PL_302 P3 Elevation C-C

PL_303 P3 Elevation D-D

PL_304 P3 Elevation E-E

PL_305 P3 Elevation F-F and Elevation G-G

PL_306 P4 Elevation H-H and Elevation I-I

PL_307 P3 Elevation J-J

PL_308 P4 Elevation K-K

Page 21



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

PL_309 P3 Elevation L-L and Elevation M-M

PL_310 P3 Elevation N-N

PL_311 P3 Elevation O-O

PL_350 P3 Hornsey Gardens Bay Study 1

PL_351 P2 Hornsey Gardens Bay Study 2

PL_352 P2 Moselle Quarter Bay Study 1

PL_353 P2 Moselle Quarter Bay Study 2

PL_354 P2 Moselle Quarter Bay Study 3

PL_355 P2 Cross Lane Bay Study

PL_356 P4 High Street Bay Study

  

Case Officer Contact:  

Jeffery Holt 

P: 0208 489 5131 

E: Jeffrey.Holt@haringey.gov.uk 

PLANNING DESIGNATIONS: 

 
Local Plan 2013 SP1 Haringey Heartlands Growth Area 
Saved Unitary Development Plan 2006 Policy Site Specific Proposal 4 (SSP4)  
Conservation Area (part) 
Local Shopping Centre (part) 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

GRANT PERMISSION subject to referral to the Mayor of London and subject to 

conditions and s106/s278 Legal Agreement 

Page 22



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

SUMMARY OF REPORT

 

The application site is 2.1ha in area and located north of Hornsey High Street, N8. It is currently used as 

reuse and recycling centre but was once a council depot, mortuary and coroner’s court.  

 

The site is located within the Haringey Heartlands Development Framework SPD area which seeks a 

comprehensive mixed use development on the site comprising a foodstore, housing, employment and 

community uses to complement the High Street Local Shopping Centre.  

 

The proposed development consists of a foodstore with surface level car park with 114 spaces, 438 

residential units with 178 parking spaces, flexible commercial unit on the High Street and two live/work 

units. The proposed land uses and density are considered acceptable having regard to the SPD and 

supporting regeneration policy. The existing recycling facility will be relocated to Western Road, N22.  

 

The proposal provides 42% affordable housing by habitable room. This relatively high level of affordable 

housing is enabled by a mix of dwelling favouring 1- and 2-bedroom dwellings but with larger family units 

provided for affordable rent. The housing ‘offer’ proposed, although not strictly compliant with GLA and 

Local Plan policies regarding mix and level of affordable housing is supported by a financial viability 

appraisal which has been independently assessed and found to provide the maximum reasonable amount. 

 

The proposal has been designed to meet regeneration objectives and respond to the existing context and 

character of the surrounding area. Officers are satisfied that the design is of high quality, delivering quality 

housing and causing no significant impact on residential amenity.  

 

The Hornsey Baths building on the High Street will be demolished to enable the development. The building 

is not protected but is in a conservation area. However, its loss is partly mitigated by the retention of the 

entrance feature. The development’s wider effects on the Conservation Area and nearby heritage assets are 

considered acceptable given the regenerative benefits of the scheme.  

 

The impacts of the new access road with signalized junction on the High Street, vehicles ingresses and 

egresses, and volume of trips generated have been modeled and assessed by Transport for London and a 

Council appointed transport consultant. The traffic impact is not considered to be significantly harmful and 

the junction design is acceptable for planning purposes, pending final approval by Transport for London.  

 

The culverted Moselle Brook runs beneath the site and will be diverted. Officers accept that the benefits of 

de-culverting are insufficient in this instance.  

 

An Environmental Statement (ES) was submitted with the application due to the size of the development. 

The ES concludes that the environmental impacts of the development are not significant, or where they are 

negative, can be adequately mitigated.  

 

Contributions toward education, employment and training, a controlled parking zone, bus stop, pedestrian 

and cycling improvements and necessary highway works will be secured by s106 and s278 agreements. 

The development will be liable for the Mayoral Community Infrastructure Levy. 

 

The detailed assessments outlined in this report demonstrate that on balance there is strong planning policy 

support for these proposals embodied in the Local Development Plan and backed by Regional and National 

Planning Guidance. Therefore, subject to the imposition of appropriate conditions and the signing of a 

section 106 legal agreement securing financial contributions and other relevant clauses, the planning 

application for the proposed development is recommended for approval. 

 

 

 

Page 23



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

1.0  SITE PLAN 

2.0  IMAGES 

3.0  SITE AND SURROUNDIINGS 

4.0  PROPOSAL DESCRIPTION 

5.0 PLANNING HISTORY 

6.0 RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY 

7.0 CONSULTATION 

8.0 ANALYSIS / ASSESSMENT OF APPLICATION 

9.0 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION 

10.0 RECOMMENDATION 

11.0 APPENDICES:  
Appendix 1: Consultation Responses  
Appendix 2: Development Management forum Minutes 
Appendix 3: LBH Conservation and Design Comments 
   

  

  

Page 24



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

7.0 SITE PLAN 
 

 

Page 25



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

Page 26



O
F

F
R

E
P

C
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
F

o
r 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
 

  

 8
.0

IM
A

G
E

S
 

 

 
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
la

y
o

u
t 

- 
lo

o
k
in

g
 n

o
rt

h
 

 

Page 27



O
F

F
R

E
P

C
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
F

o
r 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
 

  

 
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
la

y
o

u
t 

- 
lo

o
k
in

g
 s

o
u

th
 

Page 28



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

 
 
View from High Street 
 

 
 
View from access road within site, just off High Street 

Page 29



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

 

 
 
View looking east across pedestrian route through the site 

 

 

View looking south along Myddelton Road 

Page 30



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

 

View looking east along Pembroke Road 

 

View looking east along Miles Road 

Page 31



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

 

View from Great Amwell Lane looking south west  

  

Page 32



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

9.0 SITE AND SURROUNDINGS 
 

9.1 The application site is approximately 2.1ha in area and is located on the 
north side of Hornsey High Street and is bounded by Myddelton Road, 
Miles Road and Cross Lane. The site can be understood as being in two 
halves: the eastern half of the site consists of open hardstanding and the 
western half contains a number of yards, warehouses and small buildings 
comprising the Hornsey Reuse and Recycling Centre and education facility, 
a Council depot and a former mortuary and coroner’s court. At the southern 
end of the site, facing High Street is the former Hornsey Public Baths and 
Washhouse building. Access to the site is via a private road between no. 31 
and 35 High Street. 
 

9.2 Surrounding development is varied in character owing to the site’s position 
in both the local shopping centre and neighbouring residential and 
commercial areas. Development to the north and west consists of 2- and 3-
storey post-war residential development. To the east is Campsbourne Well 
House, a disused pump house. Further east is New River Village, a 
contemporary 6- to 7-storey residential development as well as an area of 
mostly industrial and business buildings on Cross Lane. To the south is 
Hornsey High Street, which is a designated Local Shopping Centre in the 
Local Plan and is characterised by a mix of retail, cafe and restaurant uses 
2- to 3-storeys in height.  
 

9.3 Hornsey High Street is a Conservation Area and the southern end of the 
application site, including the former Hornsey Public Baths and Washhouse 
falls within its boundaries. The Baths building is not a statutorily or locally 
listed building but the nearby Great Northern Railway Tavern, no.’s 69 and 
71 Hornsey High Street and the former St Mary’s Parish Hall at 31 Hornsey 
High Street are each Grade II Listed. The Hornsey Water Works and Filter 
Beds Conservation Area is immediately to the east. Campsbourne Well 
House falls within this conservation area and is Locally Listed.  
 

9.4 The site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level of 3 (medium) and has 
access to local bus routes, Hornsey Station 300m to the south east and 
Turnpike Underground Station 1km to the east.  
 

9.5 Alexandra Palace and Park is to the north west and Priory Park is to the 
west. A culverted section of the Moselle Brook runs diagonally north east 
towards the northern end of the site.  
 

9.6 The site and land stretching towards Wood Green falls within the Haringey 
Heartlands Development Framework and this area is also identified in the 
London Plan 2011 as an ‘Area for Intensification’.  
 
 

 
 

Page 33



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

10.0 PROPOSAL DESCRIPTION 
 

10.1 The application proposes the demolition of all existing structures on site 
and its redevelopment to provide a mixed-use development comprising a 
foodstore 3,250 sq. m (Gross Internal Floor Area); a flexible use unit 356 sq. 
m  in area (A1, A2 or D1, including temproary marketing suite) fronting 
Hornsey High Street; 438 residential units, two live/work units; an energy 
centre; 178 parking spaces for residential use and a 114 space surface 
level car for the foodstore.  
 

10.2 The building fronting the High Street is part 3- and 4-storeys with the 
ground floor proposed for a flexible use and the upper floors as private 
residential. Behind is the ‘Hornsey Gardens’ building which comprises the 
foodstore with basement parking and six floors of private residential above. 
The residential element is arranged in a horseshoe shape around a central 
landscaped courtyard amenity space. The two live/work units are located 
on the ground floor facing Cross Lane and behind the foodstore. To the 
north is ‘Moselle House’, a part 3- and 4-storey private residential building. 
To the north west is the 4- to 8-storey ‘Quadrangle’ which contains 
affordable rented and intermediate housing arranged aroung a landscaped 
area at podium level with parking underneath. To the west is ‘Myddleton 
House’, which is 5-storeys and contains affordable rented accommodation. 
 

10.3 Vehicular access to the food store carpark and undercroft loading and 
servicing area is via a new road off Hornsey High Street, with signalised 
junction. Access to the residents’ basement car park is via an access way 
near the junction of Cross Lane and New River Avenue and access to the 
undercroft parking to the Quadrangle is off Miles Road. Pedestrian access 
within the site is arranged in a cross shape, linking the roads which bound 
the site.  
 
 

11.0 PLANNING HISTORY 
 

11.1 The site has been in use as workshops, storage and similar uses since the 
1970s and was later used as a Council depot around 1980. In 1996 an 
application was made for a food store but it was withdrawn in 2000. An 
application submitted in 1997 was approved in 2000 after being called in by 
the Secretary of State, and included a food store (3,790 sq. m GIA) and 162 
residential units. This permission was never implemented. In 2005 
temporary planning permission was granted to use the site as recycling 
centre. This permission was renewed in 2007, 2010 and 2013.  
 

11.2 Full Planning history provided below 
 
 
HGY/2010/1452 - Renewal of time limited permission HGY/2007/1360 for 
an additional 3 years. – GRANTED 
 

Page 34



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

HGY/2007/1360 - Use of former council depot as recycling centre (civic 
amenity site or public use) for temporary period up to 3 years. – GRANTED  
 
HGY/2005/1470 - Change of use of building from council depot to B1 
(business and light industrial) – GRANTED  
 
HGY/2005/0338 - Use of former Council Depot as Recycling Centre (Civic 
Amenity site for public use) for temporary period up to 3 years. Erection of 
two single storey site office buildings (demountable); improvements to 
vehicle access road, fencing and gates; - GRANTED 
 
HGY/54087 and /54088 (old reference system) – Construction of retail 
foodstore with associated servicing area and parking spaces; construction 
of residential development comprising social housing units and private 
sector units with associated car parking spaces; change of use of former 
pumping station and well house to use within the A3 Use Class and 
associated car parking spaces; creation of 2.34 hectares of public open 
space close to the New River; construction of new vehicular access road 
and a new signal-control junction on Hornsey High Street; and 
Conservation Area Consent for the demolition of buildings and structures in 
the conservation areas – APPROVED BY SECRETARY OF STATE  
 
HGY/1996/0893 - Erection of class A1 retail store, coffee shop, creche, 
post office, dry cleaners, pharmacy, together with automatic teller 
machines, car park, access, landscaping and ancillary facilities – 
WITHDRAWN 
 
HGY/1991/0232 - Erection of a 2 storey warehouse building for light 
industrial use – WITHDRAWN 
 
OLD/1989/1374 - Erection of an additional storey at first floor level onto 
existing single storey building for use as storage/warehousing and light 
industrial – WITHDRAWN 
 
OLD/1987/1347 - Listed building consent for demolition of buildings and 
erections of supermarket with car parking and servicing. – WITHDRAWN 
 
OLD/1987/1346 - Demolition of existing buildings and construction of new 
supermarket with associated car parking and servicing – WITHDRAWN 
 
OLD/1987/1345 - Construction of new super market with associated car 
parking & servicing L.B.C. – WITHDRAWN 
 
OLD/1987/1344 - Demolition of existing buildings. – WITHDRAWN 
 
OLD/1987/0766 - Erection of system built temporary offices – GRANTED 

 
 

12.0 RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY 

Page 35



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 
The NPPF seeks to ensure that there is presumption in favour of supporting 
proposals that achieve sustainable development. The chapters relevant in 
considering this proposed development are as follows: 
 

1.  Building a strong, competitive economy; 
2. Ensuring the vitality of town centres; 
4. Promoting sustainable transport; 
6. Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes; 
7. Requiring good design; 
8. Promoting healthy communities; 
10. Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal 

change 
12. Conserving and enhancing the historic environment 

 
Planning for Town Centres: Practice guidance on need, impact and the 
sequential approach (2009) 

 
London Plan 2011 

 
Policy 3.3 Increasing Housing Supply 
Policy 3.4 Optimising Housing Potential 
Policy 3.5 Quality and design of housing developments 
Policy 3.6 Children and young people’s play and informal recreation 
facilities 
Policy 3.7 Large residential developments 
Policy 3.8 Housing Choice 
Policy 3.9 Mixed and Balanced Communities  
Policy 3.11 Affordable housing targets 
Policy 3.12 Negotiating affordable housing on individual private residential 
and mixed use schemes 
Policy 3.13 Affordable Housing thresholds 
Policy 3.17 Health and social care facilities 
Policy 3.18 Education facilities 
Policy 4.4 Managing Industrial Land and Premises 
Policy 4.7 Retail and town centre development 
Policy 4.8 Supporting a successful and diverse retail sector 
Policy 4.9 Small shops 
Policy 4.12 Improving opportunities for all 
Policy 5.2 Minimising carbon dioxide emissions 
Policy 5.3 Sustainable design and construction 
Policy 5.6 Decentralised energy in development proposals 
Policy 5.7 Renewable energy 
Policy 5.9 Overheating and cooling 
Policy 5.10 'Urban greening' 
Policy 5.11 Green roofs and development site environs 
Policy 5.12 Flood risk management 

Page 36



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

Policy 5.13 Sustainable drainage 
Policy 5.14 Water quality and wastewater infrastructure 
Policy 5.15 Water use and supplies 
Policy 5.21 Contaminated land 
Policy 5.17 Waste capacity 
Policy 6.3 Assessing effects of development on transport capacity 
Policy 6.5 Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport 
infrastructure 
Policy 6.7 Better streets and surface transport 
Policy 6.9 Cycling 
Policy 6.10 Walking 
Policy 6.11 Smoothing traffic flow and tackling congestion 
Policy 6.12 Road network capacity 
Policy 6.13 Parking 
 
Policy 7.1 Building London's neighbourhoods and communities 
Policy 7.2 An inclusive environment 
Policy 7.3 Designing Out Crime 
Policy 7.4 Local character 
Policy 7.5 Public realm 
Policy 7.6 Architecture 
Policy 7.8 Heritage assets and archaeology 
Policy 7.12 Implementing the London View Management Framework  
Policy 7.13 Safety, security and resilience to emergency 
Policy 7.14 Improving air quality 
Policy 7.15 Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes 
Policy 7.18 Protecting local open space and addressing local deficiency 
Policy 7.19 Biodiversity and access to nature 
Policy 7.21 Trees and woodlands 
Policy 7.25 Increasing the use of the Blue Ribbon Network for passengers 
and tourism 
Policy 7.27 Blue Ribbon Network: supporting infrastructure and recreational 
use  
Policy 7.28 Restoration of the Blue Ribbon Network 
 
Haringey Local Plan 2013-2026 

 
SP0 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
SP1 Managing Growth 
SP2 Housing 
SP4 Working Towards a Low Carbon Haringey 
SP5 Water Management and Flooding 
SP6 Waste and Recycling 
SP7 Transport 
SP8 Employment 
SP9 Improving skills and training to support access to jobs and community 
cohesion and inclusion 
SP10 Town Centres 
SP11 Design 

Page 37



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

SP12 Conservation  
SP13 Open Space and Biodiversity 
SP14 Health and Well-being 
SP15 Culture and Leisure 
SP16 Community Facilities 
 
 
Saved Unitary Development Plan 2006 Policies  
 
UD3 General Principles 
UD7 Waste Storage 
UD10 Advertisements 
ENV5 Works Affecting Watercourses 
ENV6 Noise Pollution 
ENV7 Air, Water and Lighting 
ENV11 Contaminated Land  
HSG2 Change of use to residential 
EMP5 Promoting employment uses 
TCR2 Out of town centre development 
TCR3 Protection of shops in town centres 
TCR 4 Protection of local shops 
M8 Access Roads 
M9 Car free residential developments 
OS4 Alexandra Park and Palace 
OS17 Tree Protection, tree masses and spines 
CSV 7 Demolition in Conservation Areas 
CSV8 Archaeology 
M10 Parking for Development  
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance   
  
Haringey Heartlands Development Framework 2005 
 
SPG1a 'Design Guidance'  
SPG2 Conservation and Archaeology 
SPG4 Access for All – Mobility Standards 
SPG5 Safety by Design 
SPG6a Shopfriont, signagge and Security 
SPG7a ‘Vehcile and Pedestrians Movement’ 
SPG7b ‘Travel Plans’ 
SPG7c ‘Transport Assessments’  
SPG8a 'Waste and Recycling' 
SPG8b ‘Materials’ 
SPG8c Environemtnal Perforamnce 
SPG8d Biodiversity/landscaping/trees 
SPG8e Light Pollution  
SPG8f ‘Land Contamination’ 
SPG9 ‘Sustainability Statement’ 

Page 38



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

SPG10a ‘The negotiation, management and monitoring of planning 
obligations’ 
SPG10b ‘Affordable Housing’ 
SPG10c ‘Educational Needs generated by new housing development’ 
SPG 11c Town Centre Retail Thresholds 
Open Space and Recreational Standards SPD 
Sustainable Design and Construction SPD 
 
SPD - Housing ('Density, Dwelling Mix, Floor space Minima, Conversions,  
Extensions and Lifetime Homes') 
 
Mayor’s Housing SPG 
Mayor’s Shaping Neighbourhoods: Play and Informal Recreation SPG 
 

Page 39



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

13.0 CONSULTATION 
 
 

13.1 The applicant carried out public consultation prior to the submission of the 
application.  This occurred in three stages:  
 

May 2013: Understanding the issues – involving one-to-one 
interviews with representatives of different local stakeholder groups 
 

June 2013: Masterplan development – Two workshops and three 
exhibitions were held to understand local views on initial proposals. 
232 people attended the exhibition, 60 people attended a workshop, 
97 feedback forms were received and 30 quick comment forms were 
received 
 

September 2013: Detailed design – Three exhibitions were held to 
discuss the proposals and the revisions made in response to the 
previous consultation. 232 people attended the exhibition, 89 
feedback forms were received and 26 Quick Comment formswere 
received 
 

13.2 The applicant also consulted the Local Planning Authority, the Greater 
London Authority, Transport for London, the Environment Agency and the 
Haringey Design Panel during the design process. 
 

13.3 After submission, residents of 3,935 local properties were consulted in two 
rounds in September and December 2013. 
 

13.4 From local residents, 86 responses were received as of the X of January 
2014. 80 were in objection and 6 were in support.  
 

13.5 Development Management Forums were held on the 26th and 27th of 
November and were attended by 103 people. The minutes can be found in 
Appendix 2.  
 

13.6 A summary of statutory consultees’, residents’ and stakeholders’ 
comments and objections can be found in Appendix 1. Planning Officers 
have considered all consultation responses and have commented on these 
both in Appendix 1 and within the relevant sections of the assessment in 
section 8.0 of this report. 
 

13.7 While the statutory consultation period is 21 days from the receipt of the 
consultation letter, the planning service has a policy of accepting 
comments right up until the Planning Sub-Committee meeting and in view 
of this the number of letters received is likely to rise further after the 
officer’s report is finalised but before the planning application is 
determined. These additional comments will be reported verbally to the 
planning sub-committee. 
 

Page 40



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

13.8 The table below list all internal and external bodies consulted. 

Internal External 

Ward Councillors 

Building Control 

Cleansing 

Transportation  

Housing, Design & Major 
Projects 

Housing Renewal 

Conservation and Design  

Environmental Health – 
Contaminated Land 

Environmental Health – Noise 
& Pollution 

Arboricultural Officer 

Economic Regeneration 

Education 

Licensing 
 

Greater London Authority 

Natural England 

English Heritage 

GLAAS 

Thames Water  

TfL Street Management 

Arriva London 

Metropolitan Police 

Environment Agency 

London Fire Brigade 

Hornsey CAAC 

Campsbourne Residents 
Association 

Friends of Priory Park 

MORRSH 

Warner Estate Residents 
Association 

Alexandra Palace & Park 
CAAC 

Alexandra Park and Palace 
Charitable Trust 

New River Village Residents 
Association  

 
Residents of 3,935 local properties 
were consulted in two rounds in 
September and December 2013 
 

 
14.0 ANALYSIS / ASSESSMENT OF APPLICATION 

 
 

14.1 Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
 

14.1.1 Haringey Local Plan Policy SP0 states that: 
 
When considering development proposals the Council will take a positive 
approach that reflects the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development contained in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). 
The Council will always work proactively with applicants to find solutions, 
which mean that proposals can be approved wherever possible and to 
secure development that improves the economic social and environmental 
conditions in Haringey. Planning applications that accord will be approved 
without delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies 

Page 41



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

are out of date at the time of making the decision, then the Council will 
grant permission unless material considerations indicate otherwise taking 
into account whether: 

 
• Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies of 
the NPPF taken as a whole; or 

 
• Specific policies in the NPPF indicate that development should be 
restricted. 

 
14.1.2 The proposal can be considered as an example of sustainable development 

in that it seeks to make more intensive use of a previously used site to 
provide residential accommodation, retail and commercial space in an 
accessible location and in a local centre. Accordingly, the proposal is 
afforded positive consideration in development plan terms given that there 
is a presumption in favour of sustainable development. 
 

14.1.3 There are a number of benefits to this scheme that outweigh any perceived 
disbenefits. The following analysis explains these. 
 
 

14.2 Regeneration Context and Principle of Development  
 
 

14.2.1 The application site is identified at various levels of planning policy as being 

suitable for more intensive development as explained below.  

 

14.2.2 The London Plan 2011 identifies this site as being within the Haringey 

Heartlands/Wood Green ‘Area for Intensification’. These Areas of 

Intensification are considered to have the capacity to accommodate 

substantial new jobs and homes.  The London Plan anticipates that this 

area can accommodate 2000 jobs and at least 1000 homes through mixed-

use schemes at optimum densities.  

 

14.2.3 Haringey Local Plan 2013 Policy SP1 sets out that the Council will focus 

growth in the most suitable locations and identifies two growth areas, 

Haringey Heartlands and Tottenham Hale. The Council will expect 

development in Growth Areas to provide substantial jobs, homes, maximise 

site opportunities, provides links, benefits and infrastructure for 

surrounding areas and be in accordance with Council planning policies.  

 

14.2.4 The site forms part of a wider site identified in the saved policies of the 
Unitary Development Plan 2006 as being suitable for ‘Comprehensive 
mixed use development to include employment, retail, housing, restaurant, 
healthcare and community facilities, including education.’ 

Page 42



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

 

14.2.5 The Haringey Heartlands Development Framework was developed in 2005 

to guide development in this Area of Intensification. The framework area is 

divided into a number of different character areas and the application site is 

located in the ‘Western Utilities Lands’ and ‘Hornsey High Street’ areas. In 

respect of land use, a mix of housing, employment and community facilities 

as well as medium size food store are sought within the Western Utilities 

Lands; and within the Hornsey High Street area, development should 

deliver an extended retail and leisure offer to support the town centre 

function of the High Street.  

 

14.2.6 The proposed development responds to this policy context by providing a 

mix of residential, retail, live/work and a flexible commercial unit on the 

High Street. The development is posed at a high density to optimise site 

use and it is considered that the proposal responds appropriately to the 

objectives set out in planning policy and supporting documents. 

 

14.2.7 The development will result in the loss of some light/general industrial uses. 

The site is not in a designated employment area however the provision of a 

foodstore will result in a net increase in employment opportunities on the 

site (estimated at 120 full and part time jobs). Local employment 

opportunities during the construction period will be secured by s106 

agreement. This element of the proposal is supported by London Plan 

Policies 4.4 and 4.12, Local Plan 2013 policies SP8 and SP9, and Saved 

UDP 2006 Policy EMP4. 

 

14.2.8 The principle of retail development is discussed in Section 8.4 ‘Town 

Centres and Retail Impact’. 

 

14.2.9 The principle of additional housing is supported by London Plan Policies 
3.3 ‘Increasing Housing Supply’ and 3.4 ‘Optimising Housing Potential’. It is 
also supported by Haringey Local Plan Policy SP2 ‘Housing’. The Haringey 
Local Plan sets out a target of 8,200 dwellings between 2011 and 2021 and 
the development will contribute 438 dwellings, or 5% of the requirement 
over that period. 

 

Page 43



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

14.2.10 The two live/work units on Cross Lane provide flexible workspace and 
activity on this frontage of the development. They are of acceptable size 
and layout having regard to Saved UDP 2006 Policy EMP7.  
 

14.2.11 The proposed development is considered to respond appropriately to the 
policy context set by the national, London and local planning policy and the 
principle of development is considered acceptable. 
 

14.3 Existing waste use 
 

14.3.1 Currently the site accommodates a household waste re-use and recycling 
facility. London Plan Policy 5.17 affords strategic protection to waste sites 
in order to safeguard and enhance London’s future waste capacity. This is 
reinforced by Haringey Local Plan 2013 Policy SP6, which resists loss of 
waste sites unless appropriate re-provision is made. 
 

14.3.2 Planning permission was granted in December 2013 to bring a former 
depot on Western Road, N22 back into use in order to provide a 
replacement facility. This Western Road site is larger than the Hornsey Site, 
in a less congested location and does not adjoin any residential 
development. Western Road currently does not form part of the North 
London Waste Authority’s waste strategy and its use as a replacement 
facility will not take away from existing capacity. Consequently, it is 
considered to be suitable location for a replacement waste facility. The 
facility will be able to accept the same type and amount of waste accepted 
at the Hornsey facility and will be operational in time to avoid a gap in 
provision. 
 

14.3.3 The proposed loss of the existing waste facility will be mitigated by a 
replacement facility provided in a timely fashion, in compliance with the 
above policies and as such is acceptable.  
 

14.4 Town Centres and Retail Impact 
 

14.4.1 The High Street frontage of the application site lies within a designated 
Local Shopping Centre as identified in the Haringey Local Plan. The 
proposed development provides a 3,250 sq. m (GIA) foodstore outside the 
Local Shopping Centre but near its boundary. 
 

14.4.2 The NPPF (paragraph 23) highlights that planning policies should be 
positive, promote competitive town centre environments and encourage 
growth of centres, and that for developments that are not in an existing 
centre and not in accordance with an up-to-date Local Plan, applicants are 
required to satisfy the sequential test  (paragraph 24).  

 

14.4.3 The London Plan 2011 sets region-wide planning policy including policy in 
relation to retail and town centre development. Policy 2.15 states that 
boroughs and other stakeholders should coordinate the development of 
London’s network of town centres so they provide, among other things:  

Page 44



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

‘the structure for sustaining and improving a competitive choice of goods 
and services conveniently accessible to all Londoners, particularly by 
public transport, cycling and walking’. 
 

14.4.4 Policy 4.7 states that in relation to proposed retail development: 
 

It should be related to the town centre’s size, role, function and 
catchment;  

It should be focused on sites within town centres or on the edges of 
centres or if no in-centre sites are available, on sites on the edges of 
centres that are, or can be, well integrated with the existing centre 
and public transport; and  

Proposals for new, extensions to existing or out of town centre 
development will be subject to an assessment of impact 

 
14.4.5 Policy 4.8 supports the provision of convenience retail in district, 

neighbourhood and more local centres.  
 

14.4.6 The Haringey Local Plan 2013 Policy SP10 sets out the Council’s aims for 
town and local centres in the Borough. In relation to designated Local 
Shopping Centres such as Hornsey High Street, core local shopping 
facilities and services such as convenience retail will be supported.  
 

14.4.7 Policy TCR2 of the earlier UDP 2006 has been saved and it applies to retail 
development which is outside the designated town and local centres. It 
states that:   
 
Proposals for new retail development outside the identified town and local 
shopping centres should demonstrate that: 

a) there is a need and the sequential approach as advocated by 
Government guidance has been appropriately applied; 
b) it will not have a demonstrably harmful effect on the vitality and 
viability of any nearby centres; 
c) the amenity and environment of occupiers of adjacent and nearby 
properties are not adversely affected; 
d) it is, or can be made, readily accessible by a choice of means of 
transport, including by bike and foot; or 
e) the proposal complies with an adopted Planning Framework. 

 

14.4.8 The Haringey Heartlands Development Framework 2005 identifies the 
application site as being appropriate for a medium size food store no larger 
than 2,500sq. m (GIA).  
 
Need 
 

14.4.9 The Haringey Heartlands Development Framework and later Local Plan 
2013 were informed by the results of Retail and Town Centres Study 
(RTCS) by Nathanial Lichfield and Partners undertaken in 2008. The study 

Page 45



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

found that existing convenience facilities were trading well above a 
benchmark turnover, with Muswell Hill and Crouch End in particular trading 
particularly high. The study concluded that there is significant potential for 
further convenience goods floorspace provision in the Borough.  
 

14.4.10 The consultants who undertook the retail assessments undertook their own 
study in July 2012 to determine the need for a foodstore based on surveys 
and existing data. The study found there was significant evidence in favour 
of additional convenience shopping floorspace in Hornsey. This has been 
acknowledged in planning policy and in the Secretary of State’s decision to 
grant the earlier planning permission for a foodstore of 3,790 sq. m on this 
site, which is larger than foodstore anticipated in the Development 
Framework and larger than the foodstore currently proposed. Officers 
agree with this analysis.   
 
Town centre location 

 

14.4.11 The proposal consists of two retail/town centres uses, the foodstore and 
the High Street commercial unit. The High Street unit is within the boundary 
of the Local Shopping Centre and will form part of the existing shopping 
frontage.  
 

14.4.12 National, regional and local policy requires that the sequential approach to 
site selection should be applied to all development proposals for retail 
development that are not in an existing centre and not in accordance with 
an up-to-date development plan. The proposed foodstore is located just 
outside of the Local Shopping Centre boundary however, the practice 
guidance to PPS4, ‘Planning for Town Centres: Practice guidance on need, 
impact and the sequential approach (2009)’ advises that when judging 
whether proposals should be regarded as ‘in centre’, it is appropriate to 
consider the degree of integration and linkage between the proposal and 
the rest of the Primary Shopping area and whether they will genuinely 
function together. It is considered that due to the proximity and layout of 
the proposal, the foodstore will integrate with and become part of the Local 
Shopping Centre and therefore a sequential assessment is not required.. 
The GLA has also taken this view.    
 
Sequential test 
 

14.4.13 Despite the above view, the applicant has undertaken a sequential test. The 
sequential test requires that applications for main town centre uses should 
be located in town centres, then in edge of centre of location and only if 
suitable sites are not available should out of centre sites be considered 
(NPPF paragraph 24). 
 

14.4.14 The applicants have submitted a retail assessment prepared by Turley 
Associates which applies the sequential approach by assessing alternative 
sites capable of accommodating a 2,500 sq. m foodstore (as this is the size 
of foodstore set out in the Development Framework) and whether they are 

Page 46



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

likely to become available within a reasonable period of time, whether the 
site is suitable for the type of development proposed and whether it is 
viable for the proposed development.  
 

14.4.15 The assessment looked at sites in other centres in the borough but found 
that there were no more centrally located sites available, suitable or viable 
to accommodate the proposed foodstore.  The Council is satisfied with this 
assessment 
 
Retail Impact 
 

14.4.16 The submitted retail assessment assessed the likely impact on nearby town 
centres. As the proposal will introduce additional convenience good 
floorspace into Hornsey High Street, there is likely to be some impact on 
existing convenience trading on Hornsey High Street and nearby town 
centres. This is estimated to be -11.4% on Muswell Hill, -11.0% on Crouch 
End, -5.6% for Hornsey High Street, -5.4% Wood Green, -5.0% Green 
Lanes and -1.4% Park Road/Priory Road.  
 

14.4.17 Although there will be an impact, it is not considered to be ‘significantly 
adverse’ as required by the NPPF for refusal to be considered. It is noted 
that the greatest impact will fall on Muswell Hill and Crouch End, which are 
both noted to be overtrading. It should also be noted that the impact is 
caused by convenience expenditure being retained locally rather than 
spread further away from these centres. There is likely to be no significant 
impact on other type of expenditure, such as comparison goods, and 
therefore the overall health of nearby centres will remain positive due to the 
wide range of goods and services provided.   

 

14.4.18 The proposed foodstore is 3,250 sq. m (GIA), with a net sales area of 
2,100sq. m. The Haringey Heartlands Development Framework envisions a 
foodstore of not more than 2,500 sq. m (GIA). However, the submitted retail 
impact assessment demonstrates that there is capacity for a foodstore of 
greater size (3,903 sq. m GIA, as considered in the study).  

 

14.4.19 In the Inspector’s decision to support the earlier proposal for a foodstore 
on this site (which was 3,790 sq. m GIA), it was considered, in light of the 
decision, that a store of this size would be appropriate to the scale of 
Hornsey High Street Local Shopping Centre. Officers are of the view that 
the size of the foodstore proposed is required for it to adequately function 
as an anchor and provide an alternative to stores elsewhere. GLA officers 
hold the same view stating that the size of the foodstore proposed is 
required to encourage shoppers to change shopping patterns and shop 
locally.  

 

14.4.20 This proposed function of the foodstore as an anchor to the local shopping 
centre will be supported by the proposed surface car park which will offer 
90 minutes free parking. This will strongly encourage linked shopping trips 

Page 47



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

within Hornsey High street resulting in increased locally retained 
expenditure.  

 

14.4.21 The proposed foodstore is therefore considered to cause no significant 
adverse impact on the immediate and nearby local and town centres. 
Although the foodstore is larger than that envisioned by the Development 
Framework, it is smaller than the foodstore approved in 2000 by Secretary 
of State and its size is considered appropriate to the local centre and the 
foodstore’s proposed function as an anchor. The proposal is therefore 
considered to be in compliance with the relevant retail and town centre 
planning policy discussed above.  
 

 

14.5 Socio-economic Impact 
 

14.5.1 The submitted Environmental Statement assessed the likely social, 
economic, community and health related impacts resulting from the 
development.  
 
Employment 
 

14.5.2 Construction of the proposed development will support existing jobs 
directly and indirectly through the supply chain. The number of jobs 
supported directly supported is estimated to be 1,106. Based on the 
construction cost of the development, it is estimated that two graduate 
jobs, eleven apprentice starts, nine new jobs and seventeen National 
Vocational Qualification (NVQ) placements will be provided as a result of 
the development.  
 

14.5.3 The s106 agreement includes clauses which require that at least 20% of 
the on-site work force consists of Haringey residents, of which half will be 
trainees. 
 

14.5.4 When the development is completed the foodstore will support 120 
permanent jobs. 
 

14.5.5 The development is supported by London Plan Policies 4.4 and 4.12, Local 
Plan 2013 policies SP8 and SP9, and Saved UDP 2006 Policy EMP4 
 
Housing 
 

14.5.6 The development will contribute to the borough’s housing supply of both 
private and affordable housing supported by London Plan Policies 3.3 
‘Increasing Housing Supply’ and 3.4 ‘Optimising Housing Potential’. It is 
also supported by Haringey Local Plan Policy SP2 ‘Housing’. 
 
Health and Education 
 

Page 48



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

14.5.7 The Environmental Statement estimates that the development will generate 
a need for less than one additional GP and dentist. Overall there is capacity 
within existing facilities and the impact is considered to be minor. 
 

14.5.8 Taking the child yield of the proposal and using the Council’s methodology 
for calculating education contributions the standard education contribution 
for this development would be £1,226,845. Given the priority in this scheme 
for affordable housing and given the viability position a reduced 
contribution of £500,000 has been agreed given that expansions are at 
feasibility stage for a school close to this site and given the funding that has 
been received from Department for Education.  The £500,000 contribution 
from this site will go towards future expansions. 
 

14.5.9 On balance, the proposed development is in compliance London Plan 
Policies 3.17 and 3.18, and Local Plan Policies SP14, 15 and 16. 
 

 
14.6 Density 

 
14.6.1 National, London and local policy seeks to ensure that new housing 

development makes the most efficient use of land and takes a design 
approach to meeting density requirements. 
 

14.6.2 Table 3.2 of the London Plan sets out the acceptable range for density 
according to the Public Transport Accessibility (PTAL) of a site. The site is 
considered to be in an ‘urban’ context and has a PTAL of 3, thus 
development should be within the density range of 200 to 450 habitable 
rooms per hectare (hr/ha). However, the Haringey Heartlands Development 
Framework anticipates densities up to 700 hr/ha for development within its 
area.   

 

14.6.3 Accounting for the foodstore and High Street building, the proposed 
development has a density of 602 hr/ha. When the foodstore carpark , 
delivery yard and access road are also accounted for, the density is 
665hr/ha. Although this is beyond the density range set out by the London 
Plan, it is within the density range anticipated by the Development 
Framework and accords with its vision to optimise development density 
within the Framework area. The GLA have no objection to the proposed 
density. Officers’ consider that the density is appropriate to the site and will 
allow for the delivery of affordable housing and development on this long 
under-utilised site.  

 

 
14.7 Dwelling Mix 

 
14.7.1 The NPPF recognises that to create sustainable, inclusive and diverse 

communities, a mix of housing based on demographic and market trends 
and the needs of different groups should be provided. London Plan Policy 
3.8 ‘Housing Choice’ of the London Plan seeks to ensure that development 

Page 49



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

schemes deliver a range of housing choices in terms of a mix of housing 
and types. This approach is continued in Haringey Local Plan SP2 Housing, 
which is supported by the Council’s Housing SPD. 
 

14.7.2 The proposal provides 438 residential units with the following mix: 
 

Unit  Amount % proportion 

Studio 12 2.7% 

1 bedroom 141 32.2% 

2 bedroom 270 61.2% 

3 bedroom 7 1.6% 

4 bedroom 8 1.8% 

 438 100% 

 

 

14.7.3 Although the mix deviates from the recommended mix set out in the 
Council’s Housing SPD, by providing a higher number of 1- and 2- bedroom 
dwellings, the development is able to provide a high level of affordable 
housing (42%), which far exceeds levels achieved in other large 
developments in Haringey. If the scheme had a higher provision of larger 
units, it would result in a lower overall provision of affordable housing. It 
should be noted that all of the 3- and 4- bedroom units will be affordable 
rent. 
 

14.7.4 The proposed housing will still help to address local housing need. There 
are 893 people on the Housing Register for Hornsey, of these, 722 or 82% 
require a 1- or 2-bedroom property. Of those with the greatest or most 
severe housing need (i.e. those in ‘Band A’), 86% require a 1- or 2-bedroom 
property.  
 

14.7.5 On balance, officers accept the proposed mix given it enables the provision 
of a higher level of affordable housing set out above.  
 
 

14.8 Affordable Housing  
 

14.8.1 The NPPF states that where it is identified that affordable housing is 
needed, planning policies should be set for meeting this need on site, 
unless off-site provision or a financial contribution of broadly equivalent 
value can be robustly justified and the agreed approach contributes to the 
objective of creating mixed and balanced communities.  However, such 
policies should be sufficiently flexible to take account of changing market 
conditions over time (para. 50). 
 

14.8.2 Similarly, The London Plan (2011), Policy 3.12 states that Boroughs should 
seek “the maximum reasonable amount of affordable housing...when 
negotiating on individual private residential and mixed-use schemes”, 
having regard to their affordable housing targets, the need to encourage 
rather than restrain residential development and the individual 

Page 50



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

circumstances including development viability”. 
 

14.8.3 Policy SP2 of the Local Plan requires developments of more than 10 units to 
provide a proportion of affordable housing subject to viability to meet an 
overall borough target of 50%.  
 

14.8.4 The proposed development provides affordable housing as 38% of units in 
the scheme and 42% of habitable rooms.  Affordable housing is provided as 
social rented housing and shared ownership. The table below provides the 
breakdown of units.  
 

Unit Type Number % proportion 

Affordable Rented   

1-bedroom 11 15% 

2-bedroom 48 65% 

3-bedroom 7 9% 

4-bedroom 8 11% 

Total 74 100% 

Intermediate   

1-bedroom 32 34% 

2-bedroom 62 66% 

Total 94 100% 

  
 
14.8.5 The mix between affordable rented units and intermediate is 45:55 by 

number of units. By number of habitable rooms, 48% of the affordable 
housing is for affordable rent, 29% of which are 3- and 4-bedroom units. 
Whilst this is not in line with Local Plan Policy and Guidance, local planning 
officers consider that this is acceptable as it allows for a high percentage of 
affordable housing overall.  

 
14.8.6 The applicant has sought to maximise the provision affordable housing 

having regard to development costs. The applicant submitted a financial 
viability assessment in support of its application and the Council sought 
independent advice to verify the assessment and its conclusions. The 
viability assessment was found to be sound and the Council is satisfied that 
the maximum amount of affordable housing has been provided.  
 

14.8.7 Should the application be approved, the applicant has agreed that the 
affordable housing element will be delivered first, before all other elements 
of the scheme (foodstore and private housing) are delivered. 
 

14.9 Standard of Accommodation 
 

14.9.1 London Plan Policy 3.5 ‘Quality and Design of Housing Developments’ 
requires the design of all new housing developments to  enhance the quality 
of local places and for the dwelling in particular to be of sufficient size and 
quality. The standards by which this is measured are set out in the Mayor’s 

Page 51



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

Housing SPG.  
 

14.9.2 All units within the development meet or exceed the minimum floorspace 
standards set out in the Mayor’s Housing SPG and the Council’s Housing 
SPD.  
 

14.9.3 The scheme has been designed to minimise north facing single aspect units 
however, due to the size of the development and site constraints, some 
single aspect north facing units remain. Initially, 7% of units were north 
facing and single aspect. Following a revision this has been reduced to 6% 
(26 units). To increase light and quality for these units, 60% of these units 
will have floor-to-ceiling heights of 2.6m (2.5m where not possible) and will 
benefit from large windows. This approach is recommended in the Mayor’s 
Housing SPG and is considered acceptable.  
 

14.9.4 A daylight and sunlight assessment has been undertaken to review the 
quality of the light that would be achieved by the proposed development. It 
was found that, in the worst case scenario, 91% of rooms tested would 
receive light in excess of the BRE guidelines. Of the 22 non-compliant 
rooms, 13 are bedrooms where it is recognised that daylight is less 
important. Therefore, only nine or 3% of main habitable rooms would 
receive light levels below BRE guidelines. Five of these are in affordable 
accommodation and four in the private accommodation. The Officer’s are 
satisfied that on balance, the proposed dwellings would receive adequate 
daylight and sunlight.  
 

14.9.5 In accordance with the Mayor’s Housing SPG, every unit has the benefit of 
a private outdoor amenity space of sufficient size and depth to be useable 
(minimum 5sq. m area and 1.5m depth).  
 

14.9.6 In addition to private amenity space, 2,290sq. m of communal amenity 
space is provided in the courtyard of the private residential block (‘Hornsey 
Gardens’) and 890 sq. m in the larger affordable block (‘Quadrangle’). The 
level of provision of exceeds that required by Haringey’s Housing SPD. 
Furthermore, ground floor units to Blocks H and J have direct access to 
their own gardens with the majority of ground floor family units in Block J 
having gardens more than 50 sq. m in area.   

 

14.9.7 All ground floor units which face onto the public realm have their own 
private entrance.  
 

14.9.8 The standard of accommodation for the proposed residential units is 
considered acceptable overall having regard to the above policies. 
 

14.10 Child Playspace 
 

14.10.1 London Plan Policy 3.6 ‘Children and young people’s play and informal 
recreation facilities’ requires developments make provision for play and 
informal recreation, based on the expected child population generated by 

Page 52



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

the scheme. The Mayor’s SPG "Shaping Neighbourhoods: Play and 
Informal Recreation" 2012 provides minimum standards for the provision of 
children’s play space. The Haringey Open Space and Recreation Standards 
SPD sets out the Council’s own play space standards under the Local Plan. 
 

14.10.2 Using the formula set out in the above SPG the scheme would have a child 
yield of 130, requiring 1300 sq. m of play space (10sqm per child) of which 
670 sq. m of this space is required for children 0-4 years old. Playspace for 
this age group is provided on-site with informal space within the communal 
amenity areas and play equipment provided in the public realm. It is 
anticipated that older children will play in the public realm areas or at 
nearby Prior and Alexandra Parks (both less than 800m away). The GLA are 
satisfied with this approach.  
 

14.10.3 Cabinet on the 17th December 2013 approved the “Haringey outdoor events 
policy.” This included a recommendation that additional income, over and 
above the agreed income target for events in parks, would be reinvested to 
support the maintenance and improvement of park assets. Current 
forecasts for event income for 2014/15 indicate that a reasonable level of 
additional income will be generated. Cabinet is also currently considering 
the case for approval of Council capital expenditure for parks and open 
spaces for 2014/15 to 2016/17 and improvements are proposed to a 
number of parks.  
 

14.10.4 Given this and the level of provision that is already available in Alexandra 
Park, which is also currently proposing a programme of works the provision 
for older children is considered sufficient.  
 

14.10.5 The development is considered acceptable in respect of playspace 
provision having regard to the above policies.  
 

14.11 Inclusive Design and Access 
 

14.11.1 London Plan Policy 7.2 ‘Inclusive Environment’ requires development to 
follow the principles of inclusive design and to meet the highest standards 
of accessibility and inclusion. Haringey Local Plan Policy SP11, Haringey 
UDP Policy UD3 “General Principles” and SPG 4 “Access for All – Mobility 
Standards” all seek to ensure that there is access to and around the site 
and that the mobility needs of pedestrians, cyclists and people with 
difficulties are considered. 
 

14.11.2 10% of all units within each tenure type are provided as wheelchair 
accessible units and these have been distributed across the development 
to provide a variety of choice. They are accessible from the ground floor or 
from cores which have at least two lifts. They are also located in cores with 
direct access to parking unless they are located on the ground floor. One 
Blue Badge parking space is provided per wheelchair accessible dwelling.  
 

Page 53



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

14.11.3 All flats are fully Lifetime Homes compliant and conditions will be applied 
securing this standard and the provision of the wheelchair homes.  
 

14.11.4 The development is considered to be in compliance with the above 
policies.  
 
 

14.12 Design and appearance 
 

14.12.1 London Plan Policies 7.4 ‘Local Character’ and 7.6 ‘Architecture’ require 
development proposals to be of the highest design quality and have 
appropriate regard to local context. Haringey Local Plan Policy SP11 and 
Saved UDP Policy UD3 ‘General Principles’ continue this approach 
 

14.12.2 The overall arrangement of the development is based around north-south 
and east-west axes. These serve as both public realm and publicly 
accessible pedestrian routes through the site. Where these routes intersect 
is a small public square, which represents the centre of the site. Just to the 
south-west of the square is a surface carpark serving the foodstore. The 
rest of the site is occupied by buildings varying in height from three to eight 
storeys and associated amenity space.  
 

14.12.3 The proposed development is presented having three character areas: The 
High Street, the Moselle Quarter and Hornsey Gardens.  
 
Moselle Quarter 

 

14.12.4 The Moselle Quarter consists of three buildings, the Quadrangle, Moselle 
House and Myddelton House. The Quadrangle is in the north west corner of 
the site and is arranged in a perimeter block form. It is between four and 
seven storeys in height with the highest element located towards the public 
square in the centre of the site. This keeps the bulk away from surrounding 
development and balances the height difference between this building and 
the eight storey element of the Hornsey Gardens building. This perimeter 
block form is considered acceptable and the podium courtyard will provide 
an acceptable amenity space.  
 

14.12.5 On Miles Road and Myddelton Road, the Quadrangle building is 4-storeys 
with a set back fifth storey. The lower two storeys consist of maisonettes 
with separate ground floor entrances and elements of defensible space. 
This results in safe and active frontages, improving the pedestrian 
environment.  
 

14.12.6 Myddelton House is located in the west of the site, facing Myddelton Road. 
It is 4-storeys with a set back fifth storey, matching the height of the 
Quadrangle building where it faces Myddelton Road and the recently 
consented residential development at Pembroke Works. Like the 
Quadrangle, the ground floor units have their own private entrances with 

Page 54



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

defensible space to create an active street frontage.  
 

14.12.7 Moselle House is to the east and is the smallest building due to its proximity 
to the neighbouring development on Moselle Close. It is mostly 3-storeys 
but with a 4-storey element towards the public square in the centre of the 
site. This building acts as a suitable transition between the bulk of the 
development and surrounding buildings.  
 
Hornsey Gardens 

 
14.12.8 The Hornsey Gardens character area comprises the foodstore and 

residential accommodation in a horseshoe arrangement above. In the 
centre is a large communal amenity space. The building is eight storeys on 
the side which faces the car park. The height steps down to just over four 
storeys at the junction of Cross Lane and Great Amwell Lane and 5-storeys 
toward the new High Street building in order to soften the transition in 
heights to surrounding development.  
 

14.12.9 It was initially proposed that this building be ten storeys high but it was 
reduced to eight following public feedback. The building bulk was 
redistributed elsewhere along the western edge of building. However, 
through a regular pattern of reductions in height and recesses in the 
facade, the building maintains a strong character of verticality and visual 
interest.  
 

14.12.10 Further south on Cross Lane where development is characterised by 
industrial and commercial development, the building is seven storeys high 
as this frontage is considered less sensitive to height. However, the same 
approach to articulation and massing used to give the building a strong 
vertical character on this elevation. 
 
High Street  

 

14.12.11 The site’s frontage onto the High Street consists of a new 3- and 4-
storey building and an access road into the site. The building is modern in 
appearance but is designed to maintain the existing height, building line 
and rhythm of detail on the High Street.  

 

14.12.12 This building has a commercial unit and the concierge for Hornsey 
Gardens residents on the ground floor and residential above. Large shop 
windows on the front and side will create an active frontage on the High 
Street and into the site as the activity will feed into the active frontage of 
the foodstore. As such, it will appear and function as an extension to the 
local shopping centre.   
 
Materials 
 

14.12.13 The material palette for the development is oriented towards brick with 
little ornamentation but with detail achieved by variations in brick type, 

Page 55



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

elements of cladding and by recesses in the facade to denote entrances, 
windows or other facade elements. The exact materials will be secured by 
condition however the proposed palette is for a mixture of buff brick and 
red brick, bronze colour feature panelling and bronze coloured or glass 
balconies (bronze for Hornsey Gardens and glass for Moselle Quarter). The 
proposal will result in a development of modern appearance but with strong 
reference to the brick vernacular of the area. Officers are satisfied with the 
proposed approach to materials. 
 

14.12.14 The applicant has consulted GLA officers when developing the 
scheme and in their Stage I letter, the GLA has indicated its support. The 
proposals were taken twice to the Haringey Design Panel. The response 
was mixed but suggestions relating to the High Street building, parapets 
heights and treatment of the facades were followed. 
 

14.12.15 The design, appearance and massing of the development was an 
issue raised by the local resident objections. These points have been 
addressed in the preceding sections but are summarised and responded to 
in Appendix 1. 
 

14.12.16 In summary, Haringey officers are satisfied with the bulk and massing 
of the development as it provides a high density development with an 
arrangement sensitive to the character and scale of surrounding 
development. It provides new high quality pedestrian links to areas north of 
the site, greatly improving pedestrian permeability. The materials and 
detailing are considered to relate satisfactorily to the existing character. 
The proposal is considered to be in compliance with the above policies.  
 

14.13 Safety by Design 
 

14.13.1 London Plan 2011 Policy 7.3 and Haringey Local Plan 2013 Policy SP11 
seek to reduce crime and the fear of crime through appropriate design 
solutions, including those which follow the principles set out in ‘Secured by 
Design’ and ‘Safer Places’ documents.  
 

14.13.2 The proposal has been designed in consultation with Andrew Snape, 
Haringey Crime Prevention Officer. All amenity spaces and public realm 
benefit from passive surveillance from adjoining residential properties. 
Ground floor units will have direct access to the street to encourage activity 
on the frontages. The new pedestrian routes provided by the public realm 
will be heavily overlooked and encourage activity into the site and improve 
safe access to surrounding areas. Access to shared residential spaces, 
bicycle stores, parking area and cores will be restricted by a key fob and 
there will be a videocom service to each flat. Residents with a parking 
space will have an infra-red control to operate the carpark entrance 
shutters.  
 

14.13.3 Officers are satisfied that the development has been designed with due 
regard to the need to minimise crime and fear of crime in accordance with 

Page 56



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

the above policies.  
 

14.14 Impact on Conservation Area and other Heritage Assets 
 

14.14.1 Policy 7.8 ‘Heritage Assets and Archaeology’ of the London Plan requires 
development to conserve the significance of the heritage asset. Haringey 
Local Plan Policy SP12 seeks to ensure that proposals affecting 
Conservation Areas preserve or enhance the historic character of the 
Conservation Area. 
 

14.14.2 The application has been assessed by the Council’s Conservation and 
Design team and no objection is held.  
 
Assessment of the applicant’s Heritage Significance and impact of new 

development  

 

14.14.3 It is felt that the applicant’s assessment of the heritage significance of the 

various assets as contained within the Heritage Statement and the 

Archaeology and Cultural Heritage Chapter of the ES could have been 

more comprehensive.  

 

14.14.4 The overall criterion for assessing significance of the heritage assets and 

the subsequent analysis of the impact of the development states that the 

development would only have a minor negative and temporary impact on 

the designated and non-designated assets. For example, paragraph 7.5.12 

of the Cultural Heritage Chapter in the ES states that the change in the 

setting of the Horney High Street would be temporary and would have 

minor negative significance. It is considered, however, that the scale of the 

proposed development it would have a significant permanent affect on the 

setting of the conservation area. Similarly, the demolition of the baths 

would also lead to the total loss of a non-designated heritage asset, which 

at present contributes positively to the conservation area.  

 

Principle of demolition 

 

14.14.5 The development forms part of a wider regeneration of the site providing a 

significant number of new homes to the borough and a retail unit to 

facilitate the High Street activities. Whilst regrettable, given their present 

condition, the retention and reuse of the bath buildings would be difficult 

and impractical. English Heritage in an e-mail dated 16th January 2014 

recognise that for the council to consider whether the loss causes harm to 

the Conservation area (having regard to para 134 of the NPPF). Officers 

consider that the demolition, necessitated by the development would be 

acceptable in this instance. A minimum of Level 3 recording as per English 

Page 57



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

Heritage’s guidance to ‘Understanding Historic Buildings: A guide to good 

recording practice’ should be submitted prior to works on site and should 

be conditioned accordingly. 

 

Retention of the bay containing the arched doorway and crest  

 

14.14.6 The principle of this retention is welcomed. Whilst in conservation terms it 

is not ideal to relocate a salvaged architectural feature, it successfully 

disguises what could be an unattractive elevation of the substation. It is, 

therefore, acceptable only in this instance. 

  

New development 

 

14.14.7 The various aspects of the proposed development are as discussed below: 

 

Layout 

 

14.14.8 The development would involve creation of a new access road off the High 

Street. This would act as the main route for delivery vehicles for the retail 

use as well as the residential users. To facilitate the permeability of the site, 

the scheme proposes further residential vehicular access from Myddleton 

Road, Cross Lane and Miles Road/Mosselle Close. This creates four 

separate quadrants through the site.  

 

14.14.9 The larger blocks, Moselle quadrangle and Hornsey Gardens, are placed at 

the northwest and southeast of the quadrant with the smaller blocks placed 

at northeast and southwest. A large car park would be created at street 

level opposite the Horney Gardens West elevation. The landscaped areas 

would be contained within the larger blocks as amenity spaces for the 

residential users. A small retail unit with flats above would also be built at 

the southern end of the site, along the High Street frontage. 

 

14.14.10 From a conservation point of view, it is felt that the development along 

the High Street and to its rear, including the car park, would have a 

considerable impact on the designated and non designated heritage 

assets. Along High Street, the creation of the new access is considered to 

be wider than preferable and would result in a visual break in an otherwise 

tightly developed continuous street frontage. Views of the less attractive 

rear elevations of buildings to the west of the High Street would also be 

opened from the back of the car park, into the conservation area. In 

addition, the wide access would facilitate views from the High Street into 

the open frontage of the supermarket and the large car park opposite to it. 

These views would be commercial and urban in character, in contrast with 

Page 58



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

the more suburban and rural appearance of the conservation area 

accentuated, by the Village Green to the east and Rectory Park to the west. 

This would be considered detrimental to the overall character and 

streetscene of the conservation area. 

 

14.14.11 However, it is argued, that given the potential of this site, any 

reasonable form of development would have an impact on the suburban 

character of the conservation area. Additionally, the opening would improve 

the setting of the locally listed mosque which would contribute to the 

appearance of the conservation area. It is, therefore, acceptable in this 

instance. 

 

14.14.12 At present, there are views of Alexandra Palace from the High Street 

and Hillfield Avenue over and above the existing public bath. This also 

creates a vista point at the intersection of these two streets. As noted 

previously, this forms a very important part of the character of the 

conservation area. In addition, the demolition of the baths and the new 

block along the High Street would also preclude part of the long distance 

views of Alexandra Palace from both Hornsey High Street and Hillfield 

Avenue. 

 

14.14.13 It is felt, however, that the availability of this view was purely 

accidental, from over and above the public bath buildings that are single 

storey in height. It is presumed, that the original street frontage would have 

had similar three storey buildings as is characteristic of the High Street and 

this view would not have been an original view within the conservation area. 

Notwithstanding this, it is regrettable that the proposed development would 

necessitate the loss of this view. However, the layout of the blocks is such 

that the west elevation of Hornsey Gardens and Hillfield Avenue have a 

staggered visual link, which would still permit some views of the Palace 

from between the gap on High Street. Thus, this important aspect of the 

conservation area would be partly preserved. 

 

Scale and massing  

 

14.14.14 The Haringey Heartland Development Framework established this area 

for potential high density residential development. The supermarket’s 

requirement of a large car park has necessitated the density of the 

development to be concentrated to the sides of the quadrant in high 

residential blocks. Whilst the height of the block referred to as Hornsey 

Gardens is staggered to distribute its overall bulk and massing towards 

New River Avenue, the height at eight storeys is still considered significant 

and will be visible from long distance views from within the conservation 

Page 59



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

areas (see verified view location 2). Views form the High Street and Hillfield 

Avenue would be also dominated by the high rise blocks. As such the scale 

of the blocks would not relate to the domestic scale of the High Street and 

the surrounding conservation areas. However, given the high density 

identified for this site, any reasonable form of development would have had 

a similar impact and a balanced judgment ought to be made regarding the 

relative impact of the proposed development.  

 

14.14.15 The proposed three storey block along High Street appears taller than 

the buildings to its east. Whilst not ideal, the building would act as the 

‘bookend’ to the street frontage, the listed Great Northern Railway Tavern 

being on the eastern end of the same parade. 

 

Design 

 

14.14.16 The overall design appears to what is being popularly referred to as 

‘New London Vernacular’ consisting of plain rectangular façades broken 

only by use of materials and fenestration. Given the established local 

details of materials within the conservation areas, i.e bricks, tiles and 

rendering, the proposed development would not be considered out of 

character and would be acceptable.  

 

14.14.17 Along the Hornsey Gardens elevation, the long horizontal facade has 

been broken by the use of the materials creating a rhythm similar to Hillfield 

Avenue, albeit much higher in scale. This continuation of the rhythm 

somewhat mitigates the impact of the development and ties the high 

density contemporary development with the traditional terraces along 

Hillfield Avenue. This aspect of the proposal has some merit that could 

potentially make a contribution to the conservation area. 

 

14.14.18 The proposed three storey block on High Street is considered to be a 

contemporary take on the more vernacular style of architecture, following 

the shop frontage of the existing parade. As such, there are no objections 

to the same. 

 

Landscape  

 

14.14.19 Most of the landscaped areas would be within the built up blocks of 

the site and would not be visible from the High Street. As such the 

landscaped setting of the conservation area would not be directly 

enhanced. However, the landscaping of the car park with trees and quality 

paving materials would mitigate much of the impact of the harsh nature of 

the proposed development. The landscaping to the access road would also 

Page 60



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

help to mitigate the development’s impact on the locally listed Mosque and 

the wider conservation area. 

 

14.14.20 Paragraph 133 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that 

‘Where proposed development will lead to substantial harm to total loss of 

significance of a designated heritage asset, local planning authorities 

should refuse consent, unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial 

harm or loss is necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that 

outweigh that harm or loss. 

 

14.14.21 Paragraph 135 of the same also states that ‘The effect of an 

application on the significance of a non-designation heritage asset should 

be taken into account in determining the application. In weighing 

applications that affect directly or indirectly non designated heritage asses, 

a balance judgement will be required having regard to the scale of any 

harm or loss of the significance of the heritage asset’. 

 

14.14.22 It is felt that the Applicant’s assessment of the significance of the 

heritage asset and the impact on the development could have been more 

thorough. Notwithstanding this, the contribution of the Hornsey Public 

Baths is limited by the redundancy of the buildings and the lost interiors. 

Thus, given the much wider regeneration of the site, the loss of significance 

caused due to their total demolition would not outweigh the public benefits 

of the proposed development. It is, therefore, acceptable in this instance. 

 

14.14.23 The new development, especially Hornsey Gardens and the High 

Street block would have an impact on the setting of the conservation area 

and other designated and non-designated heritage assets. The large car 

park and the wide access road, creating views of the 8 storey block and the 

retail unit are not in character with the conservation area. The overall scale 

of the development would be dominant and affect the setting of the 

conservation area. However, the ‘new vernacular’ design, the quality of 

materials, the rhythm of the façades and the landscaping would mitigate 

this impact and add a distinctive contemporary dimension to the character 

and appearance of the conservation area. 

 

14.14.24 It is also accepted, that given the potential of this site, any reasonable 

form of development would have an impact on the suburban character of 

the conservation area. 

 

14.14.25 Overall, on balance the greater merits of the development from a 

regeneration point of view, providing significant housing numbers, 

permeable circulation network and a contemporary architectural language 

Page 61



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

outweigh the loss of significance due to the demolition of the Baths and the 

impact on the setting of the conservation area and other designated and 

non designated assets. 

 

14.15 Archaeology 
 

14.15.1 London Policy 7.8 states that “development should incorporate measures 
that identify record, interpret, protect and, where appropriate, present the 
site’s archaeology” and UDP Policy CSV8 restrict developments if it would 
adversely affect areas of archaeological importance. 
 

14.15.2 A desk-based archaeological assessment has been undertaken as part of 
the Environmental Assessment. The site has low potential for 
archaeological deposits from Prehistoric to Post Roman/Anglo Saxon 
period to due to the extent of ground disturbance the site has been subject 
to. There is medium potential for deposits from the medieval period and 
post-medieval and high potential for modern period. The risk to any 
artefacts will be mitigated by requiring preservation by record or 
preservation in situ, depending on importance. A method for mitigation will 
be secured by condition and agreed with the Greater London 
Archaeological Advisory Service (GLAAS).  
 

14.15.3 A condition will also be applied requiring a ‘Level 3’ record of the Hornsey 
Baths building. 
 

14.16 Impact on Amenity 
 

14.16.1 London Plan Policies 7.6 and 7.15 and Saved UDP Policies UD3 and ENV6 
require development proposals to have no significant adverse impacts on 
the amenity of surrounding development.  
 
Sunlight/daylight and overshadowing 
 

14.16.2 The Haringey UDP (Saved Policies) identifies the Building Research 
Establishment report “Site Layout Planning for Daylight & Sunlight 2011” by 
which daylight should be assessed. Daylight was assessed by the total 
amount of skyline available (Vertical Sky Component [VSC]) and its 
distribution within the building (the No-Sky line [NSL]) and the quality of and 
distribution of light within a room serviced by a window (Average Daylight 
Factor [ADF]). Sunlight analysis was undertaken by measuring annual 
probable sunlight hours (APSH). 
 

14.16.3 The daylight analysis demonstrates that generally the quality, quantity and 
distribution of light to neighbouring residential properties will remain within 
BRE compliance.  Less than 10% of windows will experience an adverse 
effect in VSC terms and less than 5% will experience an adverse effect in 
NSL terms as a result of the proposed development. 
 

Page 62



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

14.16.4 The properties which are most affected in respect of VSC and NSL are 1-3 
Cross Lane Flats, ground and first floor of Moore House and 5 Moselle 
Close. There is an impact on 53 High Street however the disparity is a 
result of it being opposite a gap in the 2-storey frontage along the High 
Street. The resulting impact would bring it more in line with other buildings 
on the High Street. All neighbouring rooms assessed will fully comply with 
the BRE target values in respect of Average Daylight Factor 
 

14.16.5 In respect of sunlight, all but two of the relevant rooms/windows 
surrounding the development will fully comply with the BRE Guidance in 
sunlight terms. These two non-compliant main habitable rooms are located 
at 1 to 3 Cross Lane Flats. The shadow assessment shows that the levels 
of permanent shadow in and around the development will fully comply with 
BRE criteria, including the amenity spaces of the proposed development.  
 

14.16.6 For the new development, all but 3% of the main habitable rooms assessed 
will receive light levels meeting the BRE Guidance levels.  
 

14.16.7 Given the approach recommended by the BRE guidelines, despite 
instances of localised adverse impact, the development is considered 
acceptable in terms of daylight, sunlight and shadow in compliance with 
the above policies.  

 Privacy 

14.16.8 The proposed development has been arranged so that windows which do 
not face the public realm are at least 20m away from the nearest facing 
window within a 90 degree arc. Windows which do face onto the street are 
often less than 20m away from the window opposite but this is common for 
street facing windows in residential development in the local area and in 
London generally and would not result in undue overlooking. 
 

14.16.9 The proposal is therefore considered to cause no significant loss of privacy 
through overlooking, in compliance with the above policies.  
 
Noise and Vibration 
 

14.16.10 The likely noise impacts are assessed in the Environmental Statement. 
There is potential for noise and vibration impact during demolition and 
construction however the effects will be temporary. A construction 
environmental monitoring plan (CEMP) will be required by condition and 
developed with the Council’s Environmental Health Team. The plan will set 
out how the works will be undertaken in a way which minimises harm, 
which will then be built into individual contracts. 
 

14.16.11 Noise generated by the operation of the development is most likely to 
result from road traffic noise. Noise surveys were undertaken in May 2012 
and July 2013 and compared to the measured baseline situation, the 

Page 63



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

anticipated changes in traffic noise would be negligible.  
 

14.16.12 The development would include external fixed plant items but 
provided that all plant are designed cumulatively to achieve the Council’s 
noise standards, there would be negligible impact. This has been 
conditioned.  
 

14.16.13 The foodstore delivery yard is adjacent to the foodstore and enclosed 
within an undercroft. Deliveries may occur over 24 hours however a number 
of noise mitigation measures have been proposed and will be secured in a 
management plan secured by condition. These measures includes, among 
others, requiring all manoeuvring and unloading of HGV’s inside the service 
yard to be done with the gates closed, preventing lorries from waiting 
outside and timing of deliveries to avoid congestions and long turnarounds. 
Provided these are followed, delivery noise, particularly at night will be 
minimal.  
 

14.16.14 The proposal is considered to cause no significant adverse impact in 
respect of noise, in compliance with the above policies.  
 

Page 64



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

14.17 Air Quality 
 
14.17.1 London Plan 2011 Policy 7.14 states development proposals should 

minimise increased exposure to existing air quality and make provision to 
address local problem of air quality. This approach is continued in Saved 
Policy ENV7 of the UDP 2006.   
 

14.17.2 The site is located within an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) and the 
applicant has submitted an air quality assessment as part of the 
Environmental Statement. The assessment concludes that during 
demolition and construction dust and other particulate matter will be 
released. However, through good practice and implementation of suitable 
mitigation measures the effect can be minimised. Such measures will be 
secured by condition.  
 

14.17.3 The impact from construction traffic is likely to be temporary and of 
negligible significance. A construction logistics plan (CLP) will be secured 
by condition to ensure construction traffic is appropriately managed.  
 

14.17.4 During operation of the development, the impact on air quality would stem 
from the energy centre however the impact on existing and new residents 
would be imperceptible. A condition will be applied ensuring that emissions 
from the energy centre do not exceed NOx emissions of 40 mg/kWh, which 
is a recognised standard.  
 

14.17.5 Subject to appropriate conditions, the proposal would have no significant 
adverse impact on air quality in compliance with the above policies.  
 

14.18 Transport, Traffic, Access and Parking 
 

14.18.1 National planning policy seeks to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and 
congestion. This advice is also reflected in the London Plan Policies Policy 
6.3 ‘Assessing effects of development on transport capacity’, 6.11 
‘Smoothing Traffic Flow and Tackling Congestion’ and 6.12 ‘Road Network 
Capacity’, 6.13 ‘Parking’ and broadly in Haringey Local Plan Policy SP7 
and Saved UDP Policy UD3 ‘General Principles’. 
 

14.18.2 The application has been assessed by the Council’s Transportation 
Planning team and Transport for London and no objection is held subject 
conditions and s106 and s278 contributions. 
 

14.18.3 The application site has access points to all streets which bound the site. 
There is a recently introduced Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) along 
Hornsey High Street, between Tottenham Lane and Middle Lane and 
extending south. However, the area around the application site has no CPZ 
and is heavily parked. The site is in an area with a medium a public 
transport accessibility level (PTAL) of 3 and is close to local and strategic 
cycling routes including LCN+ Link 78 and Greenway Link 04.  
 

Page 65



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

Trip generation 
 

14.18.4 The applicant’s transport consultant WSP has submitted a transport 
assessment, the scope of which was agreed with the Council and 
Transport for London. The report estimates, that as a result of the 
residential element of the scheme, the total number of car driver trips 
entering and exiting the site (in/out) during the weekday AM peak (0800-
0900) will be 45, 55 during the inter-peak period and 48 during the PM peak 
(1700-1800). These figures were calculated based on a number of 
comparable sites from the TRAVL database and accounts for both private 
and affordable development, public transport accessibility, on-site parking, 
location and age of the data. 
 

14.18.5 The number of in/out car trips generated by the foodstore is estimated to 
be 225 during the peak operational periods. These figures were calculated 
based on comparable Sainsbury’s stores in London. The Council has 
accepted that 30% of these trips will be diverted or pass-by trips (i.e. trips 
that are already on the network). Therefore, 70% of these trips will be new 
trips generated by the foodstore. The majority (82%) of the trips generated 
will be from wards west of the railway, with Hornsey Ward accounting for 
42.5%.  
 

14.18.6 The total number of in/out trips by all modes of transport generated by the 
development (including the small number of trips generated by the High 
Street unit and Cross Lane live/work units) is estimated to be 314 during 
the AM peak, 268 during the inter-peak period and 529 during PM peak. Of 
these trips, 103, 268 and 276 (check with MR) are car driver trips 
respectively. 
 
Access 
 

14.18.7 Three vehicular access points are proposed. Foodstore access is from a 
short access road off Hornsey High Street via a new signalised junction. 
Deliveries to and refuse collection from the foodstore will take place in a 
ground floor level undercroft adjacent to the foodstore. Vehicle path 
analyses have been submitted showing that articulated delivery vehicles 
can enter and leave the service yard in forward gear.  
 

14.18.8 Access to the residential Quadrangle building is from Miles Road via 
Myddelton Road and Campsbourne Road, and access to the residential 
basement parking for Hornsey Gardens is from access just off the junction 
of Cross Lane and New River Avenue. Cross Lane will remain stopped up 
and vehicles will arrive via New River Avenue.  
 

14.18.9 Vehicle path analyses have been submitted demonstrating that the 
development can be serviced by fire appliances. 
 
Highway Impact 
 

Page 66



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

14.18.10 The applicant’s transport consultant has submitted modelled 
assessments of the impact of the generated trips on the highway network 
using industry recognised modelling methods. The modelled scenario took 
into consideration the junctions of Church Lane and New River Avenue, 
Turnpike Lane with Hornsey Park Road and Wightman Road, and a new 
signalised junction on the High street with the new access road to the 
foodstore. 
 

14.18.11 The modelling has been independently reviewed by Council appointed 
transport consultants CH2M Hill. The results of the modelling suggest that 
there would be no significant impact on the highways network and the 
network would operate within acceptable limits at all times, with the 
exception of the eastbound arm of the new signalised junction which has a 
90% degree of saturation in the AM peak period. However, this is due to 
proposal to signalise Hillfield Avenue rather than keep it as a give way 
junction, and not due to the traffic generated by the development. 
 

14.18.12 The above modelling and impact has been assessed by the Council’s 
Transportation Team and accepted for planning purposes. However, the 
modelling will have to be developed further for approval by TfL’s signals 
department and network management team before the scheme can be 
implemented. This will be secured by condition. 
 
Car Parking 
 

14.18.13 The proposal provides 178 space for 438 residential units. 116 of these, 
including 27 disabled spaces, are provided at basement level below the 
foodstore and are provided for residential use. 62 car parking, 17 disabled 
spaces, are provided at ground floor level of the Quadrangle building. For 
the residential parking, 20% (36) of the spaces will be equipped with 
electric charging points and a further 20% with passive provision. For the 
foodstore, 114 car parking spaces, including 5 disabled spaces, are 
provided in a surface level car park opposite the foodstore. 12 (10%) will 
have an electric car charging facilitate with a further 11 with passive 
provision. 90 minutes free parking will be offered. 
 

14.18.14 A car club scheme with at least three cars will be secured by s106 
agreement and the Traffic Management Order (TMO) will be amended so 
that no residents within the development can apply for a resident’s parking 
permit. 
 

14.18.15 The proposed parking provision is in accordance with Saved UDP 2006 
Policy M10 and Local Plan 2013 policies SP1, SP4 and SP7.  
 
Cycle Parking 
 

14.18.16 453 cycle parking spaces (1 space per 1- and 2- bedroom unit and 2 
spaces per 3+ bedroom unit) are provided for the residential element of the 
scheme. These spaces are distributed across the development to 

Page 67



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

encourage their use. 11 spaces are provided in the public realm element for 
visitors. 
 

14.18.17 22 cycle spaces are provided for visitors to the foodstore and a further 17 
spaces will be provided for staff. Showers, lockers and changing facilities 
will also be provided. These will be secured by section 106 agreement. 
 

14.18.18 The proposed provision of cycle parking is in accordance with London 
Plan standards. 
 
Walking  
 

14.18.19 The introduction of north/south east/west pedestrian routes is 
welcomed however there is potential for pedestrian-vehicle conflict. 
Pedestrian priority measures should be included in the design. This can be 
provided at detailed design stage and will be secured by condition.  
 

14.18.20 A pedestrian environment audit of the local area has been submitted 
and s106 contributions will be sought towards any necessary upgrades 
identified. 
 
Freight 
 

14.18.21 A delivery and servicing plan (DSP) and a construction logistics plan 
(CLP) will be secured by condition and approval will be in consultation with 
TfL. 
 
Highway works 
 

14.18.22 The development would require the following changes to the highway 
network: 
 

New signalised junction,  

Removal and construction of vehicular access points, removal of 
Vehicular crossovers, reconstruction of footways and reconstruction of 
a section of Cross Lane footpath to facilitate vehicular access,  

Removal of vehicle crossover on Hornsey High Street including 
removal of existing access road and reconstruction of vehicular 
access point to foodstore 

Removal of vehicular crossover on Myddelton Road  

Construction of vehicular crossover to Quadrangle building 

 
14.18.23 The applicant will be required to contribute towards upgrade of 

Myddelton Road due to increase in pedestrian flows resulting from the 
development and to a scheme to mitigate the impact on right turning traffic 
on Hillfield Avenue. 
 
Conclusion 
 

Page 68



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

14.18.24 The impact of the development has been assessed and the Council’s 
Transport planning team do not object subject to the following conditions 
and s106 and s278 contributions: 
 

The highway must be reviewed and approved by TfL before 
development commences on site, all costs to be borne by the 
applicant 
 

construction management plan (CMP) and Construction Logistics 
Plan (CLP)  shall be submitted for the local authority’s approval three 
months prior to construction work commencing on site  

 

Delivery and Servicing Plan (DSP) shall be submitted for the local 
authority’s approval details of which must include servicing of the 
supermarket, and servicing of the residential units including refuse 
collection and deliveries 

 

S106 planning contributions:  
 

Residential travel plan secured through s106 with: 
o Travel plan for each residential element (private and affordable) with 

annual monitoring 
o Residential induction packs with local transport information 
o Establishment of a car club scheme with at least 3 cars, free 

membership for 2 years, £50 credit for each unit 
o £3000 per travel plan for monitoring  
o Site Management parking plan 

Work place travel plan secured through s106 with: 
o Work place travel plan for A1 element 
o Showers, lockers and changing room facility for staff 
o £3000 per travel plan for monitoring 

£83,000 contribution through towards feasibility, design and consultation 
relating to implementation of controlled parking zone in the local area 

£60,000 cycling and walking improvements to local area 

No residents within the development will be entitled to apply for a 
resident’s parking permit under the terms of any current of subsequent 
traffic management order (TMO). Residents must be informed of this and 
this information should be included in the lease where possible. 
 

S278 Highways works  
 

Contribution of £825,173 towards the following the highway works: 
 

Cost associated with constructing the new signalised junction to access 
the foodstore  

Scheme to improve Myddelton Avenue estimated  

Removal of existing crossovers and reconstruction of footways  

Raised entry treatment of Miles Road, Myddelton Avenue  

Page 69



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

Hillfield Avenue traffic calming scheme estimated  Raised entry treatment 
of Miles Road, Myddelton Avenue  

Hillfield Avenue traffic calming scheme  
 
 

14.19 Trees and Landscaping 
 

14.19.1 Under Policy OS17 ‘Tree Protection, Tree Masses and Spines’ of the 
Haringey UDP, the Council will seek to protect and improve the 
contribution of trees to local character. London Plan Policy 7.4 ‘Trees and 
Woodlands’ states that existing trees of value should be retained and any 
loss as the result of development should be replaced. 
 

14.19.2 The proposed development includes significant areas of public realm 
(including a surface carpark) and communal amenity space. The public 
realm areas are designed to have a common character to link the spaces 
within the development and make them welcoming to residents and visitors 
alike. 
 
Public realm 
 

14.19.3 The north-south and east-west pedestrian routes will be paved with 
landscape strips of herbaceous planting, shrubs and trees to provide a 
buffer of defensible space to the private entrances to the ground floor flats 
and maisonettes which face these pedestrian areas. The public square or 
plaza area in the centre of the site will feature paving and benches to 
emphasise this.   
 

14.19.4 The surface carpark and access road is designed to be understood as part 
of the public realm. The carpark and adjacent footway will share the same 
paving treatment. Parking bays are demarcated by a contrasting paving 
colour instead of painted lines. Painted lines will only be used where 
geometry of the road precludes a paving solution.  
 

14.19.5 Trees will be placed along the access road, amongst the parking bays and 
along the northern edge of the car park. On this edge is a decorative wall 
which will prevent light nuisance from headlights affecting residents 
opposite.  

 

Communal spaces 
 

14.19.6 The Quadrangle and Hornsey Gardens blocks both have communal 
amenity space at podium level. The Quadrangle space consists of open 
lawn and a paved area with benches and formal areas of planting. 
Enclosing the space is a strip of shrubs or hedging to provide a buffer for 
the private terraces which border this space. A similar approach is taken for 
Hornsey Gardens but adapted to its different shape and size. Areas of hard 
landscaping and formal planting are alternated with open lawn. These 

Page 70



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

communal spaces are designed to be flexible and useable and are 
considered acceptable. 

 

14.19.7 Exact details of materials and plant species will be secured by condition 
but the proposed landscape strategy is considered to be in compliance 
with the above policies.  

 

14.20 Ecology 
 

14.20.1 London Plan Policy 7.19 ‘Biodiversity and access to nature’ requires 
development to make a positive contribution to the protection, 
enhancement, creation and management of biodiversity. This approach is 
continued by Local Plan Policy SP13 ‘Open Space and Biodiversity’.  

14.20.2 The site is not part of a Site of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC) 
or in an Ecological Corridor. However, the nearest ecological sites (within 
400m) are all non-statutory designated sites. They are the New River, 
Alexandra Park, St Mary’s Churchyard and Priory Park. 
 

14.20.3 The site comprises hard standing and buildings with some ephemeral/short 
perennial vegetation on rubble piles and small areas of landscaping. 
Ecological surveys were undertaken and the results of these are presented 
in the submitted Environment Statement. The habitats and ecological 
features of the site are considered to be minimal. One pair of black redstarts 
has been identified as breeding on site. Nesting birds are protected so to 
minimise risk, demolition will occur outside of nesting season. If it is found 
that birds are not nesting, it may be acceptable to allow demolition to occur. 
This will be controlled by condition.  
 

14.20.4 The scheme includes extensive brown roofs at various heights on 
Quadrangle and Hornsey Gardens buildings to recreate brownfield habitats 
favoured by black redstarts. Bird boxes will also be provided and will be 
suitable for swifts, house sparrows and starlings. 
 

14.20.5 No bat roosts were found on site.  
 

14.20.6 There is Japanese knotweed on the western part of the site and it will be 
controlled and removed by an appropriately qualified contractor. This will 
be beneficial to local ecology.  
 

14.20.7 Subject to conditions securing appropriate mitigation measures, the 
proposal would be in compliance with the above policies.  
 
 

14.21 Energy and Sustainability 
 

14.21.1 Chapter 5 of the London Plan 2011 sets out the approach to climate 
change and requires developments to make the fullest contribution to 
minimizing carbon dioxide emissions. Policy 5.2 sets out the Mayor’s ‘lean, 

Page 71



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

clean, green’ energy hierarchy which prioritises energy use reduction, clean 
production and renewable production respectively.  
 

14.21.2 The development has been designed in accordance with the Mayor’s 
energy hierarchy and through passive measures alone will achieve an 
improvement of 2% over current Building Regulations (Part L) 2010 with the 
use of a single Combined Heat and Power (CHP) energy centre serving the 
whole development, a 25% reduction in carbon emissions is achieved.  
 

14.21.3 The development has also been designed so that if plans to expand the 
heat network in the Lee Valley Opportunity Area come forward during the 
construction period it would be possible to connect to the network, if 
appropriate.  
 

14.21.4 In addition to the above measures to reduce CO2 emissions, the 
development will achieve Code for Sustainable Homes (CSH) Level 4 and 
BREEAM ‘Very Good’ for the non-residential elements. These standards 
will be secured by condition. 
 

14.21.5 The proposal is in compliance with the above policies.  
 

14.22 Water Management and Flooding 
 

14.22.1 London Plan 2011 Policy 5.12 requires developments to comply with flood 
risk and assessment requirements set out in PPS25 in order to minimise 
flood risk. Policy 5.13 requires the use of Sustainable Urban Drainage 
Systems (SUDS) unless there are practical reasons for not doing so. This is 
reflected Haringey Local Plan 2013 Policy SP5.  
 

14.22.2 The site lies in Flood Risk Zone 1 where the probability of flooding is 1 in 
1000 years. The Moselle Brook runs beneath the site however it is culverted 
and has no associated floodplain. The New River is close to the site and is 
a manmade water way with a controlled flow. Therefore, there is a low risk 
of flooding. However, the site is identified by the Haringey council as lead 
drainage authority as being in a Critical Drainage Area (CDA). 
 

14.22.3 Although London Plan Policy 5.13 states that developments should achieve 
greenfield runoff rates, this cannot be achieved as the proposed 
development includes brown roofs rather than green roofs (which have 
greater attenuating capacity). Brown roofs were chosen as they are more 
suitable to for Black Redstarts, which have been found on site. Green roofs 
would attract competing species. The proposed development would still 
achieve a 50% reduction in the peak discharge rate. It will have capacity to 
accommodate storms up to and including a ‘100 year’ event, with an 
increase of 30% to allow for the effects of climate change. The 
development will therefore have a positive effect towards reducing both 
onsite and offsite flood risk. 
 

Page 72



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

14.22.4 To mitigate risk of contamination of surface water, a construction 
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) would be developed in 
accordance with all relevant legislation and guidance, and will include 
measure to manage surface water runoff and ensure the appropriate 
storage of construction materials.  
 
 

14.22.5 Policy 7.28 of the London Plan encourages development proposals to 
restore and enhance the Blue Ribbon Network (London’s network of multi-
functional water-based spaces), including taking opportunities to open 
culverts and naturalise river channels. This is supported by Haringey local 
Plan Policy SP5.  The Moselle Brook is culverted and forms part of the Blue 
Ribbon Network. However, due to the depth of the culvert, deculverting in 
this location would provide limited benefits. The Environment Agency has 
set out a number of conditions to ensure that the Brook is diverted and 
surface water is drained appropriately. 

 

14.22.6 London Plan policies 5.14 and 5.15 encourage developments to minimise 
the impact on water supply and wastewater infrastructure. The residential 
element of the scheme will achieve Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4, 
which equates to water consumption of 105L per person per day. The non-
residential elements will be built to BREEAM ‘Very Good’ (rate of required 
water reduction varies). Wastewater production is closely linked to water 
consumption so the above standards would also result in a reduction of 
wastewater. Thames Water does not object but recommended a condition 
requiring a water supply impact study be submitted for approval. This has 
been followed. 
 
 

14.23 Contaminated Land 
 

14.23.1 London Plan Policy 5.21 ‘Contaminated Land’ requires that appropriate 
measures should be taken to ensure that development on previously 
contaminated land does not activate or spread contamination. This is 
continued in Haringey UDP Policy ENV11. 
 

14.23.2 An initial desktop study was undertaken in 2007 and further intrusive 
studies were required. A ground investigation was completed in March 
2013 which determined that there is a relatively low risk with regard to 
contamination. The submitted environmental statement states that 
localised contamination will mainly be removed during remediation and 
development and considers the appropriate mitigation measures to 
minimise risk. This includes appropriate protection to the diverted Moselle 
Brook and abstraction borehole to the north. These mitigation measures 
will be secured by a detailed condition.  
 

14.23.3 Subject to this condition, the proposal would be in accordance with the 
above policies. 
 

Page 73



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

 
14.24 Waste Management  

 
14.24.1 London Plan Policy 5.17 ‘Waste Capacity’, Local Plan Policy SP6 ‘Waste 

and Recycling’ and Saved UDP Policy UD7 ‘Waste Storage’, require 
development proposals make adequate provision for waste and recycling 
storage and collection. 
 

14.24.2 The development provides storage for recyclable and non-recyclable refuse 
across the development and the number of receptacles has been 
calculated according to Haringey formulas to be adequate for a weekly 
collection.  
 

14.24.3 In Block J (Myddelton House) and Block H (Moselle House), refuse storage 
is provided on the ground floor adjacent to the lift core. For Block H, the 
building’s management body will be response for moving bins to the 
designated collection point adjacent to Moselle Close. Two refuse stores 
are provided in the Quadrangle. In Hornsey Gardens, residents will deposit 
refuse into one of five refuse areas. Management will then move bins to a 
main bin store, inaccessible to residents, and then to the designated 
collection point on the shared surface area just west of Cross Lane. 
Movement of the bins will be timed to coincide with collection times.   

 

14.24.4 Waste storage areas are located so that residents will not need to travel 
more than 25m. The storage areas will also be designed in accordance with 
national standards to ensure cleanliness, safety and ease of maintenance.  
 

 

14.24.5 Refuse arrangements for the foodstore are completely separate to the 
residential element and are located within the demise of the foodstore.  
 

14.24.6 Cardboard, plastic and paper is returned on delivery vehicles to 
distributions centres and sold on to recyclers. Cooking oil is collected by 3rd 
party specialist and processed into bio fuel. Timber is returned on delivery 
vehicles and collected or shredded for mulch. Batteries and lightbulb are 
collected by specialists. Food waste is segregated into different categories 
and returned to distribution centres.  
 

14.24.7 A customer recycling point will be located in the southern end of the 
carpark and will be collected by the Local authority collection service. 
 

14.24.8 The High Street and live/work units will have their own arrangements for 
refuse collection depending on what businesses occupy these units.  

 

14.24.9 The proposed refuse storage and collection arrangements are considered 
satisfactory in compliance with the above policies.  
 

 

Page 74



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

14.25 Environmental Impact Assessment 
 

14.25.1 The proposed development is “schedule 2 development” within the meaning of 
the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 2011, being an urban development project where the area of 
development exceeds 0.5 hectares. As such, an Environmental Impact 
Assessment is required. 

 

14.25.2 The applicants have submitted an Environmental Statement (ES) which 
covers the following issues:  

 

Ground conditions and contamination 

Archaeology and cultural heritage 

Noise and vibration 

Local air quality 

Water resources and flood risk 

Sunlight, daylight and overshadowing 

Ecology 

Socio-economics 

Transport 

Townscape and visual Assessment 

Telecommunications 

Cumulative effects 
 

All except Telecommunications and Cumulative Effects have been discussed 
in separate sections in this report. These two remaining issues are discussed 
below. 

 
Telecommunications 

 
14.25.3 The ES finds that the proposed development could cause some very minor 

short time interruption of signal during demolition and construction to 
properties immediately to the north of the site but will not have any lasting 
effect.  
 

14.25.4 During an advanced stage of construction there could become a point 
whereby satellite dishes that are mounted low on buildings immediately to 
the north and close to the development will lose the signal. At a similar time 
interference may be experienced through the TV aerials mounted on 
properties close by. Realignment of TV aerials and relocation and / or 
realignment of satellite dishes should restore signals. 
 
Cumulative effects 
 

14.25.5 The ES assesses whether any of the individual impacts identified (air 
quality, noise etc) will have a cumulative effect with other approved and 
forthcoming major developments in the surrounding area. These were 
identified to be Pembroke Works, Campsbourne Road, N8 (planning ref: 
HGY/2012/1190) immediately to the west and Land at Haringey Heartlands 

Page 75



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

(planning ref: HGY/2009/0503). Taking into account both the potential 
combined and interacting effects of these developments, the ES states that 
impacts would not be significantly greater than identified for the individual 
development. As such no additional mitigation measures are proposed.  
 
Residual effects of the development 
 

14.25.6 Following assessment of the various potential impacts of the development, 
the ES concludes that the residual effects of the development, are positive 
in respect of socio-economics, and provided the recommendation 
mitigation measures are implemented, the negative impacts are mostly 
negligible or minor negative, and in a few localised instances, moderately 
negative. Sufficient mitigation measures have conditioned.  
 

14.25.7 Officers are satisfied that the Environmental Statement has adequately the 
assessed the environmental impact of the proposal and accept its 
conclusions.  
 
 

14.26 S106 Planning Obligations and Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
 

14.26.1 Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 allows the Local 
Planning Authority (LPA) to seek financial contributions to mitigate the 
impacts of a development. Below are the agreed Heads of Terms. 
 
Affordable housing 
 

38% of units (42% of habitable rooms) provided as affordable housing 
as below: 

 
Unit Type Number 

Affordable rent  

One-bedroom 11 

Two-bedroom 48 

Three-bedroom 7 

Four-bedroom 8 

Intermediate  

One-bedroom 32 

Two-bedroom 62 

 
 
Education 
 

£500,000 towards school places 
 

Transport 
 

Residential travel plan with: 

Page 76



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

o Travel plan for each residential element (private and affordable) 
with annual monitoring 

o Residential induction packs with local transport information 
o Establishment of a car club scheme with at least 3 cars, free 

membership for 2 years, £50 credit for each unit 
o £3000 per travel plan for monitoring  
o Site Management parking plan 

 

Work place travel plan with: 
o Work place travel plan for A1 element 
o Showers, lockers and changing room facility for staff 
o £3000 per travel plan for monitoring 

 

£83,000 contribution through towards feasibility, design and 
consultation relating to implementation of controlled parking zone in the 
local area  

 

£60,000 towards cycling and walking improvements to local area 
 

no residents within the development will be entitled to apply for a 
resident’s parking permit under the terms of any current of subsequent 
Traffic Management Order (TMO). Residents must be informed of this 
and this information should be included in the lease where possible. 
 

90 min free parking in foodstore carpark 
 

Local Employment and training 
 

£258,750 
 

Cost recovery 
 
3% of overall s106 value 
 

Mayoral Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
 
£1,621,130 (46,318  sq. m x £35) 
 

 
14.26.2 An agreement under s278 of the Highways Act 1980 will be made to secure 

contribution of £825,173 towards necessary works to the highway. These 
contributions are below: 

 

New signalised junction to access the supermarket  

Scheme to improve Myddelton Avenue  

Removal of existing crossovers and reconstruction of footways  

Raised entry treatment of Miles Road, Myddelton Avenue  
Hillfield Avenue traffic calming scheme  

 

Page 77



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

 
15.0 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION 

 
15.1 The application site is 2.1ha in area and located north of Hornsey High 

Street, N8. It is currently used as reuse and recycling centre but was once a 
council depot, mortuary and coroner’s court.  

15.2 The site is located within the Haringey Heartlands Development Framework 
SPD area which seeks a comprehensive mixed use development on the 
site comprising a foodstore, housing, employment and community uses to 
complement the High Street Local Shopping Centre.  
 

15.3 The proposed development consists of a foodstore with surface level car 
park with 114 spaces, 438 residential units with 178 parking spaces, 
flexible commercial unit on the High Street and two live/work units. The 
proposed land uses and density are considered acceptable having regard 
to the SPD and supporting regeneration policy. The existing recycling 
facility will be relocated to Western Road, N22.  
 

15.4 The proposal provides 42% affordable housing by habitable room. This 
relatively high level of affordable housing is enabled by a mix of dwelling 
favouring 1- and 2-bedroom dwelling but with larger family units provided 
for affordable rent. The housing ‘offer’ proposed, although not strictly 
compliant with GLA and Local Plan policies regarding mix and level of 
affordable housing is supported by a financial viability appraisal which has 
been independently assessed and found sound. 
 

15.5 The proposal has been designed to meet regeneration objectives and 
respond to the existing context and character of the surrounding area. 
Officers are satisfied that the design is of high quality, delivering quality 
housing and causing no significant impact on residential amenity.  
 

15.6 The Hornsey Baths building on the High Street will be demolished to enable 
the development. The building is not protected but is in a conservation 
area. However, its loss is partly mitigated by the retention of the entrance 
feature. The development’s wider effects on the Conservation Area and 
nearby heritage assets are considered acceptable given the regenerative 
benefits of the scheme.  
 

15.7 The impacts of the new access road with signalized junction on the High 
Street, vehicles ingresses and egresses, and volume of trips generated 
have been modeled and assessed by Transport for London and a Council 
appointed transport consultant. The traffic impact is not considered to be 
significantly harmful and the junction design is acceptable for planning 
purposes, pending final approval by Transport for London.  
 

15.8 The culverted Moselle Brook runs beneath the site and will be diverted. 
Officers accept that the benefits of de-culverting are insufficient in this 
instance.  
 

Page 78



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

15.9 An Environmental Statement (ES) was submitted with the application due to 
the size of the development. The ES concludes that the environmental 
impacts of the development are not significant, or where they are negative, 
can be adequately mitigated.  
 

15.10 Contributions toward education, employment and training, a controlled 
parking zone, bus stop, pedestrian and cycling improvements and 
necessary highway works will be secured by s106 and s278 agreements. 
The development will be liable for the Mayoral Community Infrastructure 
Levy. 
 

15.11 The detailed assessments outlined in this report demonstrate that on 
balance there is strong planning policy support for these proposals 
embodied in the Local Development Plan and backed by Regional and 
National Planning Guidance. Therefore, subject to appropriate conditions 
and s106 contributions the application should be approved. 
 

 
16.0 RECOMMENDATION 

 

GRANT PERMISSION subject to referral to the Mayor of London and subject to 
following conditions and s106/s278 Legal Agreement 
 

IMPLEMENTATION 

 

1. The development hereby authorised must be begun not later than the 

expiration of three years from the date of this permission, failing which the 

permission shall be of no effect. 

Reason: This condition is imposed by virtue of Section 91 of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990 and to prevent the accumulation of 

unimplemented planning permissions. 

DRAWINGS 

2. Notwithstanding the information submitted with the application, the 

development hereby permitted shall only be built in accordance with the 

following approved plans:   

 

PL_001 P1, PL_002 P1, PL_003 P1, PL_099P3, PL_100 P3, PL_101 P4, 

PL_102 P4, PL_103 P4, PL_104 P4, PL_105 P3, PL_106 P3, PL_107 P3, 

PL_108 P3, PL_110 P3, PL_111 P3, PL_112 P4, PL_113 P4, PL_114 P4, 

PL_115 P3, PL_116 P3, PL_117 P3, PL_118 P3, PL_120 P2, PL_121 P1, 

PL_122 P3, PL_123 P3, PL_124 P3, PL_125 P1, PL_126 P1, PL_127 P1, 

PL_129 P2, PL_200 P1, PL_201 P1, PL_202 P1, PL_203 P1, PL_204 P1, 

Page 79



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

PL_301 P3, PL_302 P3, PL_303  P3, PL_304 P3, PL_305 P3, PL_306 P4, 

PL_307 P3, PL_308 P4, PL_309 P3, PL_310 P3, PL_311 P3, PL_350 P3, 

PL_351 P2, PL_352 P2, PL_353 P2, PL_354 P2, PL_355 P2, PL_356 P4 

Design and Access Statement September 2013, Planning Statement 

September 2013, Environmental Statement – Volumes I, II and III September 

2013 and addendum December 2013, Retail Statement September 2013, 

Transport Assessment September 2013, Energy Strategy September 2013, 

Sustainability Statement September 2013, Statement of Community 

Involvement September 2013, Landscape Strategy September 2013, Tree 

Survey September 2013, Heritage Statement September 2013, Demolition 

Management Plan September 2013, Site Waste Management Plan 

September 2013 

Reason:  To avoid doubt and in the interests of good planning. 

 

SAMPLES OF MATERIALS 

3. Samples of materials to be used in conjunction with the proposed 

development for all the external surfaces of buildings hereby approved, areas 

of hard landscaping and boundary walls shall be submitted to, and approved 

in writing by, the Local Planning Authority in consultation with members of 

the Planning Sub-committee, prior to works above ground.  Samples should 

include sample panels or brick types, roofing materials, balconies and 

windows combined with a schedule of the exact product references. 

Reason: In order for the Local Planning Authority to retain control over the 

exact materials to be used for the proposed development and to assess the 

suitability of the samples submitted in the interests of visual amenity 

consistent with Policy 7.6 of the London Plan 2011, Policy SP11 of the 

Haringey Local Plan 2013 and Saved Policy UD3 of the Haringey Unitary 

Development Plan 2006. 

 LANDSCAPING 

4. Prior to works above ground, full details of both hard and soft landscape 

works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 

authority and these works shall be carried out as approved. These details 

shall include: details of play areas, play equipment or features, proposed 

finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other 

vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas; hard surfacing 

materials; minor artefacts and structures (eg. furniture, play equipment, 

refuse or other storage units, signs, lighting etc.); proposed and existing 

functional services above and below ground (eg. drainage power, 

Page 80



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

communications cables, pipelines etc. indicating lines, manholes, supports 

etc.); retained historic landscape features and proposals for restoration, 

where relevant; and considerations of sculptural or architecturally attractive 

trolley shelters or similar feature for the car park. 

 

Soft landscape works shall include planting plans; written specifications 

(including cultivation and other operations associated with plant and grass 

establishment); schedules of plants, noting species, plant sizes and 

proposed numbers/densities where appropriate; implementation 

programme].  The soft landscaping scheme shall include detailed drawings 

of: 

a.    those existing trees to be retained. 

b.    those existing trees to be removed. 

c.    those existing trees which will require thinning, pruning, pollarding or 

lopping as a result of this consent.  All such work to be approved in writing 

by the Local Planning Authority. 

d.    Those new trees and shrubs to be planted together with a schedule of 

species shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 

Authority prior to the commencement of the development.   

Such an approved scheme of planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the 

approved details of landscaping shall be carried out and implemented in 

strict accordance with the approved details in the first planting and seeding 

season following the occupation of the building or the completion of 

development (whichever is sooner).  Any trees or plants, either existing or 

proposed, which, within a period of five years from the completion of the 

development die, are removed, become damaged or diseased shall be 

replaced in the next planting season with a similar size and species.  The 

landscaping scheme, once implemented, is to be retained thereafter . 

Reason: In order for the Local Planning Authority to assess the acceptability 

of any landscaping scheme in relation to the site itself, thereby ensuring a 

satisfactory setting for the proposed development in the interests of the 

visual amenity of the area consistent with Policy 7.21 of the London Local 

Plan 2011, Policy SP11 of the Haringey Local Plan 2013 and Policy UD3 of 

the Haringey Unitary Development Plan 2006. 

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE 

5. Within 2 years of commencing the development hereby permitted, the 

applicant shall submit a landscape maintenance scheme for approval by the 

Local Planning Authority. Any trees or areas of planting which die, are 

Page 81



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

removed or become seriously damaged or diseased within 5 years of 

completion of the landscaping scheme, shall be replaced as soon as is 

reasonably possible and, in any case, by not later than the end of the 

following planting season, with others of similar size and species, unless the 

local planning authority gives written consent to any variation. 

Reason: To ensure a comprehensive and sustainable development, good 

design and that the landscaping is secured in accordance within accordance 

London Plan 2011 Policies 7.5 and 7.6, Haringey Local Plan Policies SP11 

and SP13, and Saved UDP 2006 Policies UD3 and OS17. 

BOUNDARY TREATMENT 

 

6. No development shall take place until details of all enclosures around the site 

boundary (fencing, walling, openings etc) at a scale of 1:20, have been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Details 

shall include the proposed design, height and materials. The approved works 

shall be completed prior to occupation of the development and shall be 

permanently retained thereafter.  

 

Reason: In the interest of public safety and security and to protect the visual 

amenity of the locality consistent with Policies 3.5, 7.4, 7.5 and 7.6 of the 

London Plan 2011 and Policy SP11 of the Haringey Local Plan 2013 and 

Saved Policy UD3 of the Haringey Unitary Development Plan 2006. 

 TRAFFIC MODELLING 

7. Prior to the commencement of works to the superstructure above ground the 

recommendations contained within the transport assessment shall be 

implemented in accordance with a detailed specification/design and phasing 

schedule which shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. All costs related to the approval of this condition 

shall be borne by the applicant. 

 

REASON: To ensure the development does not cause undue harm to the 

highway network in compliance with London Plan 2011 Polices 6.3 

‘Assessing effects of development on transport capacity’, 6.11 ‘Smoothing 

Traffic Flow and Tackling Congestion’ and 6.12 ‘Road Network Capacity’, 

Haringey Local Plan Policy SP7 and Saved UDP 2006 Policy UD3 ‘General 

Principles’. 

 CMP & CLP 

Page 82



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

8. Prior to commencement, a Construction Management Plan (CMP) and 

Construction Logistics Plan (CLP) shall be submitted to, approved in writing 

by the Local planning Authority and implemented accordingly thereafter. The 

Plans should provide details on how construction work (inc. demolitions) 

would be undertaken in a manner that disruption to traffic and pedestrians on 

Hornsey High Street, Myddelton Road, Miles Road and  Campsbourne Road 

the roads surrounding the site is minimised.  It is also requested that 

construction vehicle movements should be carefully planned and 

coordinated to avoid the AM and PM peak periods  

Reason: To reduce congestion and mitigate any obstruction to the flow of 

traffic on the transportation network. 

DELIVERY AND SERVICE PLAN 

9. Prior to occupation of the foodstore, a Delivery and Service Plan (DSP) shall 

be submitted to, approved in writing by the Local planning Authority and 

implemented accordingly thereafter. Details of which must include servicing 

of the supermarket, and servicing of the residential units including refuse 

collection and deliveries. 

Reason: To reduce congestion and mitigate any obstruction to the flow of 

traffic on the transportation 

 STAFF CYCLE PARKING 

10.Prior to occupation of the foodstore, a plan showing the provision of at least 

17 no. cycle space for food store staff use, shall be submitted to, approved 

in writing by the Local planning Authority and implemented accordingly 

thereafter. 

 

Reason: To ensure sufficient cycle parking facilities are provided for staff use 

in accordance with London Plan Policy 6.9. 

 

PARKING 

 

11.The parking spaces associated with the foodstore shall provide at least 90 

minutes free parking to visitors at all times when the car park is open. 

 

Reason: In order to allow visitors to visit the rest of the local shopping centre 

and support the its viability and vitality, in accordance with Haringey Local 

Plan 2013 Policy SP10 and Saved UDP 2006 Policy TCR2. 

 

SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE 

Page 83



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

 
12.Excluding demolition, the development hereby permitted shall not be 

commenced until a detailed surface water drainage scheme for the site, 

based on the agreed Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) High Street, Hornsey Ref 

FRA/8672 Rev C, dated 21 October 2013, by Powell Tolner & Associates and 

the subsequent information submitted by Michael Featherstone dated 10 

December 2013 has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local 

planning authority. The drainage strategy shall include: 

 

A minimum of the total area of brown/green roofs of 2700 sq. m, as 

stated in the letter from Michael Featherstone Ref: SAB/br/8672 dated 

19 November 2013  

 

a restriction in run-off and surface water storage on site as outlined in 

the FRA.  

 

The scheme shall subsequently be implemented in accordance with the 

approved details before the development is completed. 

 

REASON: To prevent the increased risk of flooding, to improve and protect 

water quality, and improve habitat and amenity. 

 

CULVERT DIVERSION 

13.Excluding demolition and piling, the development hereby permitted shall not 
be commenced until such time as a scheme for the Moselle Brook culvert 
diversion based on the agreed Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) High Street, 
Hornsey Ref FRA/8672 Rev C, dated 21 October 2013, by Powell Tolner & 
Associates and the subsequent information submitted by Michael 
Featherstone dated 10 December 2014 has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include the 
detailed design for the culvert diversion including all permanent and 
temporary works. Once construction of the development is complete, 
detailed CCTV surveys must be undertaken of the full length of the culvert 
within 8m of any structures built as part of the development, to assess the 
condition and to ensure the culvert has been constructed as detailed in the 
Drainage Strategy Plan, drawing no 5002. A report of the survey finding will 
be submitted to the LPA for approval. Any damage or maintenance 
requirements identified by these surveys will subsequently repaired to the 
satisfaction of the LPA and evidence of this will be submitted for approval in 
writing.  
 
The scheme shall be fully implemented and subsequently maintained, in 

accordance with the timing/phasing arrangements embodied within the 

scheme, or within any other period as may subsequently be agreed, in 

Page 84



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: To prevent flooding by ensuring that the culvert is not damaged 

during construction and can function as designed, without increasing the risk 

of flooding both on and offsite. 

 

LAND CONTAMINATION 

 

14.No development, other than demolition work, shall commence on site until a 
remediation strategy that includes the following components to deal with the 
risks associated with contamination of the site are submitted to and 
approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority:  

 
1. A preliminary risk assessment which has identified:  

all previous uses  

potential contaminants associated with those uses  

a conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways and 
receptors  

potentially unacceptable risks arising from contamination at the site.  
 

2. A site investigation scheme, based on (1) and any further site investigation 

works required on site post demolition, to provide information for a detailed 

assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected, including those 

off site.  

3. The results of these site investigations and the detailed risk assessment 
referred to in (2) and, based on these, an options appraisal and remediation 
strategy giving full details of the remediation measures required and how 
they are to be undertaken.  
 
4. A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in 
order to demonstrate that the works set out in the remediation strategy in (3) 
are complete and identifying any requirements for longer-term monitoring of 
pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency action. 
Any changes to these components require the express written consent of the 
local planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented as approved. 

 
Reason: To protect groundwater quality. The reviewed report: Pre-Purchase 
Ground Investigation Report by Soil Consultants Ltd, ref: 9347/JRCB/OT 
satisfies part 1 of this condition. The rest of the condition is required to 
secure the additional investigation and risk assessment works and any 
remedial works that may be required. National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) paragraph 109 states that the planning system should contribute to 
and enhance the natural and local environment by preventing both new and 
existing development from contributing to or being put at unacceptable risk 
from, or being adversely affected by unacceptable levels water pollution. 
Government policy also states that planning policies and decisions should 

Page 85



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

also ensure that adequate site investigation information, prepared by a 
competent person, is presented (NPPF, paragraph 121). 

 
 VERIFICATION OF REMEDIATION 
 

15.No occupation of any part of the permitted development shall take place until 
a verification report demonstrating completion of works set out in the 
approved remediation strategy and the effectiveness of the remediation shall 
be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the local planning authority. The 
report shall include results of sampling and monitoring carried out in 
accordance with the approved verification plan to demonstrate that the site 
remediation criteria have been met. It shall also include any plan (a "long-
term monitoring and maintenance plan") for longer-term monitoring of 
pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency action, as 
identified in the verification plan. The long-term monitoring and maintenance 
plan shall be implemented as approved.  
 
Reason: To ensure the site is fit for purpose and remove the risks to 
Controlled Waters. 
 
SURFACE WATER INFILTRATION 
 

16.No infiltration of surface water drainage into the ground is permitted other 
than with the express written consent of the Local Planning Authority, which 
may be given for those parts of the site where it has been demonstrated that 
there is no resultant unacceptable risk to controlled waters. The development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approval details. 
 
Reason Infiltration of surface water would provide potential pathway for 
contamination at the surface to migrate into groundwater. The design of 
SuDS and other infiltration systems should include appropriate pollution 
prevention measures. If contamination is present in areas proposed for 
infiltration, we will require the removal of all contaminated material and 
provision of satisfactory evidence of its removal, the point of discharge 
should be kept as shallow as possible. Deep bored infiltration techniques are 
not acceptable; the distance between the point of discharge and the 
groundwater table should be a minimum of five metres and only clean, 
uncontaminated water should be discharged into the ground. 

 
 PILING 
 

17.Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods shall not be 
permitted other than with the express written consent of the Local Planning 
Authority, which may be given for those parts of the site where it has been 
demonstrated that there is no resultant unacceptable risk to groundwater. 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details.  
 

Page 86



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

Reason Piling should not create a direct pathway into the underlying Principal 
Aquifer. Investigation boreholes should be decommissioned appropriately. A 
Piling Risk Assessment is required should the development requires Piled 
foundations. 
 
PILING METHOD STATEMENT 

 

18.No impact piling shall take place until a piling method statement (detailing the 

depth and type of piling to be undertaken and the methodology by which 

such piling will be carried out, including measures to prevent and minimise 

the potential for damage to subsurface sewerage infrastructure, and the 

programme for the works) has been submitted to and approved in writing by 

the local planning authority in consultation with Thames Water. Any piling 

must be undertaken in accordance with the terms of the approved piling 

method statement.  

Reason: The proposed works will be in close proximity to underground 

sewerage utility infrastructure. Piling has the potential to impact on local 

underground sewerage utility infrastructure. The applicant is advised to 

contact Thames Water Developer Services on 0845 850 2777 to discuss the 

details of the piling method statement. 

FOUNDATIONS 

19.Excluding demolition and piling, development shall not commence until 

details of foundation design shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by 

The Local Planning Authority (in consultation with Thames Water). The 

scheme shall be implemented according to these approved details. These 

detail shall include - 

a. the methods to be used 

b. the depths of the various structures involved 

c. the density of piling if used 

d. details of materials to be removed or imported to site. 

More detailed information can be obtained from Thames Water's 

Groundwater Resources Team by email 

GroundwaterResources@Thameswater.co.uk or by telephone on 0203 577 

3603.  

Reason: To better assess the risk to water resources from the construction of 

the foundations. 

 

Page 87



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

WATER SUPPLY IMPACT  

20.Excluding demolition and piling, development shall not commence until 

impact studies of the existing water supply infrastructure have been 

submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority (in 

consultation with Thames Water). The studies should determine the 

magnitude of any new additional capacity required in the system and a 

suitable connection point. 

Reason: To ensure that the water supply infrastructure has sufficient capacity 

to cope with the/this additional demand. 

 BROWN ROOF 

21.Prior to works above ground, full details of the brown roof shall be submitted 

to, approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and implemented 

accordingly. The brown roof shall be design in accordance with the 

recommendations of the submitted Environmental Statement and must be 

installed and rendered fully operational prior to the first occupation of the 

development and retained and maintained thereafter. 

No alterations to the approved scheme shall be permitted without the prior 

written consent of the Local Planning Authority. 

CONSTRUCTION DUST 

22. (a) No demolition works shall be carried out on the site until a detailed report, 

including Risk Assessment, detailing management of demolition dust has 

been submitted and approved by the LPA.  This shall be with reference to the 

London Code of Construction Practice.  In addition either the site or the 

Demolition Company must be registered with the Considerate Constructors 

Scheme.  Proof of registration must be sent to the LPA prior to any works 

being carried out on the site. 

 

(b) No construction works shall be carried out on the site until a detailed 

report, including Risk Assessment, detailing management of construction 

dust has been submitted and approved by the LPA. This shall be with 

reference to the London Code of Construction Practice. In addition either the 

site or the Construction Company must be registered with the Considerate 

Constructors Scheme.  Proof of registration must be sent to the LPA prior to 

any works being carried out on the site 

 

Reason:  In order to ensure that the effects of the construction upon air 

quality is minimised. 

 

Page 88



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

CEMP 

 

23.No development, excluding demolition, shall be commenced unless a 

Construction and Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) has been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 

Plan shall include details of how noise, vibration, air and water pollution, 

among other impacts on amenity shall be minimised. The development shall 

be carried out in accordance with the approved plan unless otherwise agreed 

in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

Reason: In order to protect the amenities of the locality and to ensure the 

efficient use of resources and reduce the impact of the proposed 

development on the environment in accordance with the Environmental 

Impact Assessment and Saved UDP 2006 policies ENV6 and ENV7. 

BOILER EMISSIONS 

24.Prior to installation, details of the boilers to be provided for space heating 
and domestic hot water shall be to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority and implemented accordingly. The boilers to be provided 
for space heating and domestic hot water shall have dry NOx emissions not 
exceeding 40 mg/kWh (0%). 

 

Reason: To ensure that the Code for Sustainable Homes assessment obtains 

all credits available for reducing pollution. 

 

CHP EMISSIONS 

25.Prior to installation, evidence must be submitted to show that any the 
combustion plant to be installed meets an emissions standard of 40mg/kWh.  
Where any installations e.g. Combined Heat and Power combustion plant 
does not meet this emissions standard it should not be operated without the 
fitting of suitable NOx abatement equipment or technology as determined by 
a specialist to ensure comparable emissions.  Following installation, 
emissions certificates will need to be provided to the Local Planning 
Authority. 

 
REASON: To minimise harm to air quality in accordance with London Plan  
Plan 2011 Policy 7.14 Saved Policy ENV7 of the UDP 2006. 

PEDESTRIAN PRIORITY MEASURES 

26.Prior to occupation, details of pedestrian priority measures for the pedestrian 

routes shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority and implemented accordingly and retained thereafter.  

Page 89



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

REASON: To minimise conflict between pedestrians and vehicles in 

accordance with London Plan 2011 Policy 6.10. 

 

ARCHAEOLOGICAL PROGRAMME 

27. (A) No demolition or development shall take place until the applicant has 

secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological and historic 

buildings recording work in accordance with a Written Scheme of 

Investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and approved by 

the local planning authority. 

 

(B) No development or demolition shall take place other that in accordance 

with the Written Scheme of Investigation approved under Part (A). 

 

(C) The development shall not be occupied until the site investigation and 

post investigation assessment has been completed in accordance with the 

programme set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation approved under 

Part (A), and the provision made for analysis, publication and dissemination 

of the results and archive deposition has been secured. 

 

Reason:  Heritage assets of archaeological interest survive on the site. The 

planning authority wishes to secure the provision of archaeological 

investigation and historic buildings assessment followed by the subsequent 

recording of  significant remains prior to development (including preservation 

of important remains), in accordance with recommendations given by the 

borough and in PPS 5/NPPF. 

 

HISTORIC BUILDING RECORD 

28.No demolition of the Hornsey Baths buildings shall take place until a 
programme of historic building recording and analysis (RCHME Level 3 
minimum) has been secured and implemented, in accordance with a written 
scheme of investigation which has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the local planning authority. 
 

Reason:  Hornsey Baths are of buildings archaeology interest. The planning 
authority wishes to secure the provision of the recording in advance of 
demolition, in accordance with the NPPF. 
 

 

FOODSTORE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

 

Page 90



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

29.Prior to occupation of the foodstore, a foodstore management plan shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and 

shall be implemented accordingly. The plan shall include details of what 

measures will be implemented to reduce noise and harm to amenity arising 

from operation of the foodstore. 

 

REASON: In order to protect the amenities of the locality in accordance with 

the Saved UDP 2006 policies UD3, ENV6 and ENV7. 

 

MECHANICAL PLANT 

 

30.Technical specification details of the mechanical plant to be installed within 

the plant areas shown on the approved floor plans, together with an 

accompanying acoustic report, shall be submitted to and approved by the 

Local Planning Authority prior to installation of this plant. The plant shall not 

be operated other than in complete accordance with such measures as may 

be approved. 

 

Reason: In order to protect the amenities of the locality in accordance with 

the Environmental Impact Assessment and policy ENV6 of the London 

Borough of Haringey Unitary Development Plan 2006.  

 

 

CCTV 

 

31.Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted with the 

exception of demolition and piling, a scheme showing full details of a closed-

circuit television surveillance system and security lighting shall be submitted 

to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the relevant 

works shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the 

approved details.  

 

Reason: In order to ensure that the proposed development achieves an 

appropriate level of security having regard to London Plan 2011 Policy 7.3 

and Haringey Local Plan 2013 Policy SP11. 

 

LIGHTING 

 

32.Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, with the 

exception of demolition and piling, an external lighting strategy shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 

details of the external lighting for each phase shall be in accordance with the 

approved strategy. 

Page 91



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

 

Reason: In order to ensure that the proposed development achieves an 

appropriate level of security having regard to London Plan 2011 Policy 7.3 

and Haringey Local Plan 2013 Policy SP11. 

 

SIGNAGE 

 

33.Prior to occupation of the development, the applicant shall submit  a detailed 

design strategy for any signage to be displayed on any part of the 

development permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority, and implemented in accordance thereafter.  

 

Reason: To achieve good design throughout the development in respect of 

advertising, in accordance with Saved UDP 2006 Policy UD10. 

BIRD NESTING SEASON 

 

34.No demolition shall take place during the bird breeding season, unless the 
building, rooftop and its immediate proximity has been inspected by a 
suitably qualified ecologist with full knowledge of the proposed demolition 
program and processes, and the ecologist concludes that the development 
would not contravene protection afforded within the Wildlife and Countryside 
Act (As Amended).In the event that demolition is to be undertaken during the 
bird breeding season, no demolition shall take place until a copy of the 
ecologists' report confirming the acceptability of the demolition program and 
process has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority 
 
Reason: To afford suitable protection to wild nesting birds, in accordance 
with the provision of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (As Amended) 
and London Plan Policy 7.19 ‘Biodiversity and access to nature’ and Local 
Plan 2013 Policy SP13 ‘Open Space and Biodiversity’. 

 

CODE FOR SUSTAINABLE HOMES 

35.The dwelling(s) hereby approved shall achieve Level 4 of the Code for 
Sustainable Homes. No dwelling shall be occupied until a final Code 
Certificate has been issued for it certifying that Code Level 4 has been 
achieved.  
 

Reasons: To ensure that the development achieves a high level of 
sustainability in accordance with Policies 5.1, 5.2, 5.3 and 5.15 of the London 
Plan 2011 and Policies SP0 and SP4 the Haringey Local Plan 2013. 

 

 BREEAM 

Page 92



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

36.No building shall be occupied until a Shell and Core Certificate has been 

issued certifying that BREEAM (or any such equivalent national measure of 

sustainable building which replaces that scheme) rating ‘Very Good’ has 

been achieved for this development. 

 

Reasons: To ensure that the development achieves a high level of 

sustainability in accordance with Policies 5.1, 5.2, 5.3 and 5.15 of the London 

Plan 2011 and Policies SP0 and SP4 the Haringey Local Plan 2013. 

 

HEAT NETWORK 

 

37.The development shall have a communal onsite heat network, with a single 

energy centre connected to all residential apartments and non-residential 

uses.  The development shall be future proofed to enable connection to an 

area wide decentralised energy network at some future date. Prior to 

installation of plant full details of the single plant room/energy centre, CHP 

and Boiler specifications, communal network and future proofing measures 

should be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. The details should include: 

Confirmation of the final technical specifications for the energy centre, 
including CHP and boiler plant, and buffer vessels, and its operation; 

Details of the proposed tariff structures for the supply of heat, power and/or 
chilled water protect the interests of the occupiers; 

Plan showing the energy centre and flow and return pipe routes for the 
communal network for the development; 

Evidence showing that the combustion plant to be installed meets an 
emissions standard of 40mg/kWh.  Where any installations do not meet this 
emissions standard it should not be operated without the fitting of suitable 
NOx abatement equipment or technology as determined by a specialist to 
ensure comparable emissions.  Following installation emissions certificates 
will need to be provided 

Full details of the location and appearance of the flues, including height, 
design, location and sitting; 

Details of the onsite distribution system and design of building services to 
future proof to connect to an area wide DE network (refer to design guidance 
provided by the Greater London Authority); 

Details of other future proofing measures to enable an off-site connection to 
an area wide DE network, including details of the buried heat main from the 
site boundary to the onsite energy centre, service entry pit and capped off 
pipe work stubs at the energy centre, and demonstration of compliance with 
area wide decentralised network design guidance provided by the Greater 
London Authority as regards flow rates, temperature and pressure design 
parameters. 

 

Page 93



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

The energy centre and onsite network shall be installed and maintained as 

approved. Two years following the first Occupation of the Development the 

Owner  shall submit information to the Council showing that the CHP system 

is fully operational and is being used in accordance with the Planning 

Permission. 

REASON: In order to secure the provision of an on-site heat network and 

reduce carbon emissions in accordance with London Plan 2011 Policies 5.2 

‘Minimising carbon dioxide emissions’, 5.3 ‘Sustainable design and 

construction’ and 5.6 ‘Decentralised energy in development proposals’. 

 LIFETIME HOMES 

38.All residential units with the proposed development shall be designed to 

Lifetime Homes Standard unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local 

Planning Authority. 

Reason:  To ensure that the proposed development meets the Councils 

Standards in relation to the provision of Lifetime Homes. 

 

39.At least 10% of all dwellings within each tenure type shall be wheelchair 

accessible or easily adaptable for wheelchair use unless otherwise agreed in 

writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason:  To ensure that the proposed development meets the Council's 

Standards for the provision of wheelchair accessible dwellings. 

 

40.Prior to occupation of the development, with the exception of demolition and 

piling, a detailed scheme for the installation of bird nesting boxes shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such a 

scheme shall be in accordance with the recommendations of the submitted 

Environmental Statement September 2013 and implemented accordingly and 

retained thereafter.  

REASON: To support on-site biodiversity in accordance with London Plan 

Policy 7.19 ‘Biodiversity and access to nature’ and Local Plan 2013 Policy 

SP13 ‘Open Space and Biodiversity’. 

 

BATH BUILDING MATERIALS 

41.All salvageable materials retrieved from the public baths building, in particular 

those that are proposed to be reinstated should be stored at a safe, 

weatherproof and secured location, in agreement with the local authority.  

 

Page 94



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

REASON: In order to protect the condition of materials salvaged from the 

baths building 

 

42.Prior to works above ground, detailed plans and elevations of the electric 

substation enclosure, including the part of the facade salvaged from the 

Public Baths, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local 

planning authority.  

REASON: In order to secure the appropriate design and treatment of the 

substation and retained elements of the baths building. 

 

SIZE OF FOODSTORE 

43.The net internal sales area of the store shall not exceed 1,825 sq m. 

 

Reason: In order to secure the appropriate size of retail store on this site 

having regard to the viability, vitality and function of the local shopping 

centre.  

 

INFORMATIVE: Net sales area means the internal area accessible to the customer 

but excluding checkouts, lobbies, customer toilets and walkways behind the 

checkouts as defined by the Competition Commission. 

INFORMATIVE: Prior to demolition of existing buildings, an asbestos survey should 

be carried out to identify the location and type of asbestos containing materials.  

Any asbestos containing materials must be removed and disposed of in accordance 

with the correct procedure prior to any demolition or construction works carried out. 

INFORMATIVE: The applicant is advised that it is an offence to plant or cause 

Japanese knotweed to spread in the wild under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 

1981 and all waste containing Japanese knotweed comes under the control of Part 

II of the Environmental Protection Act 1990. The applicant should refer to the 

Environment Agency’s “Managing Japanese knotweed on development sites- the 

knotweed code of practice” (Version 3, 2013) for further information. 

INFORMATIVE: The new development will require naming/numbering. The applicant 

should contact the Transportation Group (tel. 020 8489 1000) at least six weeks 

before the development is occupied to arrange for the allocation of a suitable 

address.  

INFORMATIVE: Hours of Construction Work  

Page 95



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

The applicant is advised that under the Control of Pollution Act 1974, construction 
work which will be audible at the site boundary will be restricted to the following 
hours:-  
8.00am - 6.00pm Monday to Friday  
8.00am - 1.00pm Saturday  and not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays. 
 

INFORMATIVE: The application is advised that the proposal will be liable for the 
Mayor of London’s CIL. Based on the Mayor’s CIL charging schedule and the 
information given on the plans, the charge will be £1,621,130 (46,318  sq. m x £35). 
This will be collected by Haringey after the scheme is implemented and could be 
subject to surcharges for failure to assume liability, for failure to submit a 
commencement notice and/or for late payment, and subject to indexation in line 
with the construction costs index. 
 
INFORMATIVE: Thames Water would recommend that petrol / oil interceptors be 

fitted in all car parking/washing/repair facilities. Failure to enforce the effective use 

of petrol / oil interceptors could result in oil-polluted discharges entering local 

watercourses. 

 

INFORMATIVE: Thames Water requests that the Applicant should incorporate within 

their proposal, protection to the property by installing for example, a non-return 

valve or other suitable device to avoid the risk of backflow at a later date, on the 

assumption that the sewerage network may surcharge to ground level during storm 

conditions. 

 

INFORMATIVE: With regard to surface water drainage it is the responsibility of a 

developer to make proper provision for drainage to ground, water courses or a 

suitable sewer. In respect of surface water it is recommended that the applicant 

should ensure that storm flows are attenuated or regulated into the receiving public 

network through on or off site storage. When it is proposed to connect to a 

combined public sewer, the site drainage should be separate and combined at the 

final manhole nearest the boundary. Connections are not permitted for the removal 

of groundwater. Where the developer proposes to discharge to a public sewer, prior 

approval from Thames Water Developer Services will be required. They can be 

contacted on 0845 850 2777.  

 

INFORMATIVE: There are public sewers crossing or close to your development. In 

order to protect public sewers and to ensure that Thames Water can gain access to 

those sewers for future repair and maintenance, approval should be sought from 

Thames Water where the erection of a building or an extension to a building or 

underpinning work would be over the line of, or would come within 3 metres of, a 

Page 96



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

public sewer. Thames Water will usually refuse such approval in respect of the 

construction of new buildings, but approval may be granted in some cases for 

extensions to existing buildings. The applicant is advised to contact Thames Water 

Developer Services on 0845 850 2777 to discuss the options available at this site. 

 

INFORMATIVE: All works shall be undertaken by a qualified and experienced tree 

surgery company and to BS 3998:2010 Tree work - Recommendations. 

INFORMATIVE: Commercial Business must ensure all waste produced on site are 

disposed of responsibly under their duty of care within Environmental Protection Act 

1990. It is for the business to arrange a properly documented process for waste 

collection from a licensed contractor of their choice. Documentation must be kept 

by the business and be produced on request of an authorised Council Official under 

section 34 of the Act. Failure to do so may result in a fixed penalty fine or 

prosecution through the criminal Court system. 

INFORMATIVE:  The development of this site is likely to damage heritage assets of 
archaeological and historical interest. The applicant should therefore submit 
detailed proposals in the form of an archaeological project design. The design 
should be in accordance with the appropriate English Heritage guidelines. 
 
INFORMATIVE: The required written scheme should be prepared in consultation 
with English Heritage’s Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service. 
 

 

  

Page 97



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

 

17.0 APPENDICES 
 

17.1 Appendix 1 – Consultation Responses  

Page 98



O
F

F
R

E
P

C
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
F

o
r 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
 

  

 N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 
IN

T
E

R
N

A
L

 

 
L

B
H

 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

 

G
e
n
e
ra

l C
o

m
m

e
n
ts

S
it
e
 h

a
s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 p

o
in

ts
 t

o
 a

ll 
s
tr

e
e
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 b
o

u
n

d
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
  

C
P

Z
 r

e
c
e
n

tl
y
 i
n

tr
o

d
u
c
e
d

 w
e
s
t 

o
f 

H
o

rn
s
e
y
 H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e
t 

fr
o

m
 J

u
n
c
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

T
o

tt
e
n
h

a
m

 L
a
n
e
 t

o
 j
u
n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
M

id
d

le
 L

a
n
e
 

A
re

a
 t

o
 e

a
s
t 

h
a
s
 n

o
 C

P
Z

 a
n
d

 i
s
 h

e
a
v
ily

 p
a
rk

e
d

 

S
it
e
 i
s
 i
n

 a
re

a
 w

it
h

 m
e
d

iu
m

 p
u

b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 l
e
v
e
l 

(P
T

A
L
) 
o

f 
3
 

S
it
e
 i
s
 c

lo
s
e
 t

o
 l
o

c
a
l 
a
n

d
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 c
y
c
lin

g
 r

o
u
te

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 

L
C

N
+

 L
in

k
 7

8
 a

n
d

 G
re

e
n
w

a
y
s
 L

in
k
 0

4
 

 
T

ri
p

 G
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
  

T
o

ta
l 
tr

ip
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 b

y
 a

ll 
m

o
d

e
s
 i
s
 3

1
4
 i
n

/o
u
t 

tr
ip

s
 d

u
ri
n
g

 A
M

 
p

e
a
k
, 
5
0
2
 i
n
/o

u
t 

tr
ip

s
 d

u
ri
n
g

 i
n
te

r 
p

e
a
k
, 
5
1
9
 d

u
ri
n
g

 P
M

 p
e
a
k
 

T
o

ta
l 
c
a
r 

d
ri
v
e
r 

tr
ip

s
 i
s
 1

0
3
 i
n

/o
u
t 

A
M

 p
e
a
k
, 
2
6
8
 d

u
ri
n
g

 i
n
te

rp
e
a
k
 

a
n
d

 2
7
9
 d

u
ri
n
g

 P
M

 p
e
a
k
 

S
c
o

p
e
 o

f 
s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t

ra
n
s
p

o
rt

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
a
g

re
e
d

 w
it
h

 L
B

H
 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

a
s
e
d

 o
n

 T
R

A
V

L
 T

ri
p

 f
o

re
c
a
s
t 

d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 f

o
r 

C
la

re
n
c
e
 C

lo
s
e
, 
G

ra
n
d

 U
n
io

n
 V

ill
a
g

e
, 
K

e
w

 R
iv

e
rs

id
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 a
n
d

 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 a

p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

: 
2

9
1

 T
ri
p

s
 d

u
ri
n
g

 A
M

 P
e
a
k
, 
3
3

4
 t

ri
p

s
 d

u
ri
n
g

 
in

te
r 

p
e
a
k
 a

n
d

 3
0
9
 d

u
ri
n
g

 P
M

 p
e
a
k
. 

T
ra

v
e
l 
m

o
d

e
 s

p
lit

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 f

ro
m

 C
e
n
s
u
s
 2

0
1
1
 a

n
d

 i
f 

a
p

p
lie

d
 t

o
 t

ri
p

 
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 w

o
u
ld

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 4

5
 i
n
/o

u
t 

v
e
h
ic

le
 m

o
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 A

M
 

p
e
a
k
, 
5
5
 i
n
/o

u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

r 
p

e
a
k
 a

n
d

 4
8

 i
n

/o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 P

M
 p

e
a
k
 

T
ri

p
 g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

S
a
in

s
b

u
ry

’s
 b

a
s
e
d

 o
n

 S
a
in

s
b

u
ry

’s
 s

to
re

 a
t 

P
e
n
g

e
, 
N

o
rt

h
 F

in
c
h
le

y
 a

n
d

 W
ill

e
s
d

e
n
 G

re
e
n
. 
T

h
e
 s

to
re

 w
ill

 g
e
n
e
ra

te
 

2
2

5
 t

w
o

-w
a
y
 m

o
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 d
u

ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 p

e
a
k
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
p

e
ri
o

d
s
. 
3

0
%

 
o

f 
tr

ip
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

iv
e
rt

e
d

 o
r 

p
a
s
s
 b

y
 t

ri
p

s
 (
tr

ip
s
 a

lr
e
a
d

y
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

n
e
tw

o
rk

),
 h

e
n
c
e
 7

0
%

 o
f 

th
e
 t

ri
p

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

e
w

 t
ri
p

s
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 

fo
o

d
 s

to
re

 

M
a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

n
e
w

 t
ri
p

s
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 f

ro
m

 M
u
s
w

e
l 
H

ill
, 
F

o
rt

is
 

G
re

e
n

, 
A

le
x
a
n

d
ra

, 
C

ro
u

c
h

 E
n

d
, 
H

o
rn

s
e
y
 a

n
d

 S
tr

o
u

d
 G

re
e
n

 W
a
rd

s
 

(8
2
%

 o
f 

fo
re

c
a
s
te

d
 t

ri
p

s
, 
4
2
.5

%
 f

ro
m

 H
o

rn
s
e
y
) 

 

N
o

te
d

. 
C

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
,
s
1
0

6
 a

n
d

 s
2
7

8
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 

fo
llo

w
e
d

. 

Page 99



O
F

F
R

E
P

C
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
F

o
r 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
 

  

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

T
ra

ff
ic

 M
o

d
e
lli

n
g

A
p

p
lic

a
n
t’

s
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

W
S

P
 h

a
s
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 T

R
A

N
S

Y
T

 a
n
d

 L
IS

IN
G

 
m

o
d

e
lli

n
g

 o
f 

th
e
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 w
h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d

 a
 n

e
w

 s
ig

n
a
lis

e
d

 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

u
p

e
rm

a
rk

e
t,

 C
h

u
rc

h
 L

a
n
e
 J

u
n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 N
e
w

 R
iv

e
r 

V
ill

a
g

e
 a

n
d

 T
u
rn

p
ik

e
 L

a
n
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h
 H

o
rn

s
e
y
 P

a
rk

 R
o

a
d

 a
n
d

 
W

ig
h
tm

a
n
 R

o
a
d

. 
 

T
h
e
 m

o
d

e
lli

n
g

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 i
n
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
tl
y
 b

y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 T

ra
n
s
p

o
rt

 C
o

n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 C
H

2
M

 H
ill

. 

R
e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
m

o
d

e
lli

n
g

 s
u
g

g
e
s
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
re

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
n

 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 n

e
tw

o
rk

, 
a
n

d
 t

h
e
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 w
o

u
ld

 o
p

e
ra

te
 

w
it
h
in

 a
c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 l
im

it
s
 a

t 
a
ll 

ti
m

e
s
, 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 e

x
c
e
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

e
a
s
tb

o
u

n
d

 a
rm

  
o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
ig

n
a
lis

e
d

 j
u
n

c
ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 a

 9
0

%
 

d
e
g

re
e
 o

f 
s
a
tu

ra
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h
e
 A

M
 p

e
a
k
 p

e
ri
o

d
. 

T
h

is
 s

a
tu

ra
ti
o

n
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 s

ig
n

a
lis

in
g

 H
ill

fi
e
ld

 A
v
e
n
u
e
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 a

 
G

iv
e
 W

a
y
 j
u
n
c
ti
o

n
 a

s
 o

ri
g

in
a
lly

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

, 
a
n

d
 n

o
t 

a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 

tr
a
ff

ic
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

T
h
e
 m

o
d

e
lli

n
g

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p

ro
v
e
d

 f
o

r 
p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
s
 o

n
ly

 a
n
d

 
w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 f
u

rt
h
e
r 

fo
r 

a
p

p
ro

v
a
l 
b

y
 T

fL
’s

 s
ig

n
a
ls

 
d

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
t 

a
n

d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
te

a
m

 b
e
fo

re
 t

h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 c

a
n

 
b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

 C
a
r 

a
n

d
 C

y
c
le

 P
a
rk

in
g

  
1

7
8

 p
a
rk

in
g

 s
p

a
c
e
s
 f

o
r 

4
3

8
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
n

it
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 4

4
 d

is
a
b

le
d

 
b

a
y
s
 

1
1
0
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g

 s
p

a
c
e
s
, 
u
n

d
e
rn

e
a
th

 H
o

rn
s
e
y
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 b

u
ild

in
g

, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d

 f
ro

m
 N

e
w

 R
iv

e
r 

A
v
e
n

u
e
 

6
8

 c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g

 s
p

a
c
e
s
 i
n

 Q
u

a
d

ra
n

g
le

 b
u
ild

in
g

 a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d

 f
ro

m
 M

ile
s
 

R
o

a
d

 

3
6

 (
2

0
%

) 
o

f 
to

ta
l 
s
p

a
c
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

q
u

ip
p

e
d

 w
it
h

 e
le

c
tr

ic
 c

h
a
rg

in
g

 
p

o
in

ts
 a

n
d

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

3
6
 (
2
0
%

) 
w

it
h

 p
a
s
s
iv

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

1
4

 m
o

to
rc

y
c
le

 b
a
y
s
 f

o
r 

p
ri
v
a
te

 u
n

it
s
 a

n
d

 9
 m

o
to

rc
y
c
le

 b
a
y
s
 f

o
r 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 u

n
it
s
 

P
a
rk

in
g

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 S

a
v
e
d

 U
D

P
 P

o
lic

y
 M

1
0
, 
L
o

c
a
l 
P

la
n
 

P
o

lic
ie

s
 S

P
1
, 
S

P
4
, 
a
n
d

 S
P

7
 

4
5

3
 c

y
c
le

 s
p

a
c
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1

1
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 

(1
 s

p
a
c
e
 p

e
r 

1
 a

n
d

 2
 b

e
d

 u
n

it
 a

n
d

 2
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 p

e
r 

3
+

 b
e
d

 u
n

it
) 

1
1

4
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

u
rf

a
c
e
 c

a
rp

a
rk

 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

o
o

d
s
to

re
, 
1

2
 (
1

0
%

) 
w

it
h

 

Page 100



O
F

F
R

E
P

C
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
F

o
r 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
 

  

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

e
le

c
tr

ic
 c

h
a
g

ri
n
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 1
1
 (
1

0
%

) 
w

it
h

 p
a
s
s
iv

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 

9
0
 m

in
u
te

s
 f

re
e
 p

a
rk

in
g

 w
ill

 b
e
 o

ff
e
re

d
 

C
y
c
le

 p
a
rk

in
g

 d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

2
2

 s
p

a
c
e
s
 a

t 
g

ro
u

n
d

 l
e
v
e
l 
fo

r 
p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
 

 A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 s
e
rv

ic
in

g
 

3
 m

a
in

 v
e
h
ic

u
la

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 p

o
in

ts
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 

F
o

o
d

s
to

re
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 f

ro
m

 H
o

rn
s
e
y
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

v
ia

 a
 n

e
w

 s
ig

n
a
lis

e
d

 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 

T
w

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
a
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
: 
o

n
e
 f

ro
m

 M
ile

s
 R

o
a
d

 v
ia

 M
y
d

d
e
lt
o

n
 R

o
a
d

 
a
n
d

 C
a
m

p
s
b

o
u
rn

e
 R

o
a
d

, 
a
n
d

 o
n
e
 f

ro
m

 e
x
is

ti
n
g

 s
ig

n
a
lis

e
d

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

to
 N

e
w

 R
iv

e
r 

V
ill

a
g

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
v
ia

 N
e
w

 R
iv

e
r 

A
v
e
n

u
e
 

T
h

e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 t

ra
ff

ic
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 m
o

d
e
lle

d
 a

n
d

 f
o

u
n
d

 
a
c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 

D
e
liv

e
ri
e
s
 t

o
 a

n
d

 r
e
fu

s
e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 f

o
o

d
s
to

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 v

ia
 t

h
e
 

n
e
w

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 r

o
a
d

 o
n

 H
o

rn
s
e
y
 H

ig
h

 S
t 

a
n
d

 t
h

e
 u

n
d

e
rc

ro
ft

 s
e
rv

ic
in

g
 

a
re

a
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 f

o
o

d
s
to

re
. 
T

h
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
n
t 

h
a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 v
e
h

ic
le

 
s
w

e
p

t 
p

a
th

 a
n

a
ly

s
e
s
 t

o
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 t
h
a
t 

a
rt

ic
u

la
te

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
v
e
h

ic
le

s
 c

a
n

 e
n

te
r 

a
n

d
 l
e
a
v
e
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 y

a
rd

 i
n

 f
o

rw
a
rd

 g
e
a
r 

S
w

e
p

t 
p

a
th

 a
n

a
ly

s
e
s
 s

h
o

w
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

c
a
n

 b
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
d

 
b

y
 f

ir
e
 a

p
p

lia
n
c
e
s
 

R
e
fu

s
e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
e
le

m
e
n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 m

e
t 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e
 

s
tr

e
e
t 

a
s
 t

h
e
y
 a

re
 f

o
r 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a
 

 
 H

ig
h
w

a
y
 W

o
rk

s 
T

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
w

o
u

ld
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
 n

e
tw

o
rk

: 

N
e
w

 s
ig

n
a
lis

e
d

 j
u

n
c
ti
o

n
, 
 

re
m

o
v
a
l 
a
n

d
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
v
e
h

ic
u

la
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 p

o
in

ts
, 
re

m
o

v
a
l 
o

f 
v
e
h

ic
u

la
r 

c
ro

s
s
o

v
e
rs

, 
re

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fo

o
tw

a
y
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

a
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

ro
s
s
 L

a
n
e
 f

o
o

tp
a
th

 t
o

 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

 v
e
h
ic

u
la

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
, 
 

re
m

o
v
a
l 
o

f 
v
e
h

ic
le

 c
ro

s
s
o

v
e
r 

o
n

 H
o

rn
s
e
y
 H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

re
m

o
v
a
l 
o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 r

o
a
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
v
e
h
ic

u
la

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 p

o
in

t 
to

 f
o

o
d

s
to

re
 

re
m

o
v
a
l 
o

f 
v
e
h
ic

u
la

r 
c
ro

s
s
o

v
e
r 

o
n

 M
y
d

d
e
lt
o

n
 R

o
a
d

  

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
v
e
h

ic
u

la
r 

c
ro

s
s
o

v
e
r 

to
 Q

u
a
d

ra
n
g

le
 b

u
ild

in
g

 

T
h
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
n
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 u

p
g

ra
d

e
 o

f 

Page 101



O
F

F
R

E
P

C
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
F

o
r 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
 

  

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

M
y
d

d
e
lt
o

n
 R

o
a
d

 d
u
e
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

 f
lo

w
s
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
u
e
 t

o
 c

o
n

c
e
rn

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

ri
g

h
t 

tu
rn

in
g

 t
ra

ff
ic

 i
n

to
 a

n
d

 o
u
t 

o
f 

H
ill

fi
e
ld

 A
v
e
n
u
e
, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 t

ra
ff

ic
 e

n
g

in
e
e
ri
n

g
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 a
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 s

e
e
k
s
 t

o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h

is
 i
m

p
a
c
t.

  
 R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

a
ti
o

n
 

N
o

 o
b

je
c
ti
o

n
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
s
 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
tr

a
v
e
l 
p

la
n

 s
e
c
u

re
d

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 s

1
0
6

 w
it
h

: 
o

T
ra

v
e
l 
p

la
n

 f
o

r 
e
a
c
h

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
e
le

m
e
n

t 
(p

ri
v
a
te

 a
n

d
 a

ff
o

rd
a
b

le
) 

w
it
h

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n
g

 
o

R
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
in

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 p

a
c
k
s
 w

it
h
 l
o

c
a
l 
tr

a
n
s
p

o
rt

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 

o
E

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 c

a
r 

c
lu

b
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 w

it
h

 a
t 

le
a
s
t 

3
 c

a
rs

, 
fr

e
e
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 f
o

r 
2

 y
e
a
rs

, 
£
5

0
 c

re
d

it
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h

 u
n

it
 

o
£
3
0
0
0
 p

e
r 

tr
a
v
e
l 
p

la
n
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n
g

  
o

S
it
e
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

a
rk

in
g

 p
la

n
 

W
o

rk
 p

la
c
e
 t

ra
v
e
l 
p

la
n

 s
e
c
u

re
d

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 s

1
0
6

 w
it
h

: 
o

W
o

rk
 p

la
c
e
 t

ra
v
e
l 
p

la
n

 f
o

r 
A

1
 e

le
m

e
n

t 
o

S
h
o

w
e
rs

, 
lo

c
k
e
rs

 a
n
d

 c
h
a
n
g

in
g

 r
o

o
m

 f
a
c
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
 

o
£

3
0

0
0

 p
e
r 

tr
a
v
e
l 
p

la
n

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n
g

 

£
8

3
,0

0
0

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 s

1
0

6
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 f

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

, 
d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 p

a
rk

in
g

 z
o

n
e
 i
n

 
th

e
 l
o

c
a
l 
a
re

a
 

S
1

0
6

 c
la

u
s
e
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 t
h
a
t 

n
o

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 
b

e
 e

n
ti
tl
e
d

 t
o

 a
p

p
ly

 f
o

r 
a
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t’

s
 p

a
rk

in
g

 p
e
rm

it
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e
 t

e
rm

s
 

o
f 

a
n

y
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
u

b
s
e
q

u
e
n

t 
T

ra
ff

ic
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

O
rd

e
r 

(T
M

O
).
 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 m
u
s
t 

b
e
 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 o
f 

th
is

 a
n
d

 t
h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n

 t
h
e
 l
e
a
s
e
 w

h
e
re

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
. 
 

S
2

7
8

 H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 w

o
rk

s
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
£

8
2

5
,1

7
3

 t
o

w
a
rd

s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
 w

o
rk

s
 

o
C

o
s
t 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 s
ig

n
a
lis

e
d

 j
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 

to
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 f

o
o

d
s
to

re
  

o
S

c
h

e
m

e
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 M

y
d

d
e
lt
o

n
 A

v
e
n

u
e
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
  

o
R

e
m

o
v
a
l 
o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g

 c
ro

s
s
o

v
e
rs

 a
n
d

 r
e
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fo

o
tw

a
y
s
 

o
R

a
is

e
d

 e
n
tr

y
 t

re
a
tm

e
n
t 

o
f 

M
ile

s
 R

o
a
d

, 
M

y
d

d
e
lt
o

n
 A

v
e
n

u
e
  

o
H

ill
fi
e
ld

 A
v
e
n
u
e
 t

ra
ff

ic
 c

a
lm

in
g

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
  
 

S
1

0
6

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
£

6
0

,0
0

0
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 c

y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 w
a
lk

in
g

 

Page 102



O
F

F
R

E
P

C
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
F

o
r 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
 

  

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 (
L

C
N

+
 L

in
k
 7

8
, 
G

re
e
n

w
a
y
s
 L

in
k
 0

4
, 
C

y
c
le

 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 Q

u
ie

tw
a
y
s
 c

y
c
le

 r
o

u
te

s
) 

 N
o

 o
b

je
c
ti
o

n
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 C

o
n
d

it
io

n
s
 

m
o

d
e
lli

n
g

 s
u
b

m
it
te

d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 a
n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 f
o

r 
p

la
n
n
in

g
 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
s
 o

n
ly

 a
n
d

 w
ill

 h
a
v
e
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 a
n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 b
y
 T

fL
 

b
e
fo

re
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e
s
 o

n
 s

it
e
, 
a
ll 

c
o

s
ts

 b
o

rn
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

a
p

p
lic

a
n
t 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 (
C

M
P

) 
a
n
d

 C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 L

o
g

is
ti
c
s
 

P
la

n
 (
C

L
P

) 
fo

r 
th

e
 l
o

c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 a

p
p

ro
v
a
l 
 3

 m
o

n
th

s
 (
 t

h
re

e
 

m
o

n
th

s
) 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 o

n
 s

it
e
. 
 

S
u

b
m

it
 a

 D
e
liv

e
ry

 a
n

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n

 (
D

S
P

),
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 m

u
s
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
 s

e
rv

ic
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
p

e
rm

a
rk

e
t,

 a
n
d

 s
e
rv

ic
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

u
n
it
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
fu

s
e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
e
liv

e
ri
e
s
 

 T
h

e
 

n
e
w

 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
w

ill
 

re
q

u
ir
e
 

n
a
m

in
g

 
a
n

d
 

n
u

m
b

e
ri
n

g
. 

T
h

e
 

a
p

p
lic

a
n
t 

s
h
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

th
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

L
a
n

d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

s
ix

 w
e
e
k
s
 

b
e
fo

re
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

is
 o

c
c
u

p
ie

d
 (
te

l.
 0

2
0

 8
4

8
9

 5
5
7

3
).
 

   

 
L

B
H

 C
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 

O
ff

ic
e

r 

S
e
e
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 3

 
L

B
H

 W
a

s
te

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 m

u
s
t 

e
n

s
u

re
 a

ll 
w

a
s
te

 p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

 o
n

 s
it
e
 a

re
 

d
is

p
o

s
e
d

 o
f 

re
s
p

o
n
s
ib

ly
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e
ir

 d
u
ty

 o
f 

c
a
re

 w
it
h
in

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 A

c
t 

1
9

9
0

. 
It

 i
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 t

o
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
 a

 p
ro

p
e
rl
y
 

d
o

c
u

m
e
n
te

d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

w
a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 a
 l
ic

e
n
s
e
d

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
o

f 

th
e
ir
 c

h
o

ic
e
.

D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 k

e
p

t 
b

y
 t

h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 b
e
 

p
ro

d
u

c
e
d

 o
n

 r
e
q

u
e
s
t 

o
f 

a
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

O
ff

ic
ia

l 
u

n
d

e
r 

s
e
c
ti
o

n
 3

4
 

o
f 

th
e
 A

c
t.

 F
a
ilu

re
 t

o
 d

o
 s

o
 m

a
y
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 a

 f
ix

e
d

 p
e
n
a
lt
y
 f

in
e
 o

r 

p
ro

s
e
c
u
ti
o

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 c

ri
m

in
a
l 
C

o
u
rt

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

W
a
s
te

 m
u
s
t 

b
e
 p

ro
p

e
rl
y
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d

 t
o

 a
v
o

id
 s

p
ill

a
g

e
, 
s
id

e
 w

a
s
te

 a
n
d

 

w
in

d
 b

lo
w

n
 l
it
te

r.
 W

a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 a

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 f

re
q

u
e
n
t 

N
o

te
d

. 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
v
e
 a

d
d

e
d

.

Page 103



O
F

F
R

E
P

C
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
F

o
r 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
 

  

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

e
n

o
u

g
h

 t
o

 a
v
o

id
 s

p
ill

a
g

e
 a

n
d

 w
a
s
te

 a
c
c
u

m
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 b

in
 a

re
a
 

a
n
d

 s
u
rr

o
u
n
d

in
g

 l
a
n
d

 b
o

th
 p

ri
v
a
te

 a
n
d

 p
u
b

lic
. 
 

S
u

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

s
p

a
c
e
 f

o
r 

d
o

m
e
s
ti
c
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
a
n

d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 b

in
s
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 i
n

 a
 m

a
n

n
e
r 

to
 a

v
o

id
 a

c
c
u

m
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
u

n
 c

o
n

tr
o

lle
d

 w
a
s
te

. 
  

W
a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 e
n
te

r 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 s
it
e
, 

c
o

lle
c
t 

a
n

d
 l
e
a
v
e
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 i
n

 f
o

rw
a
rd

 g
e
a
r.

 

T
h

is
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t 
is

 h
a
p

p
y
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

o
n

 s
it
e
 t

o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 d

e
ta

ils
 w

it
h

 

p
ro

p
o

s
e
r.

 

A
m

b
e
r.

 

 

 
L

B
H

 F
lo

o
d

 a
n

d
 

S
u

rf
a

c
e

 W
a

te
r 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
:

 
1

.
A

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
g

re
e
n

 o
r 

b
ro

w
n
 r

o
o

fs
 

2
.

A
ll 

p
la

n
te

d
 a

re
a
s
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 S
u
D

S
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

3
.

M
o

s
e
lle

 B
ro

o
k
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
-c

u
lv

e
rt

e
d

 
4

.
P

e
rm

e
a
b

le
 s

u
rf

a
c
in

g
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 u

s
e
d

 o
n
 a

ll 
s
u

rf
a
c
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 
n
o

t 
to

 b
e
 h

ig
h
ly

 t
ra

ff
ic

k
e
d

. 
5

.
D

e
te

n
ti
o

n
 o

f 
w

a
te

r 
o

n
 s

it
e
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 i
n
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n

to
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

, 
n

o
t 

ju
s
t 

a
tt

e
n

u
a
ti
o

n
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
. 
T

h
e
 d

e
ta

in
e
d

 g
re

y
 

w
a
te

r 
c
o

u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
c
y
c
le

d
 f

o
r 

ir
ri

g
a
ti
o

n
 o

r 
to

ile
t 

fl
u
s
h

in
g

 o
n

 s
it
e
 

6
.

S
1

0
6

 m
o

n
e
y
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 t

o
w

a
rd

 ‘
G

re
e
n
s
tr

e
e
ts

’ 
p

ro
je

c
t 

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 s

u
rf

a
c
e
 w

a
te

r 
ru

n
o

ff
 i
n

 C
a
m

p
s
b

o
u

rn
e
 A

re
a
 

 

1
.

B
ro

w
n
 r

o
o

f 
c
o

v
e
ra

g
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d

 t
h
re

e
fo

ld
 

2
.

P
la

n
te

d
 a

re
a
s
 w

ill
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 r

u
n
o

ff
 

a
tt

e
n
u

ta
ti
o

n
 

3
.

P
u
b

lic
 r

e
a
lm

 w
ill

 b
e
 h

e
a
v
ily

 t
ra

ff
ic

k
e
d

 a
n
d

 m
u
s
t 

b
e
 

ro
b

u
s
t 

4
.

O
n

-s
it
e
 w

a
te

r 
s
to

ra
g

e
 i
s
 i
n
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 

5
.

S
1
0
6
 m

o
n
e
y
 i
s
 l
im

it
e
d

 b
y
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
v
ia

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n

 d
ir

e
c
te

d
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 o

th
e
r 

n
e
e
d

s
 

 
L

B
H

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 

H
e

a
lt

h
 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

th
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
:

 
1

.
C

o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
 l
a
n

d
 r

e
m

e
d

ia
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 v
e
ri
fi
c
a
ti
o

n
 

2
.

E
le

c
tr

ic
 v

e
h

ic
le

 c
h
a
rg

in
g

 p
o

in
ts

 
3

.
D

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
g

re
e
n

 r
o

o
f 

4
.

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

f 
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 D

u
s
t 

5
.

L
im

it
 t

o
 b

o
ile

r 
e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

6
.

L
im

it
 t

o
 C

H
P

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

 

 

1
.

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 a

p
p

lie
d

 

2
.

E
le

c
tr

ic
 v

e
h

ic
le

 c
h
a
rg

in
g

 p
o

in
ts

 s
h

o
w

n
 o

n
 

s
u
b

m
it
te

d
 p

la
n
s
 

3
.

B
ro

w
n
 r

o
o

f 
p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

. 
D

e
ta

ils
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 b

y
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

4
.

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 a

p
p

lie
d

 

Page 104



O
F

F
R

E
P

C
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
F

o
r 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
 

  

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

A
s
b

e
s
to

s
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

v
e

 
5

.
C

o
n
d

it
io

n
 a

p
p

lie
d

 

6
.

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 a

p
p

lie
d

 

 
L

B
H

 B
u

il
d

in
g

 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

T
h

is
 w

o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 t

h
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 B

u
ild

in
g

 
R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s
 2

0
1

0
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
 a

n
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
 

to
 b

e
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 L

B
H

 

N
o

te
d

. 

 
E

X
T

E
R

N
A

L
 

 
G

re
a

te
r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

  

S
ta

g
e
 I
  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 6

 N
o

v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1

3

 

1
.

P
ri
n

c
ip

le
 o

f 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t:
 P

ri
n

c
ip

le
 o

f 
m

ix
e
d

 u
s
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 c
a
n

 b
e
 a

c
c
e
p

te
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

 

D
e
p

o
t 

s
it
e
 e

n
v
is

a
g

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 r

e
lo

c
a
te

d
 w

a
s
te

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 i
s
 

s
e
c
u
re

d
 

2
.

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
u
s
in

g
: 
T

h
e
 a

ff
o

rd
a
b

le
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 o

ff
e
r 

is
 a

c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 

in
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
, 
s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 a

n
 i
n

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n
tl
y
 v

e
ri
fi
e
d

 v
ia

b
ili

ty
 

a
p

p
ra

is
a
l 
to

 d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h

a
t 

th
e
 o

ff
e
r 

is
 t

h
e
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 

re
a
s
o

n
a
b

le
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 P
o

lic
ie

s
 3

.1
1
 a

n
d

 3
.1

2
 

3
.

R
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
m

ix
: 
W

h
ile

 t
h
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
m

ix
 i
s
 v

a
ri
e
d

, 
th

e
 

a
p

p
lic

a
n
t 

is
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
d

 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
fa

m
ily

 s
iz

e
d

 

u
n

it
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
to

 p
ro

m
o

te
 m

ix
e
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

4
.

R
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l D

e
n
s
it
y
: 
W

h
ils

t 
th

e
 d

e
n

s
it
y
 i
s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n

 t
h

e
 r

a
n
g

e
 

in
d

ic
a
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 P

la
n
 (
T

a
b

le
 3

.2
),
 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h
 

th
a
t 

in
d

ic
a
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 H

a
ri
n

g
e
y
 H

e
a
rt

la
n
d

s
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 S
P

D
. 
A

s
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 l
o

c
a
te

d
 i
n

 a
n
 I
n
te

n
s
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 

A
re

a
, 
th

e
 d

e
n
s
it
y
 c

a
n
 b

e
 a

c
c
e
p

te
d

 i
n
 t

h
is

 i
n
s
ta

n
c
e
. 
 

5
.

R
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l Q

u
a
lit

y
: 
R

e
v
is

io
n

s
 a

re
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
d

 t
o

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
in

g
le

 a
s
p

e
c
t 

n
o

rt
h

 f
a
c
in

g
 u

n
it
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

n
o

n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

ro
o

m
s
 i
n

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
d

a
y
lig

h
t 

6
.

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 p
la

y
 s

p
a
c
e
: 
T

h
e
 p

la
y
s
p

a
c
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 a

n
d

 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n
c
e
 w

it
h

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 P
la

n
 

p
o

lic
y
 3

.6
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 P

la
n

 I
n

fo
rm

a
l 
R

e
c
re

a
ti
o

n
 S

P
G

 

7
.

U
rb

a
n

 D
e
s
ig

n
: 
T

h
e
 p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

 r
o

u
te

 b
e
tw

e
e
n

 M
y
d

d
e
lt
o

n
 R

o
a
d

 

a
n

d
 C

ro
s
s
 L

a
n

e
 n

e
e
d

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

o
v
e
rl
o

o
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

 

1
.

N
o

te
d

. 
P

la
n
n

in
g

 p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 f

o
r 

W
e
s
te

rn
 r

o
a
d

 

d
e
p

o
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
c
u
re

d
. 
 

2
.

H
o

u
s
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

is
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 b
y
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
v
ia

b
ili

ty
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

3
.

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

m
ix

 e
n
a
b

le
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
h
ig

h
 a

m
o

u
n
t 

o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

4
.

N
o

te
d

 

5
.

N
o

rt
h
 f

a
c
in

g
 s

in
g

le
 a

s
p

e
c
t 

u
n
it
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

re
d

u
c
e
d

 

6
.

N
o

te
d

 

7
.

E
a
s
t-

w
e
s
t 

ro
u

te
 i
s
 h

e
a
v
ily

 o
v
e
rl

o
o

k
e
d

 a
n

d
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 

fr
o

m
 g

ro
u
n
d

 f
lo

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
 

8
.

1
0

%
 w

h
e
e
lc

h
a
ir
 u

n
it
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

, 
e
a
c
h

 

w
it
h

 B
lu

e
 B

a
d

g
e
 p

a
rk

in
g

 s
p

a
c
e
. 
P

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

 p
ri

o
ri
ty

 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 s

e
c
u

re
d

 b
y
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
 

9
.

H
e
a
t 

n
e
tw

o
rk

 d
e
ta

ils
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 b

y
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
. 

C
a
p

a
c
it
y
 o

f 
C

H
P

 c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 t
o

 b
e
 1

5
3
 k

W
e
 

Page 105



O
F

F
R

E
P

C
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
F

o
r 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
 

  

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

8
.

In
c
lu

s
iv

e
 A

c
c
e
s
s
: 
In

 o
rd

e
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h

 

L
o

n
d

o
n
 P

la
n
 P

o
lic

ie
s
 3

.8
 a

n
d

 7
.2

, 
th

e
 a

p
p

lic
a
n

t 
is

 r
e
q

u
e
s
te

d
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 o

n
: 
lo

c
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
w

h
e
e
lc

h
a
ir
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 u

n
it
s
, 
B

lu
e
 B

a
d

g
e
 h

o
ld

e
r 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g

 s
p

a
c
e
s
, 
ro

u
te

s
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
w

h
e
e
lc

h
a
ir
 u

s
e
rs

, 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

d
e
ta

il 
o

n
 

th
e
 n

e
w

 j
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 w
id

e
 c

ro
s
s
o

v
e
r 

o
n

 H
o

rn
s
e
y
 H

ig
h

 

S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n

d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 y

a
rd

 t
o

 a
v
o

id
 c

o
n

fl
ic

ts
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 v
e
h

ic
le

s
 a

n
d

 p
e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n
s
 

9
.

S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t:
 T

h
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
n
t 

h
a
s
 b

ro
a
d

ly
 f

o
llo

w
e
d

 

th
e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 h

ie
ra

rc
h
y
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 c

a
rb

o
n

 d
io

x
id

e
 (
C

O
2

) 
e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

a
lt
h
o

u
g

h
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

re
v
is

io
n

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d

 

b
e
fo

re
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

 c
a
n

 b
e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

C
O

2
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 v

e
ri

fi
e
d

 –
 a

 d
ra

w
in

g
 s

h
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

o
u
te

 o
f 

th
e
 h

e
a
t 

n
e
tw

o
rk

 l
in

k
in

g
 a

ll 
b

u
ild

in
g

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 b
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

, 
th

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
ti
v
e
 e

le
c
tr

ic
a
l 
c
a
p

a
c
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 C

H
P

 m
u

s
t 

b
e
 

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 

1
0

.
T

ra
n
s
p

o
rt

: 
In

 t
h

e
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
, 
th

e
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

c
u

rr
e
n

tl
y
 w

it
h

 t
h
e
 t

ra
n
s
p

o
rt

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

L
o

n
d

o
n
 P

la
n
. 
A

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

is
s
u
e
s
 a

re
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

 

w
h
ic

h
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 b
e
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 s

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 –

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 
m

o
d

e
lli

n
g

 d
a
ta

, 
c
a
r 

p
a
rk

 u
s
a
g

e
 

c
a
p

a
c
it
y
, 
s
e
rv

ic
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
, 
im

p
a
c
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

m
e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 

a
n

d
 c

y
c
le

 p
a
rk

in
g

. 
F

u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

, 
it
 i
s
 r

e
q

u
e
s
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
e
c
u

re
s
 a

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

 u
p

g
ra

d
e
s
 

a
n
d

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 
b

u
s
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
, 
fa

c
ili

ta
te

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
 

C
P

Z
 w

it
h

in
 a

 S
e
c
ti
o

n
 1

0
6

 a
g

re
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 s

e
c
u
re

s
 b

o
th

 a
 D

S
P

 

a
n
d

 C
L
P

 b
y
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
. 
 

 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 F

ir
e

 

B
ri

g
a

d
e

 

T
h

e
 B

ri
g

a
d

e
 i
s
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

 f
o

r 
fi
re

 f
ig

h
ti
n
g

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 o

n
to

 

th
e
 s

it
e
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

d
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

iz
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g

 t
h

e
y
 w

ill
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

d
ry

 r
is

in
g

 m
a
in

s
 o

r 
s
p

ri
n

k
le

rs
 f

o
r 

fi
re

 f
ig

h
ti
n

g
 d

e
ta

ils
 t

o
 b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 

N
o

te
d

.

 
G

re
a

te
r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 o

f 
h

it
h
e
rt

o
 u

n
k
n

o
w

n
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 

re
m

a
in

s
 b

e
in

g
 p

re
s
e
n

t 
a
t 

th
e
 s

it
e
 a

n
d

 i
f 

fo
u

n
d

 t
h
e
s
e
 m

a
y
 a

ff
e
c
t 

th
e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 o

f 
a
 c

o
n

s
e
n
te

d
 

N
o

te
d

. 
C

o
n
d

it
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
v
e
 a

p
p

lie
d

. 

Page 106



O
F

F
R

E
P

C
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
F

o
r 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
 

  

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

A
rc

h
a

e
o

lo
g

ic
a

l 

A
d

v
is

o
ry

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

(G
L

A
A

S
) 

s
c
h

e
m

e
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

s
h

o
u

ld
 t

h
e
 L

P
A

 s
e
e
k
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 c

a
s
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

b
a
s
is

 o
f 

c
u
rr

e
n

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 I
 a

d
v
is

e
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

w
o

 (
2

) 
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 b

e
 

a
p

p
lie

d
 t

o
 a

n
y
 f

o
rt

h
c
o

m
in

g
 c

o
n
s
e
n

t:
 

    C
o

n
d

it
io

n
  

 A
) 
N

o
 d

e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

r 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
h
a
ll 

ta
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 a

p
p

lic
a
n

t 
h

a
s
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 o

f 
a
rc

h
a
e
o

lo
g

ic
a
l 
a
n

d
 

h
is

to
ri
c
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 r

e
c
o

rd
in

g
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 a
 W

ri
tt

e
n

 S
c
h
e
m

e
 

o
f 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 s
u
b

m
it
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
n
t 

a
n
d

 
a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 l
o

c
a
l 
p

la
n
n

in
g

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

. 
  B

) 
N

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

d
e
m

o
lit

io
n
 s

h
a
ll 

ta
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 o

th
e
r 

th
a
t 

in
 

a
c
c
o

rd
a
n
c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h
e
 W

ri
tt

e
n

 S
c
h
e
m

e
 o

f 
In

v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
 a

p
p

ro
v
e
d

 u
n

d
e
r 

P
a
rt

 (
A

).
 

  C
) 
T

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
h
a
ll 

n
o

t 
b

e
 o

c
c
u

p
ie

d
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 s

it
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 p

o
s
t 

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e
 

w
it
h

 t
h
e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h
e
 W

ri
tt

e
n

 S
c
h
e
m

e
 o

f 
In

v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 u
n
d

e
r 

P
a
rt

 (
A

),
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 m
a
d

e
 f

o
r 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

, 
p

u
b

lic
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
is

s
e
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 a

n
d

 a
rc

h
iv

e
 d

e
p

o
s
it
io

n
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 s

e
c
u
re

d
. 

 R
e
a
s
o

n
: 
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e
 a

s
s
e
ts

 o
f 

a
rc

h
a
e
o

lo
g

ic
a
l 
in

te
re

s
t 

s
u

rv
iv

e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
. 

T
h

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 w

is
h

e
s
 t

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
rc

h
a
e
o

lo
g

ic
a
l 

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 h
is

to
ri
c
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

fo
llo

w
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 

s
u
b

s
e
q

u
e
n
t 

re
c
o

rd
in

g
 o

f 
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n

t 
re

m
a
in

s
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

re
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
im

p
o

rt
a
n
t 

re
m

a
in

s
),
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n
d

a
ti
o

n
s
 g

iv
e
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d

 i
n
 P

P
S

 5
/N

P
P

F
. 

 In
fo

rm
a
ti
v
e
: 
 T

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

is
 s

it
e
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 d
a
m

a
g

e
 h

e
ri
ta

g
e
 

a
s
s
e
ts

 o
f 

a
rc

h
a
e
o

lo
g

ic
a
l 
a
n

d
 h

is
to

ri
c
a
l 
in

te
re

s
t.

 T
h

e
 a

p
p

lic
a
n

t 
s
h

o
u
ld

 
th

e
re

fo
re

 s
u

b
m

it
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 i
n

 t
h
e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

a
n

 a
rc

h
a
e
o

lo
g

ic
a
l 

p
ro

je
c
t 

d
e
s
ig

n
. 
T

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n
c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h
e
 

Page 107



O
F

F
R

E
P

C
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
F

o
r 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
 

  

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 E
n

g
lis

h
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e
 g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
.

 A
N

D
: 

 N
o

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

d
e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 H

o
rn

s
e
y
 B

a
th

s
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 s

h
a
ll 

ta
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 u

n
ti
l 
a
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 o

f 
h
is

to
ri
c
 b

u
ild

in
g

 r
e
c
o

rd
in

g
 a

n
d

 
a
n
a
ly

s
is

 (
R

C
H

M
E

 L
e
v
e
l 
3
 m

in
im

u
m

) 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 a

n
d

 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
, 
in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n
c
e
 w

it
h

 a
 w

ri
tt

e
n

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 o

f 
in

v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
 

w
h

ic
h

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 i
n

 w
ri
ti
n

g
 b

y
 t

h
e
 l
o

c
a
l 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

. 
 R

e
a
s
o

n
: 
 H

o
rn

s
e
y
 B

a
th

s
 a

re
 o

f 
b

u
ild

in
g

s
 a

rc
h
a
e
o

lo
g

y
 i
n
te

re
s
t.

 T
h
e
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 w
is

h
e
s
 t

o
 s

e
c
u
re

 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
c
o

rd
in

g
 i
n

 
a
d

v
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
d

e
m

o
lit

io
n

, 
in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n
c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h
e
 N

P
P

F
. 

  In
fo

rm
a
ti
v
e
: 
T

h
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d

 w
ri

tt
e
n

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 i
n

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 E
n

g
lis

h
 H

e
ri

ta
g

e
’s

 G
re

a
te

r 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 A

rc
h
a
e
o

lo
g

ic
a
l 

A
d

v
is

o
ry

 S
e
rv

ic
e
. 

   

 
E

n
g

li
s
h

 H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 
T
h
e
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
sh
o
u
ld
b
e
d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
in
a
cc
o
rd
a
n
ce

w
it
h
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l
a
n
d

lo
ca
l
p
o
li
cy

g
u
id
a
n
ce
,
a
n
d
o
n
th
e
b
a
si
s
o
f
y
o
u
r
sp
e
ci
a
li
st
co
n
se
rv
a
ti
o
n

a
d
v
ic
e
.
It
is
n
o
t
n
e
ce
ss
a
ry

fo
r
u
s
to

b
e
co
n
su
lt
e
d
a
g
a
in
.

1
.

N
o

 o
b

je
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 d

e
m

o
lit

io
n

 o
f 

fo
rm

e
r 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

b
u
ild

in
g

, 
3
9
 H

ig
h
 

S
tr

e
e
t,

 N
8
, 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 s
u
it
a
b

le
 r

e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n

t 
b

u
ild

in
g

 i
s
 s

e
c
u
re

d
. 

M
a
in

 c
o

n
c
e
rn

 i
s
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 H

o
rn

s
e
y
 

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

C
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 A

re
a
. 
 

2
.

H
ig

h
 s

tr
e
e
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
 a

p
p

e
a
r 

o
v
e
rs

c
a
le

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 l
a
rg

e
 f

lo
o

r 
to

 

c
e
ili

n
g

 h
e
ig

h
t 

a
n
d

 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
fi
n
e
 d

e
ta

ili
n
g

. 
T

h
e
 f

o
u
rt

h
 f

lo
o

r 
is

 t
o

o
 

p
ro

m
in

e
n
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 h

e
ig

h
t 

a
n
d

 b
o

x
-l

ik
e
 t

re
a
tm

e
n
t.

 

3
.

T
h

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
fo

rm
s
 a

 b
a
c
k
d

ro
p

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
 

a
n

d
 w

o
u

ld
 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
e
 a

 n
e
w

 s
c
a
le

 a
n
d

 a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
to

 

L
B

H
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

d
o

e
s
 n

o
t

o
b

je
c
t

 

1
.

N
o

te
d

 

2
.

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

H
ig

h
 S

t 
b

u
ild

in
g

 i
s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 

s
c
a
le

 a
n

d
 d

e
s
ig

n
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 A

re
a
 

3
.

T
h

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
s
c
a
le

s
 d

o
w

n
 t

o
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

r 
o

f 
C

A
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d

 

4
.

O
ff

ic
e
rs

’ 
v
ie

w
 i
s
 t

h
a
t 

im
p

a
c
t 

is
 o

u
tw

e
ig

h
e
d

 b
y
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
in

g
, 
p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n
 r

o
u
te

s
 a

n
d

 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

ts
, 
re

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e
t 

 

Page 108



O
F

F
R

E
P

C
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
F

o
r 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
 

  

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

th
is

 a
re

a

4
.

P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 c
a
u

s
e
 s

o
m

e
 h

a
rm

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 H

o
rn

s
e
y
 

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

C
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 A

re
a
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 n

o
t 

o
u

tw
e
ig

h
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
. 
  

 

 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 

In
it
ia

l 
c
o

m
m

e
n
ts

 2
9
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

 T
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 r
e
q

u
ir

e
 a

d
d

re
s
s
in

g
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 

b
e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

lia
n
t 

w
it
h

 t
h
e
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 P
o

lic
ie

s
 o

f 

th
e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 P

la
n

: 

1
.

D
e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 t
h

e
 n

e
e
d

 f
o

r 
a
 s

ig
n

a
lis

e
d

 j
u

n
c
ti
o

n
  

2
.

C
la

ri
fy

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 M

y
d

d
e
lt
o

n
 R

o
a
d

 
3

.
P

ro
v
id

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 S

a
in

s
b

u
ry

’s
 s

it
e
s
 

s
u
rv

e
y
e
d

  
4

.
P

ro
v
id

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 d

iv
e
rt

e
d

 a
n
d

 p
a
s
s
 

b
y
 t

ri
p

s
 w

e
re

 d
e
ri
v
e
d

  
5

.
C

o
n
fi
rm

 t
o

 w
h

a
t 

e
x
te

n
t 

a
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 d

o
n
e
  

6
.

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

 c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g

 a
c
c
u
m

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
 

7
.

R
e
v
is

e
 t

h
e
 l
o

c
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

ta
il 

B
lu

e
 B

a
d

g
e
 s

p
a
c
e
s
  

8
.

P
ro

v
id

e
 e

n
la

rg
e
d

 p
a
rk

in
g

 s
p

a
c
e
s
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 
P

la
n
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
  

9
.

S
e
e
k
 a

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 f

u
n
d

 a
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
, 
d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 
im

p
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
 l
o

c
a
l 
C

P
Z

  
1

0
.

C
a
r 

c
lu

b
s
 a

n
d

 l
e
g

a
l 
a
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
th

a
t 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
n
o

t 
a
p

p
ly

 f
o

r 
o

n
 s

tr
e
e
t 

p
a
rk

in
g

 p
e
rm

it
s
  

1
1

.
P

ro
v
id

e
 e

a
c
h

 w
h
e
e
lc

h
a
ir
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 u

n
it
 w

it
h

 a
 B

lu
e
 B

a
d

g
e
 

p
a
rk

in
g

 b
a
y
  

1
2

.
C

o
n
fi
rm

 t
o

 w
h
a
t 

e
x
te

n
t 

th
e
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
in

g
 c

a
r 

c
lu

b
 o

n
 

s
it
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
a
m

in
e
d

. 
 

1
3

.
C

la
ri

fy
 t

h
e
 l
o

c
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 r
e
ta

il 
a
n

d
 s

ta
ff

 c
y
c
le

 
p

a
rk

in
g

  
1

4
.

P
ro

v
id

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
v
is

it
o

r 
s
p

a
c
e
s
  

1
5

.
C

o
n

fi
rm

 t
h

e
 p

re
s
e
n

c
e
 o

f 
p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

 p
ri

o
ri
ty

 m
e
a
s
u

re
s
 w

it
h

in
 

th
e
 r

e
ta

il 
c
a
r 

p
a
rk

  
 

     

1
.

L
B

H
 c

o
n

s
id

e
rs

 j
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

, 
s
u
b

je
c
t 

to
 T

fL
 

a
p

p
ro

v
a
l 

  
It

e
m

s
 2

 t
o

 6
. 
S

c
o

p
e
 o

f 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

 
a
g

re
e
d

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

. 

7
.

F
o

llo
w

e
d

. 

8
.

S
p

a
c
e
s
 m

e
e
t 

L
B

H
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

 

9
.

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 s

o
u

g
h

t 

1
0

.
C

o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 s

o
u

g
h

t 

1
1

.
F

o
llo

w
e
d

 

1
2

.
C

a
r 

c
lu

b
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d

 i
n
 T

A
 

1
3

.
C

y
c
le

 d
e
ta

ils
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 b

y
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

1
4

.
P

a
rk

in
g

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
s
 m

e
e
t 

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 

1
5

.
M

e
a
s
u
re

 s
e
c
u
re

d
 b

y
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
 

1
6

.
Im

p
a
c
t 

n
o

t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

fo
r 

th
is

 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 b

e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 

1
7

.
T

h
e
s
e
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 a

re
 a

p
p

lie
d

 

1
8

.
T

h
e
s
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

o
u
g

h
t 

 

Page 109



O
F

F
R

E
P

C
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
F

o
r 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
 

  

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

1
6

.
P

ro
v
id

e
 a

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
£

4
5

0
,0

0
0

 t
o

w
a
rd

s
 l
o

c
a
l 
b

u
s
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 

u
p

g
ra

d
e
s
  

1
7

.
C

o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 D

S
P

 a
n
d

 C
L
P

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 b

y
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
  

1
8

.
P

ro
v
id

e
 a

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

ra
v
e
l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
. 
 

 

 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

A
g

e
n

c
y
 

2
8

 O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

1
3

 N
o

 o
b

je
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 k

e
e
p

in
g

 t
h
e
 M

o
s
e
lle

 B
ro

o
k
 c

u
lv

e
rt

e
d

 o
r 

d
iv

e
rt

in
g

 

M
o

re
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d

 t
o

 d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h

a
t:

  

 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 n

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

o
 f

lo
o

d
 r

is
k
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 c

u
lv

e
rt

 c
a
n
 s

e
lf
-

 
c
le

a
n
s
e
 

 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 U

rb
a
n

 D
ra

in
a
g

e
 i
s
 m

a
x
im

is
e
d

 

 
A

 r
e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
ru

n
o

ff
 r

a
te

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
x
im

is
e
d

 

 T
h

e
 s

it
e
 l
ie

s
 i
n

 a
 c

ri
ti
c
a
l 
d

ra
in

a
g

e
 a

re
a
 a

n
d

 s
h
o

u
ld

 s
e
e
k
 t

o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 

th
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a
 w

id
e
r 

s
u

rf
a
c
e
 w

a
te

r 
re

g
im

e
 

 6
 J

a
n
u

a
ry

 2
0
1

4
 

 M
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

n
o

t 
d

e
c
u

lv
e
rt

in
g

 i
s
 n

o
t 

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

b
u
t 

in
 t

h
is

 i
n
s
ta

n
c
e
 r

a
is

e
 

n
o

 f
o

rm
a
l 
o

b
je

c
ti
o

n
. 
C

o
n
d

it
io

n
s
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

e
d

: 

 

1
.

D
ra

in
a
g

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

o
 b

e
 a

p
p

ro
v
e
d

 

2
.

D
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
M

o
s
e
lle

 B
ro

o
k
 d

iv
e
rs

io
n
 t

o
 b

e
 a

p
p

ro
v
e
d

 

3
.

R
e
m

e
d

ia
ti
o

n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g

 c
o

n
ta

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d

  

4
.

V
e
ri
fi
c
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

m
e
d

ia
ti
o

n
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d

  

5
.

N
o

 i
n

fi
lt
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
u

rf
a
c
e
 w

a
te

r 
p

e
rm

it
te

d
 

6
.

N
o

 p
ili

n
g

 u
n
le

s
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e
d

 b
y
 l
o

c
a
l 
p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

 

A
p

p
lic

a
n

t 
s
u
b

m
it
te

d
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
A

g
e
n
c
y
 

h
a
s
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

. 
T

h
e
s
e
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

p
p

lie
d

. 
 

  

 
T

h
a

m
e

s
 W

a
te

r
B

a
c
k
fl
o

w
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
ili

n
g

 m
e
th

o
d

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

e
d

 t
o

 m
in

im
is

e
 r

is
k
 t

o
 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
v
e
s
 a

p
p

lie
d

Page 110



O
F

F
R

E
P

C
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
F

o
r 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
 

  

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

W
a
te

r 
im

p
a
c
t 

s
tu

d
y
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 t
o

 e
n
s
u
re

 a
d

e
q

u
a
te

 w
a
te

r 

s
u
p

p
ly

 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 s

o
u
g

h
t 

th
a
t 

T
W

 e
a
s
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 w
a
y
 l
e
a
v
e
s
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e
 

a
ff

e
c
te

d
 

 
H

a
ri

n
g

e
y
 D

e
s
ig

n
 

P
a

n
e

l 
 

 C
o

n
s
is

ts
 o

f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 

v
o

lu
n

te
e
r 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
ts

/d
e
s
ig

n
 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

  

In
it
ia

l 
c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 –

1
3

th
J
u

n
e
 2

0
1

3
-1

2
-3

0

 O
b

s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
s
 (
s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d

) 

1
.

T
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y
 H

e
a
rt

la
n

d
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 m
a
y
 b

e
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 o

v
e
rd

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

2
.

H
o

u
s
in

g
 o

n
 a

 p
o

d
iu

m
 a

b
o

v
e
 t

h
e
 c

a
rp

a
rk

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 v

ia
b

le
 a

n
d

 

w
o

u
ld

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 a

 b
e
tt

e
r 

b
a
c
k
 t

o
 b

a
c
k
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h
ip

 i
f 

a
lig

n
e
d

 w
it
h
 

th
e
 M

o
s
q

u
e
 

3
.

C
o

n
c
e
rn

 o
v
e
r 

a
n

ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 m

is
u
s
e
 o

f 
c
a
r 

p
a
rk

 a
t 

n
ig

h
t 

w
h
e
n

 s
to

re
 i
s
 c

lo
s
e
d

 

4
.

T
h

e
 1

0
 s

to
re

y
 t

o
w

e
r 

m
ig

h
t 

o
v
e
rs

h
a
d

o
w

 e
v
e
ry

th
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 

a
n

d
 w

o
u

ld
 s

ta
n

d
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a
n

 t
h
e
 N

e
w

 R
iv

e
r 

e
s
ta

te
. 
It

 m
u

s
t 

n
o

t 

in
te

rr
u
p

t 
v
ie

w
s
 f

ro
m

 A
le

x
a
n
d

ra
 P

a
la

c
e
 

5
.

P
a
n

e
l 
w

is
h

e
d

 t
o

 s
e
e
 r

e
ta

il 
im

p
a
c
t 

s
tu

d
y
. 
A

 c
a
fe

 m
ig

h
t 

n
o

t 
b

e
 

th
e
 b

e
s
t 

u
s
e
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e
t 

6
.

T
h

e
 g

a
p

 i
n

 t
h
e
 H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e
t 

c
re

a
te

s
 a

 n
e
w

 v
ie

w
 t

o
 A

le
x
a
n

d
ra

 

P
a
la

c
e
 i
s
 a

c
c
e
p

te
d

 

7
.

P
a
n

e
l 
w

is
h

e
d

 t
o

 s
e
e
 t

h
e
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
A

g
e
n
c
y
’s

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

8
.

T
h

e
 f

in
a
l 
d

e
s
ig

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 p
o

s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

o
p

e
n

in
g

 u
p

 

ri
v
e
r 

a
t 

la
te

r 
s
ta

g
e
 

9
.

T
h

e
 p

a
n

e
l 
w

o
u

ld
 l
ik

e
 t

o
 s

e
e
 t

h
e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 a

g
a
in

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 

  S
e
c
o

n
d

 C
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 -

 1
9

th
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
3
 

 O
b

s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
s
 (
s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d

) 

1
.

T
h

e
 o

u
tl
o

o
k
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
b

lo
c
k
 o

v
e
rl
o

o
k
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

 

  

1
.

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y
 H

e
a
rt

la
n

d
s
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 i
s
 a

 m
a
te

ri
a
l 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
. 

2
.

S
u

rf
a
c
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 m

o
s
t 

v
ia

b
le

 o
p

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

3
.

C
a
rp

a
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 o

v
e
rl
o

o
k
e
d

 a
n
d

 w
e
ll 

lit
 

4
.

H
e
ig

h
t 

o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

b
ro

u
g

h
t 

d
o

w
n

 t
o

 8
 s

to
re

y
s
 

5
.

C
a
fe

 o
m

it
te

d
 f

ro
m

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t.
 R

e
ta

il 
s
tu

d
y
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o

r 
v
ie

w
 

6
.

N
o

te
d

 

7
.

C
o

m
m

e
n
ts

 m
a
d

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 

8
.

B
e
n

e
fi
ts

 o
f 

d
e
c
u

lv
e
rt

in
g

 a
re

 p
o

o
r 

b
u

t 
b

u
ild

in
g

s
 a

re
 

n
o

t 
lo

c
a
te

d
 a

b
o

v
e
 d

iv
e
rt

e
d

 c
h

a
n
n

e
l 

9
.

F
o

llo
w

e
d

 

 

 S
e
c
o

n
d

 C
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 

 

1
.

H
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 p

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 l
a
n
d

s
c
a
p

in
g

 w
ill

 r
e
s
u
lt
 

in
 a

c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 o

u
tl
o

o
k
 

2
.

C
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
a
re

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
a
s
e
d

 o
n

 t
e
n

u
re

 

3
.

T
re

a
tm

e
n
ts

 a
re

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 o

f 
c
o

m
p

a
ra

b
le

 

q
u
a
lit

y
 

4
.

D
e
fe

n
s
ib

le
 s

p
a
c
e
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 g
ro

u
n

d
 f

lo
o

r 

e
n

tr
a
n

c
e
s
. 
Q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
a
m

e
n

it
y
 s

p
a
c
e
 o

n
 M

y
d

d
e
lt
o

n
 

R
o

a
d

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 

Page 111



O
F

F
R

E
P

C
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
F

o
r 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
 

  

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 p

o
o

r.
 S

o
m

e
 u

n
it
s
 a

re
 s

in
g

le
 a

s
p

e
c
t 

a
n
d

 w
o

u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 

n
o

 o
th

e
r 

o
u
tl
o

o
k
. 
W

o
u
ld

 i
t 

b
e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 l
a
n
d

s
c
a
p

in
g

 o
r 

a
rt

w
o

rk
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 c

a
rp

a
rk

 (
e
g

. 
T

ra
in

e
d

 t
re

e
s
 o

r 
p

e
rg

o
la

 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
).
 

2
.

T
h

e
 r

e
a
s
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

d
if
fe

re
n

c
e
s
 i
n

 a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 

th
e
 ‘
H

o
rn

s
e
y
 P

a
rk

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r’

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 ‘
M

o
s
e
lle

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r’

 s
e
e
m

 

u
n

ju
s
ti
fi
e
d

 a
n
d

 w
o

u
ld

 l
ik

e
ly

 a
c
c
e
n
tu

a
te

 s
o

c
ia

l 
d

iv
is

io
n
 

3
.

T
h

e
 a

rc
h

it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 M

o
s
e
lle

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

is
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d

 

to
 t

h
o

s
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 H

o
rn

s
e
y
 P

a
rk

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r.

 T
h

e
 b

a
lc

o
n

y
 d

e
ta

il 
o

f 

th
e
 M

o
s
e
lle

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

p
p

lie
d

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 w

h
o

le
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

to
 g

iv
e
 g

re
a
te

r 
u

n
it
y
 

4
.

T
h

e
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 o

n
 M

ile
s
 R

o
a
d

 a
n

d
 t

o
 s

o
m

e
 e

x
te

n
t,

 t
h
e
 w

e
s
te

rn
 

s
id

e
 a

lo
n
g

 M
y
d

d
e
lt
o

n
, 
a
re

 c
lo

s
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

o
a
d

 a
n

d
 h

a
v
e
 l
it
tl
e
 o

r 

n
o

 l
a
n

d
s
c
a
p

in
g

 b
e
tw

e
e
n

 t
h

e
 h

o
u

s
e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

o
a
d

. 
S

o
m

e
 

m
a
is

o
n

e
tt

e
s
 i
n

 M
y
d

d
e
lt
o

n
 H

o
u
s
e
 o

n
ly

 h
a
v
e
 a

m
e
n

it
y
 s

p
a
c
e
 o

n
 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 s

id
e
 

5
.

T
h

e
 r

o
o

f 
p

ro
fi
le

 l
a
c
k
s
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

a
n

d
 a

rt
ic

u
la

ti
o

n
. 
S

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

lo
o

rs
, 

p
e
n
th

o
u
s
e
 f

la
ts

 a
n
d

 l
ig

h
tw

e
ig

h
t 

m
a
te

ri
a
ls

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
. 
V

ia
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

p
e
n
th

o
u
s
e
 f

la
ts

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
. 

P
a
ra

p
e
ts

 h
e
ig

h
ts

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

. 

6
.

S
in

g
le

 a
s
p

e
c
t 

u
n
it
s
, 
p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n

 M
y
d

d
e
lt
o

n
 H

o
u

s
e
, 
m

ig
h

t 
n

o
t 

h
a
v
e
 t

ru
ly

 p
ri
v
a
te

 a
m

e
n

it
y
 s

p
a
c
e
, 
a
 c

le
a
r 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

g
ro

u
n

d
 f

a
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

 o
r 

a
n

y
 c

o
m

m
u

n
a
l 
a
m

e
n

it
y
 s

p
a
c
e
 

7
.

T
h
e
 v

a
ri
e
ty

 a
n
d

 d
e
ta

ili
n
g

 o
f 

m
a
te

ri
a
ls

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 S

a
in

s
b

u
ry

’s
 

a
p

p
e
a
rs

 f
u
s
s
y
 a

n
d

 u
n

re
s
o

lv
e
d

. 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
ri
c
k
 t

y
p

e
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 

b
e
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
re

e
 t

o
 t

w
o

. 
T

h
e
 f

a
c
ia

 o
r 

p
lin

th
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 

c
o

lo
n
n
a
d

e
 i
n
 f

ro
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 s

u
p

e
rm

a
rk

e
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 

w
it
h

 t
h
e
 b

ri
c
k
w

o
rk

 a
b

o
v
e
 t

o
 c

re
a
te

 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 g
ro

u
n

d
 

a
n
d

 u
p

p
e
r 

fl
o

o
rs

. 
 

8
.

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

b
u
ild

in
g

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 s

im
p

lif
ie

d
 i
n
 a

p
p

e
a
ra

n
c
e
 a

n
d

 

re
c
o

n
s
ti
tu

te
d

 s
to

n
e
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

  

9
.

P
a
n

e
l 
w

e
lc

o
m

e
d

 i
d

e
a
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
n
t 

o
f 

re
in

s
ta

ti
n

g
 H

o
rn

s
e
y
 B

a
th

 

5
.

R
o

o
f 

p
ro

fi
le

 a
llo

w
s
 f

o
r 

b
ro

w
n
 r

o
o

fs
. 
A

rt
ic

u
la

ti
o

n
 i
n
 

fa
c
a
d

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 i
n
te

re
s
t.

 P
a
ra

p
e
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

lo
w

e
re

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
in

 r
e
sp

o
n
s
e
 t

o
 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 D

e
s
ig

n
 P

a
n

e
l. 

6
.

M
y
d

d
e
lt
o

n
 H

o
u

s
e
 u

n
it
s
 b

a
lc

o
n

ie
s
 o

r 
g

a
rd

e
n
s
, 

th
o

s
e
 o

n
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

 s
id

e
  
h

a
v
e
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
 s

e
c
u
re

 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 r

e
a
r,

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 q

u
a
d

ra
n

g
le

 

c
o

m
m

u
n
a
l 
s
p

a
c
e
 

7
.

B
ri
c
k
 d

e
ta

ili
n
g

 i
s
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 b

y
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
. 
R

o
u
n
d

 

c
o

lu
m

n
 t

re
a
tm

e
n
t 

in
 f

ro
n
t 

S
a
in

s
b

u
ry

’s
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 

o
p

e
n

 a
n

d
 c

le
a
r 

a
re

a
 f

o
r 

p
e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n
 

8
.

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

b
u
ild

in
g

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

im
p

lif
ie

d
 

9
.

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 l
o

c
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
B

a
th

s
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 m

o
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l 

Page 112



O
F

F
R

E
P

C
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
F

o
r 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
 

  

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

e
n

tr
a
n

c
e
 b

u
t 

n
o

t 
c
o

n
v
in

c
e
d

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 l
o

c
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h
a
t 

a
n

 a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 l
o

c
a
ti
o

n
 m

ig
h

t 
b

e
 m

o
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 

 

 
M

e
tr

o
p

o
li
ta

n
 

P
o

li
c

e
 –

 C
ri

m
e

 

P
re

v
e

n
ti

o
n

 O
ff

ic
e

r 

C
o

n
s
u
lt
e
d

 d
u
ri
n
g

 d
e
s
ig

n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

 A
p

p
ro

v
e
 o

f 
b

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 d
e
fe

n
s
ib

le
 s

p
a
c
e
 a

ro
u

n
d

 h
o

m
e
s
 

C
a
r 

p
a
rk

 a
re

a
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

ly
 s

e
c
u

re
d

 

P
u
b

lic
 r

e
a
lm

 f
u
rn

it
u
re

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d

 t
o

 b
e
 r

o
b

u
s
t 

P
u
b

lic
 r

e
a
lm

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 o

v
e
rl
o

o
k
e
d

  

N
o

te
d

.

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

C
C

T
V

 a
n
d

 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 a

p
p

lie
d

. 
 

 
N

a
tu

ra
l 
E

n
g

la
n

d
  

N
o

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 c
o

m
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 s

ta
n
d

in
g

 a
d

v
ic

e
 g

iv
e
n
: 

 T
h

e
 l
o

c
a
l 
a
re

a
 i
s
 a

n
 a

re
a
 t

h
a
t 

N
a
tu

ra
l 
E

n
g

la
n

d
 c

o
n

s
id

e
rs

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e
n

e
fi
t 

fr
o

m
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d

 g
re

e
n

 i
n

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 (
G

I)
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

 If
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l 
s
it
e
 c

o
u
ld

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 a

 L
o

c
a
l 
S

it
e
, 
L
o

c
a
l 

N
a
tu

re
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 (
L
N

R
) 
o

r 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

 h
a
b

it
a
t 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 i
t 

h
a
s
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 f

u
lly

 u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n
d

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
l 
o

n
 t

h
e
 l
o

c
a
l 
s
it
e
 b

e
fo

re
 i
t 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
s
 t

h
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
 

 T
h

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 s
h

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

s
e
c
u

ri
n

g
 m

e
a
s
u

re
s
 t

o
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

lic
a
n

t 
 

 

N
o

te
d

.

 E
c
o

lo
g

y
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

. 
B

ro
w

n
 r

o
o

f 
a
d

 b
ir

d
 

b
o

x
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

. 
N

o
 d

e
m

o
lit

io
n
 d

u
ri
n
g

 n
e
s
ti
n
g

 s
e
a
s
o

n
 

u
n

le
s
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e
d

. 
 

 
H

o
rn

s
e

y
 C

A
A

C
P

ro
p

o
s
a
l 
h
a
rm

s
 h

e
ri
ta

g
e
 a

s
s
e
ts

 (
i.
e
. 
C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 A

re
a
 a

n
d

 s
e
tt

in
g

 o
f 

L
is

te
d

 b
u
ild

in
g

s
) 

 

1
.

A
c
k
n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 n

e
e
d

 b
u

t 
d

o
 n

o
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 c
u
rr

e
n

t 
d

e
s
ig

n
  

2
.

H
e
ig

h
t 

a
n

d
 m

a
s
s
in

g
 i
s
 o

u
t 

o
f 

s
c
a
le

 w
it
h

 l
o

c
a
l 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

3
.

F
la

t 
ro

o
f 

p
ro

fi
le

s
 w

it
h

 h
ig

h
 p

a
ra

p
e
ts

 i
s
 n

o
t 

s
y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
 l
o

c
a
l 

v
a
ri

e
d

 r
o

o
f 

c
h

a
ra

c
te

r 

4
.

N
e
w

 w
id

e
 r

o
a
d

 w
ill

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 h

a
rm

fu
l 
b

re
a
k
 i
n
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

fr
o

n
ta

g
e
 

5
.

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 B

a
th

s
 b

u
ild

in
g

 w
a
s
 r

e
je

c
te

d
 f

o
r 

L
is

ti
n

g
, 
th

e
 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

’ 
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

im
p

a
c
t 

is
 o

u
tw

e
ig

h
e
d

 b
y
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
. 
 

 

1
.

N
o

te
d

 

2
.

M
a
s
s
in

g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 b

ri
e
f 

b
u
t 

is
 

s
e
n

s
it
iv

e
 t

o
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 s
c
a
le

  

3
.

A
rt

ic
u

la
ti
o

n
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 o
n

 f
a
c
a
d

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 

v
a
ri
e
d

 p
ro

fi
le

 w
h
e
n

 v
ie

w
e
d

 f
ro

m
 H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e
t 

4
.

G
a
p

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 n

e
w

 v
ie

w
 t

o
 A

le
x
a
n

d
ra

 P
a
la

c
e
 

5
.

F
ro

n
ta

g
e
 i
s
 r

e
ta

in
e
d

 a
n
d

 v
is

ib
le

 f
ro

m
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 

Page 113



O
F

F
R

E
P

C
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
F

o
r 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
 

  

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

fr
o

n
ta

g
e
 w

a
s
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 b
y
 E

n
g

lis
h
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e
 a

s
 m

a
k
in

g
 a

 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 A

re
a
 

6
.

T
h
e
 v

ie
w

 t
o

w
a
rd

s
 A

le
x
a
n
d

ra
 P

a
la

c
e
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

7
.

H
e
ig

h
t 

o
f 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 w

ill
 h

a
rm

 o
u
tl
o

o
k
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 

8
.

S
tr

e
e
t 

fr
o

n
ta

g
e
s
 d

o
 n

o
t 

h
a
v
e
 g

re
e
n

 s
p

a
c
e
, 
c
o

n
tr

a
s
ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

 

A
re

a

6
.

A
 n

e
w

 v
ie

w
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 

7
.

M
a
s
s
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d

 t
o

 m
in

im
is

e
 h

a
rm

 b
u
t 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

s
it
e
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rd

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
re

 w
ill

 

a
lw

a
y
s
 b

e
 s

o
m

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

 
A

le
x
a

n
d

ra
 P

a
la

c
e

 

C
h

a
ri

ta
b

le
 T

ru
s
t 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

 A
le

x
a
n

d
ra

 P
a
rk

 i
n

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 s

h
o

u
ld

 s
o

u
g

h
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 s

1
0

6
 

D
u
e
 t

o
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
v
ia

b
ili

ty
, 
s
1

0
6

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

fo
c
u
s
s
e
d

 t
o

w
a
rd

s
 o

th
e
r 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
e
s
 (
e
.g

. 
e
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
, 

tr
a
n
s
p

o
rt

) 

 
H

o
rn

s
e

y
 C

y
c

li
n

g
 

C
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 (

H
C

C
) 

1
.

A
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 C

y
c
le

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 R
o

u
te

 (
7

) 
ru

n
s
 n

o
rt

h
/s

o
u
th

 o
n

 C
ro

s
s
 

L
a
n
e
. 
It

 i
s
 o

f 
p

o
o

r 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 a
n
d

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

2
.

W
e
lc

o
m

e
 r

e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

g
a
te

 w
it
h

 b
o

lla
rd

s
 a

t 
s
o

u
th

e
rn

 e
n
d

 o
f 

C
ro

s
s
 L

a
n
e
 

3
.

S
c
h

e
m

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
s
 5

0
0

 c
y
c
lin

g
 s

p
a
c
e
s
, 
n
o

t 
c
e
rt

a
in

 i
f 

th
is

 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 m

e
t 

4
.

C
y
c
le

 p
a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 s

h
o

w
e
r 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 f
o

r 
s
ta

ff
 

5
.

C
y
c
le

 p
a
rk

in
g

 n
e
a
r 

th
e
 f

o
o

d
s
to

re
 i
s
 u

n
c
le

a
r 

6
.

R
o

a
d

 w
id

th
s
 t

o
 H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e
t 

s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

o
 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

 c
y
c
le

 l
a
n
e
s
 

7
.

O
n

-s
it
e
 c

y
c
le

 l
a
n

e
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 s

h
o

w
n
 

1
.

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

 p
e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

 a
n

d
 c

y
c
le

 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 s

o
u

g
h

t 

2
.

N
o

te
d

. 

3
.

C
y
c
le

 p
a
rk

in
g

 w
ill

 m
e
e
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 

4
.

W
ill

 b
e
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 i
n
 s

1
0
6
 

5
.

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
ta

ils
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

o
u
g

h
t 

o
n
 c

y
c
le

 p
a
rk

in
g

 t
o

 

a
c
h

ie
v
e
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

6
.

R
o

a
d

 w
id

th
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 k

e
p

t 
to

 m
in

im
u

m
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 

g
a
p

 i
n
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

7
.

P
u

b
lic

 r
e
a
lm

 i
n

te
n

d
e
d

 t
o

 b
e
 s

h
a
re

d
 s

p
a
c
e
 

 
C

ro
u

c
h

 E
n

d
 

T
ra

d
e

rs
 

A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 

1
.

F
re

e
 p

a
rk

in
g

 w
o

u
ld

 a
tt

ra
c
t 

tr
a
d

e
 a

w
a
y
 f

ro
m

 C
ro

u
c
h

 E
n

d
 

2
.

F
o

o
d

s
to

re
 i
s
 l
a
rg

e
r 

th
a
n

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 a
n
d

 w
o

u
ld

 a
tt

ra
c
t 

tr
a
d

e
 

a
w

a
y
 f

ro
m

 C
ro

u
c
h
 E

n
d

 

3
.

T
h
e
 -

1
1
%

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c

o
n
v
e
n

ie
n
c
e
 t

ra
d

e
 w

o
u
ld

 c
a
u
s
e
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

h
a
rm

 t
o

 C
ro

u
c
h
 E

n
d

 i
n

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

tr
a
d

e
rs

 

4
.

T
h

e
 -

1
1

%
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n

 c
o

n
v
e
n

ie
n

c
e
 t

ra
d

e
 w

o
u

ld
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
n

 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

lo
s
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 j
o

b
s
 l
o

s
s
e
s
 

 

R
e
ta

il 
s
tu

d
y
 s

h
o

w
s
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 f

o
r 

d
is

p
la

c
e
d

 

c
o

n
v
e
n

ie
n

c
e
 t

ra
d

e
. 
O

th
e
r 

fo
rm

s
 o

f 
s
h

o
p

p
in

g
 

w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 a

ff
e
c
t 

to
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 d

e
g

re
e
 (
e
.g

. 

c
o

m
p

a
ri
s
o

n
 s

h
o

p
p

in
g

).
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 s

iz
e
 

o
f 

th
e
 f

o
o

d
s
to

re
 i
s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

. 

 

 
M

E
M

B
E

R
S

 

 
C

ll
r 

R
e

id
1

.
Im

p
a
c
t 

o
n

 l
o

c
a
l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i
n

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
1

.
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
 s

o
u
g

h
t.

 I
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 G

P
 a

n
d

 

Page 114



O
F

F
R

E
P

C
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
F

o
r 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
 

  

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

2
.

H
o

rn
s
e
y
 B

a
th

s
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
ta

in
e
d

3
.

T
h

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 c

ri
m

e
 d

e
te

rr
in

g
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
 

4
.

T
ra

ff
ic

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

n
e
e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
re

fu
lly

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 –

 l
o

c
a
l 
s
tr

e
e
ts

 

a
re

 a
lr
e
a
d

y
 c

o
n
g

e
s
te

d
, 
e
s
p

. 
H

ill
fi
e
ld

 A
v
e
n
u
e
 

5
.

S
c
a
le

 a
n

d
 m

a
s
s
 w

o
u

ld
 h

a
rm

 a
m

e
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 p
ri
v
a
c
y
 

6
.

L
o

s
s
 o

f 
v
ie

w
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 A

le
x
a
n

d
ra

 P
a
la

c
e
 

7
.

F
re

e
 p

a
rk

in
g

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 i
n

to
 o

th
e
r 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

8
.

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 d

ra
in

a
g

e
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 

d
e
n
ti
s
ts

 i
s
 m

in
o

r

2
.

B
a
th

s
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 i
s
 r

e
ta

in
e
d

  

3
.

D
e
s
ig

n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 i
n
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 P
o

lic
e
 

4
.

S
c
o

p
e
 o

f 
tr

a
n
s
p

o
rt

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
is

 c
o

m
p

re
h
e
n
s
iv

e
 

a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 T
fL

 

5
.

M
a
s
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 o
ri
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 c

a
u

s
e
s
 l
it
tl
e
 h

a
rm

 t
o

 l
ig

h
t,

 

o
u

tl
o

o
k
 a

n
d

 p
ri
v
a
c
y
 

6
.

A
 n

e
w

 v
ie

w
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

  

7
.

P
a
rk

in
g

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 w

ill
 a

lo
o

w
 s

h
o

p
p

e
r 

to
 v

is
it
 H

ig
h

 

S
tr

e
e
t 

8
.

S
u

rf
a
c
e
 w

a
te

r 
d

ra
in

a
g

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d

 

 
H

o
rn

s
e

y
 W

a
rd

 

C
o

u
n

c
il
lo

rs
 G

o
rr

ie
, 

R
e

id
 a

n
d

 W
h

y
te

 

1
.

T
h

e
 s

it
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 d
e
re

lic
t 

fo
r 

fa
r 

to
o

 l
o

n
g

. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
is

 

w
e
lc

o
m

e
d

 b
u
t 

s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
tr

im
e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 l
iv

e
s
 a

n
d

 

liv
e
lih

o
o

d
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

 

2
.

T
h

e
 f

o
o

d
s
to

re
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
c
a
u
s
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 s
h

o
p

s
 t

o
 s

u
ff

e
r 

3
.

W
h
y
 i
s
 a

 f
o

o
d

s
to

re
 o

f 
th

is
 s

iz
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d

?
 

4
.

F
re

e
 p

a
rk

in
g

 i
s
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
d

 b
u
t 

s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 i
n
 t

im
e
 

5
.

C
le

a
r 

s
ig

n
a
g

e
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 

6
.

S
a
in

s
b

u
ry

’s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n

 H
o

rn
s
e
y
 T

ra
d

e
r’

s
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 

7
.

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
w

a
rd

 t
o

w
n

 c
e
n

tr
e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
r 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

o
u
g

h
t 

8
.

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 d

u
ri
n
g

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 

c
o

m
p

e
n

s
a
te

d
 

9
.

M
ile

s
 r

o
a
d

 a
n
d

 M
o

s
e
lle

 C
lo

s
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

v
e
rs

h
a
d

o
w

e
d

 a
n
d

 

o
v
e
rl
o

o
k
e
d

 

1
0

.
B

u
ild

in
g

 s
h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 7

 s
to

re
y
s
 o

n
 M

ile
s
 R

o
a
d

 o
r 

M
o

s
e
lle

 

C
lo

s
e
 b

u
t 

2
-s

to
re

y
s
 

1
1

.
7
-s

to
re

y
s
 o

n
 C

ro
s
s
 L

a
n
e
 i
s
 t

o
o

 h
ig

h
, 
c
a
u
s
in

g
 o

v
e
rs

h
a
d

o
w

in
g

 

1
2

.
T

h
e
 c

a
rp

a
rk

 s
h

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n

 t
h
e
 d

e
n
s
it
y
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
 

1
3

.
S

c
h

e
m

e
 h

a
s
 p

o
o

r 
q

u
a
lit

y
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
o

o
 f

e
w

 f
a
m

ily
 d

w
e
lli

n
g

s
 

1
4

.
T

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
g

is
te

re
d

 P
ro

v
id

e
r 

is
 n

o
t 

k
n

o
w

n
 

1
5

.
P

ro
p

e
r 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 p

u
t 

in
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
s
tr

e
e
ts

, 

1
.

N
o

te
d

2
.

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
c
a
p

a
c
it
y
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
v
e
n

ie
n

c
e
 r

e
ta

il 

3
.

S
iz

e
 o

f 
s
to

re
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
 t

o
 a

c
t 

a
s
 a

n
c
h
o

r 

4
.

N
o

te
d

 

5
.

S
ig

n
a
g

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 b

y
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
 

6
.

N
o

te
d

 

7
.

D
u
e
 t

o
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
v
ia

b
ili

ty
, 
s
1
0
6
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 

b
e
in

g
 f

o
c
u
s
s
e
d

 t
o

w
a
rd

s
 o

th
e
r 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
e
s
 (
e
.g

. 

e
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
, 
tr

a
n
s
p

o
rt

) 

8
.

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 l
o

g
is

ti
c
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 a

p
p

ro
v
a
l 
to

 

m
in

im
is

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

9
.

N
o

 p
ri
v
a
te

 a
m

e
n
it
y
 a

re
a
s
 w

ill
 o

v
e
rl
o

o
k
e
d

. 
S

h
a
d

o
w

 

im
p

a
c
t 

fo
n
d

 t
o

 b
e
 m

in
o

r 

1
0

.
B

u
ild

in
g

s
 a

re
 5

 s
to

re
y
s
 o

n
 M

ile
s
 R

o
a
d

 a
n
d

 M
o

s
e
lle

 

C
lo

s
e
. 
T

a
lle

r 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 

1
1

.
C

ro
s
s
 L

a
n

e
 i
s
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
a
n

d
 i
n

d
u

s
tr

ia
l.
 

It
 i
s
 l
o

w
e
r 

to
w

a
rd

s
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 o

n
 t

h
e
 j
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 

1
2

.
D

e
n

s
it
y
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

b
o

th
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
c
a
r 

p
a
rk

 

1
3

.
H

o
u
s
in

g
 m

e
e
ts

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 d
w

e
lli

n
g

 

m
ix

 e
n
a
b

le
s
 h

ig
h

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 o

ff
e
r 

Page 115



O
F

F
R

E
P

C
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
F

o
r 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
 

  

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 H

ill
fi
e
ld

 R
o

a
d

1
6

.
R

o
b

u
s
tn

e
s
s
 o

f 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
is

 q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
e
d

 

1
7

.
N

e
w

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 p
a
rk

 o
n

 l
o

c
a
l 
s
tr

e
e
ts

. 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 s

o
u

g
h
t 

fo
r 

C
P

Z
 

1
8

.
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
p

a
rk

in
g

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 

p
e
ri
o

d
 

1
9

.
T

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
w

ill
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 l
o

c
a
l 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

2
0

.
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

A
g

e
n
c
y
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 

2
1

.
In

 r
e
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t,

 ‘
lo

c
a
l’
 i
s
 d

e
fi
n
e
d

 a
s
 t

h
re

e
 m

ile
s
. 
T

h
is

 

is
 t

o
o

 r
e
s
tr

ic
ti
v
e
 

2
2

.
T

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
w

ill
 b

lo
c
k
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
A

le
x
a
n

d
ra

 p
a
la

c
e
 

   

1
4

.
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 a

t 
a
 l
a
te

r 
d

a
te

1
5

.
H

ig
h
w

a
y
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

m
it
ig

a
te

 m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

re
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 

1
6

.
T

ra
n
s
p

o
rt

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 

in
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
tl
y
 

1
7

.
C

P
Z

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
 s

o
u
g

h
t 

1
8

.
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 d

e
liv

e
ri
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

a
p

p
ro

v
a
l 

1
9

.
C

o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 s

o
u
g

h
t 

to
w

a
rd

s
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e
s
. 

Im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
 m

in
o

r 

2
0

.
E

A
 h

a
v
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 

2
1

.
L

o
c
a
l 
is

 d
e
fi
n
e
d

 a
s
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y
 i
n

 s
1

0
6
 

2
2

.
A

 n
e
w

 v
ie

w
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

re
a
te

d
 

 
L

y
n

n
e

 

F
e

a
th

e
rs

to
n

e
 M

P
 

1
.

In
 f

u
ll 

a
g

re
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

W
a
rd

 C
o

u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 G
o

rr
ie

, 
R

e
id

 

a
n

d
 W

h
y
te

 

2
.

F
re

e
 p

a
rk

in
g

 w
ill

 d
ra

w
 t

ra
d

e
 a

w
a
y
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

to
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 

s
u
c
h

 a
s
 C

ro
u
c
h

 E
n

d
 

3
.

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 p
o

p
u
la

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 e
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

4
.

N
e
w

 R
iv

e
r 

V
ill

a
g

e
 h

a
s
 e

x
p

e
ri
e
n
c
e
d

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

p
ro

b
le

m
s
 

5
.

T
h
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 B

a
th

s
 b

u
ild

in
g

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
ta

in
e
d

  

1
.

N
o

te
d

 

2
.

R
e
ta

il 
s
tu

d
y
 s

h
o

w
s
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 f

o
r 

d
is

p
la

c
e
d

 

c
o

n
v
e
n

ie
n

c
e
 t

ra
d

e
 

3
.

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 s

o
u
g

h
t 

to
w

a
rd

s
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e
s
. 

Im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
 m

in
o

r 

4
.

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

is
s
u
e
 

5
.

E
n

tr
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 r

e
ta

in
e
d

 

 
C

ll
r 

W
in

s
k
il
l 

(C
ro

u
c

h
 E

n
d

) 

1
.

C
ro

u
c
h

 E
n

d
 T

ra
d

e
rs

 w
e
re

 n
o

t 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

in
s
ta

n
c
e

2
.

W
ill

 h
a
rm

 v
it
a
lit

y
, 
v
ia

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

C
ro

u
c
h
 E

n
d

 

s
h
o

p
p

in
g

 c
e
n
tr

e
 

3
.

D
is

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

c
o

n
v
e
n
ie

n
c
e
 r

e
ta

il 
(-

1
1
%

) 
w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

im
p

a
c
t 

4
.

F
o

o
d

s
to

re
 i
s
 t

o
o

 l
a
rg

e
 

5
.

F
re

e
 p

a
rk

in
g

 w
ill

 d
ra

w
 c

u
s
to

m
 a

w
a
y
 f

ro
m

 C
ro

u
c
h
 E

n
d

. 
O

n
ly

 

d
is

a
b

le
d

 p
a
rk

in
g

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 

6
.

N
e
e
d

 f
o

r 
re

g
e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

h
 H

o
rn

s
e
y
 h

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e
t 

a
c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e
d

 

1
.

4
,0

0
0

 l
e
tt

e
rs

 w
e
re

 s
e
n
t 

a
n
d

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 w

a
s
 

a
d

v
e
rt

is
e
d

 l
o

c
a
lly

 

2
.

R
e
ta

il 
s
tu

d
y
 s

h
o

w
s
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 f

o
r 

d
is

p
la

c
e
d

 

c
o

n
v
e
n

ie
n

c
e
 t

ra
d

e
 

3
.

Im
p

a
c
t 

is
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 g

iv
e
n

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 

o
v
e
rt

ra
d

in
g

 

4
.

F
o

o
d

s
to

re
 s

iz
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d

 t
o

 a
c
t 

a
s
 a

n
c
h

o
r 

5
.

S
e
e
 (
2

) 
a
b

o
v
e
 

6
.

N
o

te
d

 

Page 116



O
F

F
R

E
P

C
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
F

o
r 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
 

  

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

  

 
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
 

 
8

1
 o

b
je

c
ti

o
n

s

In
c

lu
d

in
g

: 

O
b

je
c

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 

H
o

rn
s
e

y
 A

c
ti

o
n

 

G
ro

u
p

, 
H

a
ri

n
g

e
y
 

C
y
c

li
n

g
 C

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 

 P
e

ti
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 1

9
 

s
ig

n
a

tu
re

s
 f

ro
m

 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 

M
o

s
e

ll
e

 C
lo

s
e

 a
n

d
 

M
il
e

s
 R

o
a

d
 

  A
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

 

1
.

E
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

2
.

D
e
n

s
it
y
 i
s
 t

o
o

 h
ig

h
, 
c
a
rp

a
rk

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d

 f
ro

m
 d

e
n
s
it
y
 

c
a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
s
 

 R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

 

3
.

P
o

o
r 

d
w

e
lli

n
g

 m
ix

, 
in

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
la

rg
e
r 

u
n

it
s
  

4
.

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 b

e
tt

e
r 

s
p

re
a
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 s

it
e
 

5
.

In
s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
p

la
y
s
p

a
c
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

. 
S

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

p
la

y
 a

re
a
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o

 c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

6
.

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 s

o
u
g

h
t 

fo
r 

a
n
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 h
o

lid
a
y
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 r

u
n

 b
y
 C

ir
c
le

 3
3
 

 R
e

ta
il
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

 

7
.

N
o

 n
e
e
d

 f
o

r 
fo

o
d

s
to

re
, 
w

ill
 h

a
rm

 l
o

c
a
l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d

 n
e
a
rb

y
 

to
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 f

o
o

d
s
to

re
 i
s
 t

o
o

 l
a
rg

e
. 

8
.

B
e
n
e
fi
t 

o
f 

fr
e
e
 p

a
rk

in
g

 q
u
e
s
ti
o

n
e
d

 

 D
e

s
ig

n
 

 

9
.

S
it
e
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 f
o

r 
ta

ll 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

1
0

.
N

o
 s

tu
d

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

 t
o

 a
s
s
e
s
s
 s

u
it
a
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

ta
ll 

b
u
ild

in
g

s
 i
n
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
 

1
1

.
H

e
ig

h
t 

h
a
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 M
ile

s
 R

o
a
d

 a
n
d

 M
o

s
e
lle

 C
lo

s
e
 

  

1
.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a
c
c
o

rd
s
 w

it
h
 H

H
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 

2
.

D
e
n

s
it
y
 a

c
c
o

rd
s
 w

it
h

 H
H

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

, 
e
v
e
n

 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n
g

 f
o

r 
c
a
rp

a
rk

 

 

3
.

D
w

e
lli

n
g

 m
ix

 e
n
a
b

le
s
 h

ig
h
 a

ff
o

rd
a
b

le
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 o

ff
e
r 

4
.

P
e
p

p
e
r-

p
o

tt
in

g
 i
s
 n

o
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

w
is

e
 

5
.

P
la

y
s
p

a
c
e
 m

e
e
ts

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 P
la

n
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 

6
.

L
im

it
e
d

 S
1
0

6
 f

o
c
u

s
s
e
d

 o
n

 o
th

e
r 

p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s
 (
e
.g

. 

e
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
, 
tr

a
n
s
p

o
rt

) 

 

7
.

C
a
p

a
c
it
y
 f

o
u
n

d
 f

o
r 

fo
o

d
s
to

re
 o

f 
th

is
 s

iz
e
 

8
.

 P
a
rk

in
g

 w
ill

 a
llo

w
 f

o
r 

lin
k
e
d

 s
h
o

p
p

in
g

 t
ri
p

s
 

9
.

H
e
ig

h
t 

a
n

d
 m

a
s
s
in

g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 t
o

 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 b
ri
e
f 

a
n

d
 a

re
a
 

1
0

.
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 d
e
s
ig

n
e
d

 w
it
h

 r
e
g

a
rd

 t
o

 

c
o

n
te

x
t 

1
1

.
H

e
ig

h
t 

s
te

p
s
 d

o
w

n
 t

o
w

a
rd

 M
o

s
e
lle

 C
lo

s
e
 a

n
d

 

M
ile

s
 R

o
a
d

 

1
2

.
S

it
e
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rd

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

o
m

e
 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
n
 v

ie
w

 b
u
t 

it
 i
s
 n

o
t 

h
a
rm

fu
l 

1
3

.
N

e
w

 v
ie

w
 o

f 
A

le
x
a
n

d
ra

 p
a
la

c
e
 c

re
a
te

d
 

1
4

.
M

a
s
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 m
a
te

ri
a
ls

 a
re

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 

1
5

.
D

e
s
ig

n
 r

e
s
p

o
n
d

s
 t

o
 l
o

c
a
l 
c
o

n
te

x
t 

w
h
ile

 d
e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 

h
ig

h
 d

e
n
s
it
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

1
6

.
 C

a
r 

p
a
rk

 w
ill

 h
a
v
e
 h

ig
h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 l
a
n
d

s
c
a
p

in
g

 a
n
d

 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 

Page 117



O
F

F
R

E
P

C
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
F

o
r 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
 

  

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

1
2

.
W

ill
 s

p
o

il 
v
ie

w
 f

ro
m

 N
e
w

 R
iv

e
r 

V
ill

a
g

e

1
3

.
W

ill
 s

p
o

il 
v
ie

w
 o

f 
A

le
x
a
n
d

ra
 P

a
la

c
e
 

1
4

.
‘B

la
n
d

’ 
m

a
s
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e
s
ig

n
 

1
5

.
N

o
t 

in
 k

e
e
p

in
g

 w
it
h
 l
o

c
a
l 
c
h
a
ra

c
te

r,
 i
n

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 m
a
s
s
in

g
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
re

a
, 
 

1
6

.
O

p
e
n

 a
ir
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

 i
s
 a

 p
o

o
r 

d
e
s
ig

n
 f

e
a
tu

re
, 
it
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 o

u
t 

o
f 

s
ig

h
t,

 C
a
rp

a
rk

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 p

o
o

r 
a
s
p

e
c
t 

fo
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 

1
7

.
L

a
c
k
 o

f 
g

re
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 o

n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
s
tr

e
e
t 

fr
o

n
ta

g
e
s
, 
e
s
p

 

Q
u
a
d

ra
n
g

le
 b

u
ild

in
g

 

1
8

.
L

it
tl
e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 l
a
n

d
s
c
a
p

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

u
b

lic
 r

e
a
lm

 

 C
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 

1
9

.
H

a
rm

fu
l 
to

 c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
a
n

d
 s

c
a
le

 o
f 

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

C
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 

A
re

a
 a

n
d

 a
d

ja
c
e
n
t 

H
o

rn
s
e
y
 W

a
te

r 
W

o
rk

s
 a

n
d

 F
ilt

e
rs

 B
e
d

s
 C

A
 

2
0

.
H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

fr
o

n
ta

g
e
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 s

y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
 t

o
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 

A
re

a
 

2
1

.
A

c
c
e
s
s
 r

o
a
d

 t
o

 H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

re
s
u

lt
s
 i
n
 h

a
rm

fu
l 
g

a
p

 i
n
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
, 

V
ie

w
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

 A
le

x
a
n

d
ra

 P
a
la

c
e
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 p

re
s
e
rv

e
d

. 
T

h
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 r

o
a
d

 i
s
 t

o
o

 w
id

e
 

2
2

.
T

h
e
 B

a
th

s
 b

u
ild

in
g

 i
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n
t 

h
is

to
ri
c
 b

u
ild

in
g

 a
n
d

 s
h
o

u
ld

 

b
e
 p

re
s
e
rv

e
d

/t
h
e
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 p

re
s
e
rv

e
d

 

2
3

.
W

ill
 h

a
rm

 s
e
tt

in
g

 o
f 

G
re

a
t 

N
o

rt
h
e
rn

 R
a
ilw

a
y
 T

a
v
e
rn

 

  T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 T

ra
ff

ic
 

 

2
4

.
S

u
b

m
it
te

d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
is

 i
n
c
o

rr
e
c
t 

2
5

.
E

x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 s

u
rf

a
c
e
 p

a
rk

in
g

, 
o

n
ly

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 p
a
rk

in
g

 s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 

2
6

.
F

o
c
u

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 o

n
 c

a
lm

in
g

 s
tr

e
e
ts

 a
n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

 

a
n

d
 p

u
b

lic
 t

ra
n
s
p

o
rt

 e
x
p

e
ri

e
n
c
e
 i
n

 t
o

w
n

 c
e
n
tr

e
 

1
7

.
S

o
ft

 l
a
n
d

s
c
a
p

in
g

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 i
n
 p

u
b

lic
 r

e
a
lm

 

1
8

.
D

e
ta

ile
d

 l
a
n
d

s
c
a
p

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 

 

1
9

.
Im

p
a
c
t 

is
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 m

in
o

r/
n
e
u
tr

a
l 
a
n
d

 

o
u
tw

e
ig

h
e
d

 b
y
 r

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 

2
0

.
H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

b
u
ild

in
g

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 

2
1

.
G

a
p

 i
s
 m

in
im

u
m

 w
id

th
 t

o
 b

e
 f

u
n
c
ti
o

n
 b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 v

ie
w

 t
o

 A
le

x
a
n

d
ra

 p
a
la

c
e
 

2
2

.
T

h
e
 b

a
th

s
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 r

e
ta

in
e
d

 

2
3

.
T

a
v
e
rn

 w
ill

 r
e
m

a
in

 p
ro

m
in

e
n
t 

o
n
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

 

2
4

.
T

ra
n
s
p

o
rt

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 i
n

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

tl
y
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d

. 

2
5

.
P

a
rk

in
g

 w
ill

 d
ra

w
 c

u
s
to

m
 t

o
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

2
6

.
P

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 b

u
s
 s

to
p

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 

w
ill

 b
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d

 

2
7

.
T

ri
p

 g
e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 

2
8

.
S

c
h
e
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

a
r 

c
a
p

p
e
d

 C
P

Z
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

d
 

2
9

.
F

re
e
 p

a
rk

in
g

 w
ill

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 h

ig
h
 s

tr
e
e
t 

3
0

.
N

o
t 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 

3
1

.
S

u
p

p
le

m
e
n

ta
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 

3
2

.
P

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

o
u
g

h
t 

3
3

.
Im

p
ro

v
e
d

 l
in

k
a
g

e
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 d

e
s
ir
a
b

le
 

3
4

.
P

a
rk

in
g

 c
o

m
p

lie
s
 w

it
h
 H

a
ri
n
g

e
y
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 

3
5

.
T

ra
n
s
p

o
rt

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

is
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 

3
6

.
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g

e
 t

o
 b

u
s
 r

o
u
te

s
 f

o
u
n
d

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 

3
7

.
P

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 

a
c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 

3
8

.
C

y
c
le

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 s
o

u
g

h
t 

in
 s

1
0

6
 

3
9

.
C

y
c
le

 p
a
rk

in
g

 d
e
ta

ils
 s

o
u
g

h
t 

in
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
 

 

Page 118



O
F

F
R

E
P

C
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
F

o
r 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
 

  

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

2
7

.
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 o

n
 l
o

c
a
l 
ro

a
d

s
 t

o
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

 t
h

e
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 
tr

a
ff

ic
, 
re

s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 c
o

n
g

e
s
ti
o

n
 

2
8

.
T

h
e
re

 w
ill

 p
a
rk

in
g

 o
v
e
rs

p
ill

 o
n
to

 l
o

c
a
l 
s
tr

e
e
ts

 

2
9

.
P

a
rk

in
g

 r
e
s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

to
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 l
o

c
a
l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

3
0

.
M

y
d

d
e
lt
o

n
 R

o
a
d

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
-o

p
e
n
e
d

 t
o

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 t

ra
ff

ic
 

3
1

.
L
a
c
k
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 H

ill
fi
e
ld

 A
v
e
n
u
e
, 
H

ill
fi
e
ld

 

A
v
e
n

u
e
 c

a
n
n
o

t 
c
o

p
e
 w

it
h

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 
tr

a
ff

ic
 

3
2

.
A

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
tr

a
ff

ic
 w

ill
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 d

a
n
g

e
r 

to
 s

c
h
o

o
l 
c
h
ild

re
n
 

3
3

.
E

a
s
t/

w
e
s
t 

p
e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

 l
in

k
 w

o
u

ld
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
 t

ra
ff

ic
 o

n
to

 N
e
w

 

R
iv

e
r 

A
v
e
n
u
e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 N

e
w

 R
iv

e
r 

V
ill

a
g

e
 

3
4

.
V

is
it
o

r 
p

a
rk

in
g

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 

3
5

.
Im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n
 a

n
d

 p
u
b

lic
 t

ra
n
s
p

o
rt

 f
lo

w
s
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d

 

3
6

.
B

u
s
 r

o
u

te
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 a
m

e
n

d
e
d

 t
o

 r
o

u
te

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 

3
7

.
A

c
c
e
s
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 v

ia
 N

e
w

 R
iv

e
r 

A
v
e
n
u
e
 

3
8

.
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
to

 c
y
c
le

 r
o

u
te

 L
C

N
 7

 s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d

 

3
9

.
C

y
c
le

 p
a
rk

in
g

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

n
o

t 
c
le

a
r 

 Im
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 a

m
e

n
it

y
 

 

4
0

.
L

o
s
s
 o

f 
lig

h
t 

to
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
, 
e
s
p

. 
M

o
s
e
lle

 C
lo

s
e
 a

n
d

 

M
ile

s
 R

o
a
d

 

4
1

.
L

o
s
s
 o

f 
o

u
tl
o

o
k
 t

o
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 

4
2

.
O

v
e
rl
o

o
k
in

g
 t

o
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 

4
3

.
D

is
tu

rb
a
n

c
e
 f

ro
m

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 t

ra
ff

ic
 

 E
c

o
lo

g
y
 

 

4
4

.
L

o
s
s
 o

f 
h

a
b

it
a
t 

fo
r 

B
la

c
k
 R

e
d

s
ta

rt
s
 a

n
d

 b
ro

w
n

 r
o

o
fs

 i
s
 

in
a
d

e
q

u
a
te

 m
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
  

 

4
0

.
Im

p
a
c
t 

o
n

 l
ig

h
t 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 m

in
o

r

4
1

.
Im

p
a
c
t 

o
n

 o
u
tl
o

o
k
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 m

in
o

r 
b

u
t 

s
it
e
 i
s
 

u
n

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

4
2

.
A

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 o

ri
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 a

v
o

id
 o

v
e
rl
o

o
k
in

g
 

4
3

.
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

la
n

, 

to
 b

e
 a

p
p

ro
v
e
d

 

 

4
4

.
B

ro
w

n
 r

o
o

fs
 t

ri
p

le
d

 a
n
d

 b
ir
d

 b
o

x
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 

 

4
5

.
E

d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 s

o
u

g
h

t,
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

to
n

 G
P

s
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 m

in
o

r 

4
6

.
P

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 l
a
n
d

 u
s
e
s
 a

re
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 

h
a
v
in

g
 r

e
g

a
rd

 t
o

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 b
ri

e
f 

4
7

.
R

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 c

e
n

tr
e
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
-p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

 W
e
s
te

rn
 

R
o

a
d

, 
N

2
2
 

 

4
8

.
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

is
s
u
e
 

 

4
9

.
S

1
0

6
 m

o
n
e
y
 l
im

it
e
d

 b
y
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
v
ia

b
ili

ty
, 
m

o
n

e
y
 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
s
e
d

 t
o

 o
th

e
r 

n
e
e
d

s
 (
e
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
, 
tr

a
n
s
p

o
rt

 

e
tc

) 

 

5
0

.
N

o
t 

re
q

u
ir
e
d

 a
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 s
ta

g
e
 

   

    

Page 119



O
F

F
R

E
P

C
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
F

o
r 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
 

  

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

Im
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 l
o

c
a

l 
in

fr
a

s
tr

u
c

tu
re

 

4
5

.
H

a
rm

 t
o

 l
o

c
a
l 
s
c
h
o

o
ls

, 
d

o
c
to

rs
’ 
s
u
rg

e
ri
e
s
 e

tc
 

4
6

.
N

o
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 

4
7

.
L
o

s
s
 o

f 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 c

e
n
tr

e
 

 O
n

g
o

in
g

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

 

4
8

.
N

e
w

 R
iv

e
r 

V
ill

a
g

e
 s

u
ff

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
, 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 w

ill
 

h
a
p

p
e
n

 w
it
h

 t
h

is
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
 

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 

 

4
9

.
M

o
n
e
y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 g
o

 t
o

 m
a
in

ta
in

in
g

 a
n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 P

ri
o

ry
 P

a
rk

 

 P
a

rt
y
 W

a
ll
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 

 

5
0

.
L

it
tl
e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 f
ro

m
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 

  

 
6

 e
x
p

re
s
s
io

n
s
 o

f 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

W
ill

 b
ri
n
g

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t,

 j
o

b
s
, 
h
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 t

o
 H

o
rn

s
e
y
 H

ig
h
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

  

N
o

te
d

. 

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

F
o

ru
m

s
 

 H
e
ld

 2
6

th
 a

n
d

 2
7

th
 

N
o

v
e
m

b
e
r 

a
t 

G
re

ig
 

C
it
y
 A

c
a
d

e
m

y
 

S
e
e
 A

p
p

e
n
d

ix
 2

 

Page 120



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

Attendees: 103 residents, members, local shopkeepers and community organisation 

reps. 

Chaired by Emma Williamson, Head of DM on 26 November 

Chaired by Ransford Stewart, AD Planning on 27 November 

Also attended by Taylamay Makoon and Jeffrey Holt Haringey Planning on 26 and 

27 November. By Derek Drew-Pearce, LB Haringey on 27 November. 

Attended by representatives from St James, the architects, transport consultants 

and Sainsburys. 

Summary 

The key issues raised by attendees at the Forum meetings were: 

Overdevelopment  

Size of supermarket 3,250 sq metres gross but Council’s limit quoted in the 

document is 2,500 sq metre gross and therefore 30% more.  Consequence 

of this in terms of design: height at 8 storeys, impact on conservation area 

and views and traffic 

Density of residential development means that no place to play, walk and 

lack of external open space  

Current scheme contains significantly more development than originally 

proposed as part of the New River Head development submitted in 1998 and 

need for a new access arises from the bulk of development now proposed 

and traffic problems.   Trying to squeeze too much onto the site.    

Should store be reduced in size (similar to Muswell Hill store) with lower 

number of parking spaces 

Brought across Haringey Heartlands densities to this site – influenced by the 

fact that Haringey own a large part of the site 

Public transport accessibility level of 3 does not justify density proposed. 

Just because it is an intensification area it is not necessarily appropriate for 

tall buildings 

It will cause overshadowing  

Affordable housing 

Supportive of provision of affordable housing which is much needed in the 

area given the high house prices 

Traffic, parking and servicing 

Page 121



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

Will generate through traffic East/West along Hornsey High Street and 

ramifications over a much wider area has not been properly considered and 

in particular impact on Hillfield Avenue 

Options for entry from existing roads to the site not properly considered 

rather than using the entry off the High Street.  Scale of traffic junction onto 

Hornsey High Street replacing the baths – designed to maximise visibility for 

Sainsbury’s – begs the question as to whether this is the right site for this 

size of Sainsbury’s store  

90 minutes parking insufficient to use other facilities in the High Street – need 

a minimum of three hours 

Controlled parking zone has had a big impact on Hornsey High Street 

Regular tailbacks in Hornsey High Street in the rush hour and this will be 

exacerbated by this development 

Parking insufficient for the scale of development – local streets already 

congested. Overspill on Cross Lane from New River Village already.  

Traffic generation and modelling – not convinced that it will not create 

congestion as has happened with the Green Lanes Sainsbury’s 

How will they access from the High Street into the store be managed and will 

the route take them through the New River development?  

Current scheme will mean that Hillfield Avenue is used as a rat run – need a 

proper traffic management scheme – difficult to determine whether proposals 

are satisfactory when Sainsbury’s are unable to give figures of the number of 

users of the store and the assumptions made in the traffic modelling 

Two hour controlled parking in Hillfield Avenue will be need to be changed to 

a residents parking scheme so that it is not used for parking overspill.  Any 

changes need to be implemented before the scheme is developed 

Huge land take for articulated lorries/commercial entrance at expense of 

retention of the Hornsey Baths facade 

Car park not pedestrian friendly – will not park there and walk up the High 

Street.  Will increase traffic on streets and make it even more difficult to cross 

Have the residents of Myddleton Road and Campsbourne been consulted on 

the access to the site 

Concerns on impact on Hillfield Avenue. When Midde Lane was closed 

recently it was a big issue 

When will deliveries from large lorries be and where will they access the site 

from, what will be the noise impact 

Will the parking be sold separately to the flats 

Why are there three lanes at the entrance 

New River Avenue was intended as the access in to the supermarket when 

New River Village planning permission was granted. Why not doing that now 

as means Baths building has to be demolished and view of Alexandra Palace 

lost  

Page 122



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

What is proposed on the High Street around the new junction. Will the pay 

and display parking be replaced 

The site is not very pedestrian friendly- there needs to be signposting on the 

site of the route to the high street 

Need for a retail store/impact on High Street 

Impact on local retail businesses in Hornsey High Street – proposed 

development will not encourage increased footfall in the area 

Retail impact of a new Sainsbury’s store on Muswell Hill and Crouch End 

stores, how robust has the retail impact assessment been 

Reduction in convenience shopping for Crouch End, Muswell Hill and 

Hornsey High Street shown in the retail impact statement – means a large 

number of people not visiting Crouch End and impact on smaller shops in 

these centres.  A smaller store would create attract increased footfall to the 

High Street  - should be on an appropriate scale for Hornsey 

Proposed development will drain custom from the local shops – will sell 

convenience goods e.g electrical, house plants/flowers which will take 

business away.  Products for sale should be restricted so as not to encroach 

on the local businesses 

How far will the impact of the store stretch 

Need for Council to obtain some independent analysis of the long term 

impact on Crouch End and Muswell Hill 

Want an independent retailer on the unit fronting the high street at low rent 

Store is too big 

Asked for increased footfall to be quantified 

There is a greater need for affordable housing than for a food store 

Drainage 

Are there going to be revised drawings to take account of the Environment 

Agency objections?  

Moving the culvert has not been adequately addressed 

Design 

Massing of residential over the Sainsbury’s store going up to 8 storeys and 

relationship of 7 storey building at the rear with Cross Lane – hidden gem 

would be destroyed by this development 

Public space 

Lack of play spaces – need indoor and outdoor facilities for 5-13 year olds in 

particular 

Lack of community infrastructure 

Page 123



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

No nurseries/childcare provision, community centres, GP surgery/pharmacy 

etc included in the scheme 

Local amenities/resources need to be provided for future residents e.g 

school places (St Mary’s), dentists.  Has any consultation been undertaken 

with local schools? 

Not enough play space 

S106 

How many jobs will be provided for local people? 

Contributions should be spent locally 

Has 106 been spend locally in the past? 

Impact on surroundings and conservation area 

Loss of facade of Hornsey Baths from the High Street – moving of only 

middle part of the facade is insufficient.  Should take inspiration from what 

has been achieved in Europe e.g Amsterdam and should be relooked at; 

bigger concession there would be an astute move from the developers in 

terms of gaining support from the local community.  Suggested that facade 

could be moved 5 metres to allow retention and  still provide an entrance to 

the site from Hornsey High Street 

Impact on distinctive Conservation Area of Hornsey High Street – 

development will overshadow the three storey development on Hornsey High 

Street, set back is currently a token gesture.   

More than one way to keep the facade of the baths – would prefer to see this 

retained rather than new shop unit in the high street and this could be used 

as part of the entrance 

Heritage statement concentrates purely on the Hornsey Baths and whether it 

is worthy of retention and does not assess the effect of the development on 

the grain and character and scale of the conservation area as a whole and 

the Victorian/Georgian pattern.  Scheme does not preserve or enhance the 

Conservation Area.  Overall assessment in the statement is poor 

Council should not be agreeing to the moving of the facade of the Baths – 

should be incorporated into the development 

Impact on the view from the High Street to Alexandra Palace has not been 

properly considered 

Impact on the size of entrance on the conservation area 

Impact on adjoining occupiers 

Loss of light to properties in Moselle Place 

Others 

Page 124



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

Two thirds of site owned by the Council – should use their leverage in the 

name of the local residents  

The Council has a conflict of interest as it owns the site and has an obligation 

to get ‘best value’ for it and it is the local planning authority 

History of the site needs to be carefully set out in the report to Committee 

and taken into account before a decision is made 

Are there any proposals for a click and collect service to be provided in the 

store 

What is the deadline for comments on the scheme? 

When will the application be going to Committee and will there be time for 

representations? 

When does the 21 day period close?  

Concerns about construction impact given impact of New River Village 

construction. 

Concerns about quality of finish of New River Village Development itself and 

public realm and drainage issues and these are the same developers 

Times of construction works and potential for a helpline number. Concern 

that construction time has been compressed and will therefore require longer 

working hours 

Wants a rethink of the scheme 

Will this development provide more than the minimum with regard to 

sustainability 

Will there be smaller scale recycling facilities in the car park 

Do St James have a social housing partner yet, do Haringey have a say in 

that. Will Circle 33 be discounted given issues previously 

What is the price of the underground car park 

What measures are there to increase biodiversity 

This development is an opportunity for this run down area 

 

27 November 

 

Access to parking for residents of the new building? Coming through New river 

village- access for affordable housing? Have the residents of Myddleton Road been 

consulted- enter off Myles Road via Campsbourne Road.  

Have the residents of Campsbourne been told there will be a greater level of traffic 

in Campsbourne- yes 

How is car parking going to be allocated- is there a fee charged? Yes will be sold 

for private development separate to the flats 

Page 125



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

Affordable housing parking be handed over to HA 

? need for foodstore especially one so large. Not the largest store. Need is derived 

from policy through the years. Planning decisions led to this. Serve main food 

shopping need and mainly convenience. Not as big as Green Lanes store. Survey 

finds main food shopping going out of the area. 

How far is it going out of the area? – fringes and further beyond 

Isn’t there more of a need for affordable housing than a new superstore.- mixed use 

development doesn’t mean that  

Traffic on Hillfield Avenue- concerns on entrance to Sainsburys opposite Hillfield 

Avenue- how the traffic is directed. When Middle Lane was closed recently there 

was a big issue. Needs to be considered. Divider on High Street- needs to be made 

only 1 way on Hillfield Avenue. 

New 3 lane junction onto the High Street- what is happening on the High Street 

around the junction. Loss of pay and display parking. Details being drawn up. 

Site not very pedestrian friendly- how get to high street- needs signposting. Not 

enough play space particularly Myddelton House. 

Impact on Doctors Surgery and School Places. Want 106 spent locally. 

Has 106 development money been spent in the past in local areas rather than in the 

rest of the borough. 

Why are there three lanes at the entrance- 1 in and 2 out.  

Council has a conflict of interest in this development- best value and they are also 

the deciding planning authority. 

New River Avenue was intended route into Supermarket in 2000 planning 

application but now going through Baths Building and destroys the view to 

Alexandra Palace. 

 

PTAL of 3 doesn’t justify density proposed. Not necessarily appropriate for tall 

buildings as in intensification area. 

Worry about standard of living accommodation given quality at New River Village.  

See this proposal as an opportunity as area is run down. Wants info on D1 element 

as interested 

Overshadowing and not consulted onto high street. Length of time for construction.  

Page 126



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

Worried that construction time now compressed from 5- 3 years and times of 

construction- always going to be 3 years. Times will be regulated.  

Had to increase height of development across site to reduce tower- balance.  

Not feel has acceptable impact on conservation area due to loss of baths building. 

Suggest independent businesses at low rent for retail unit on high street. 

  

Page 127



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

APPENDIX 3 - LBH Conservation and Design Comments 

  

Page 128



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

CONSERVATION COMMENTS
 

Application Ref: HGY/2013/2019

Location: Hornsey Reuse and Recycling Centre High Street N8 7QB

Proposal:

Demolition of existing structures and buildings and redevelopment of the site to

provide a mixed use development comprising approximately 3,25Osqm (GIA)

foodstore (Al use) and 114 space surface level car parking for the foodstore; 438

residential units including affordable housing and ancillary residential gym,

approximately 356sqm (GIA) unit on Hornsey High Street (flexible Al, A2

(including a temporary marketing suite), or Dl use); two live/work units fronting

onto Cross Lane; together with private amenity space and new public realm,

including publicly accessible routes through the site; an energy centre; 178 car

parking spaces for the residential use (within a basement and undercroft); cycle

parking; refuse storage; recycling centre in the foodstore car park; access; and

other infrastructure work.

Officer: Jeffrey Holt

BACKGROUND: This is a large site located to the north of Hornsey High Street (A504), Haringey. The

site is within the Haringey Heartlands Development Framework. The southern part of the site is

within the ‘Hornsey High Street’ Conservation Area.

The London Plan identifies ‘Haringey Heartlands / Wood Green’ as an ‘Area for Intensification’. As a

result, the Council adopted the Haringey Heartlands Development Framework in April 2005. This site

is located within the Western Utilities section of The framework. The key points of the Development

Framework that relate to this section are:

Creation of sustainable neighbourhood with range and mix of housing, employment and

community facilities.

Provision of a single main vehicular and service access via Waterworks site.

Protection of residential areas to North from through traffic.

Development of medium sized food store on High Street on Hornsey Depot Site.

Creation of a new linear park linking the High Street to Alexandra Park and improvements to

New River Walk/Penstock Path and Moselle Brook.

Development of physical and economic links between the east and west of Haringey.

Build on and extend the existing movement network in the area including pedestrian and

cycle routes.

Improved community facilities such as provision for primary healthcare and improved school

provision.

Page 129



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

In relation to Hornsey High Street, the document further states that:

Development should enhance local heritage and the appearance and setting of Historic

Buildings and the Conservation Area.

An extended retail and leisure offer will be encouraged to support the town centre function

of Hornsey High Street.

Physical and environmental improvements will be sought in the Cross Lane Area.

Environmental improvements and improved linkages developed between the Campsbourne

Housing Estate and the High Street.

Provision of improved pedestrian and cycle linkages.

Improvements to image and environment of Hornsey Station.

Regeneration of poor quality, redundant and decayed buildings.

Enhancement of the High Street frontage.

This application is in response to the above and has been submitted following rigorous consultation

with the Council as well as members of public and other external organisations.

Assessment of Significance (by the Council’s Conservation Officer): The site is located to the north

of Hornsey High Street Conservation Area and Hillfield Conservation Area. The High Street section of

the site is included within the conservation area and is occupied by a single storey 1930s public bath

building, proposed to be demolished.

Designated Heritage Assets:

The Hornsey High Street Conservation Area is a narrow ribbon encompassing the buildings fronting

both sides of the High Street on the site of the historic Hornsey Village. The area retains a number of

interesting features, most importantly the site and tower of the medieval Parish Church of St Mary’s

(listed at grade II*) within its churchyard. At its eastern end the small former village green on the

north side of the street, surrounded by impressive 18
th
and 19

th
Century listed buildings and mature

trees, adds to the rural atmosphere that harks back to the historic village character that is further

enhanced by the Rectory Gardens at the west end.

Hornsey High Street has an almost continuous built up frontage on both sides of groups of three

storey properties that restrict views to the north or south. The notable exception is the view of

Alexandra Palace over the top of the single storey former Public Baths building that is readily

available from the south side of the Hornsey High Street near the junction with Hillside Avenue.

Views to the east and west along Hornsey High Street are focussed on the open spaces at each end,

the former village green on the high ground to the east and Rectory Gardens and Priory Park to the

west of the conservation area. The Grade II* listed medieval tower of St Mary’s Parish Church is a

local landmark that, when open to the public, offers views in all directions from the top.

To the south, the site faces directly on to the Hillfield Conservation Area, made up of Hillfield Avenue

and its subsidiary Harold Road. This is a late Victorian and Edwardian development located on a hill

immediately south of the central part of Hornsey village. The area was developed over a period of

less than 10 years between 1894 and 1904 as a single phase of building, of which 138 of the houses

in Hillfield Avenue and several in Harold Road were designed by the local architect and surveyor,

Page 130



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

John Farrer. This has resulted in the area having a considerable consistency of character and

appearance which is an integral part of the significance of the area.

Hillfield Avenue curves and turns as it rises to reduce the gradient and in so doing creates a

picturesque streetscape, revealing the buildings at the top and important vistas out of the

conservation area. There are long views to the north along Hillfield Avenue towards Hornsey High

Street. At the junction of Hillfield Avenue and High Street, views towards Alexandra Palace open up

over the single storey public bath buildings.

Non designated heritage assets:

Hornsey Public Bath and washhouses (1930s) occupy a wide plot on the High Street and have a long

single storey brick frontage with Portland Stone dressings. There are two further blocks placed

immediately behind the front block, which are staggered in height giving the building a stepped

appearance. This is also reflected in the principal elevation, the parapet of which rises above the

central three bays and in the centres of the flanking sections. These bays also advance slightly, the

central bay projecting even further; the latter bay contains the arched doorway which is crowned

with a stone plaque bearing the arms of the Borough of Hornsey. Many internal features are now

lost.

A listing request in 2007 led English Heritage to examine the building to list it. The findings however

showed that the Hornsey Public Baths and Washhouses did not have enough architectural interest in

a national context. However, English Heritage noted that the buildings were ‘of clear local interest in

that they displayed the former Borough’s arms which contributes to the community identity of

Hornsey as a former parch and municipal borough.’ It was also noted that the buildings being

adjacent to the locally listed parish rooms of the late C19 and near the listed tower of the former

parish church formed an attractive municipal group. The assessment went on to stated that ‘the

historic function of the building survives in local social memory and the frontage is an attractive

example of 1930s design which make a positive contribution to the character of the conservation

area.

Thus it can be concluded that the building is of local interest and make a positive contribution to the

conservation area.

To the west of the High Street, No 31 is a locally listed building within the Hornsey High Street

Conservation Area. Now known as Turkish Mosque, this building is a prominent red brick three

storey property. The hall dates from 1888 and was designed by the architect John Ferrer. A

memorial stone at ground floor level reveals the former status of the hall: “Hornsey National Hall

and Constitutional Club”. The building has large timber and replacement steel windows set within

decorated hood moulds and a prominent red painted entrance set within a square bay. The recessed

section of the frontage is set back behind the original white painted cast iron railings. This building

along with the Baths on the High Street frontage form an attractive group within the area.

COMMENTS:

Assessment of Heritage Significance and impact of new development (by the Applicant): It is felt

that the applicant’s assessment of the heritage significance of the various assets as contained within

Page 131



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

the Heritage Statement and the Archaeology and Cultural Heritage Chapter of the ES could have

been more comprehensive.

The overall criterion for assessing significance of the heritage assets and the subsequent analysis of

the impact of the development states that the development would only have a minor negative and

temporary impact on the designated and non designated assets. For example, paragraph 7.5.12 of

the Cultural Heritage Chapter in the ES states that the change in the setting of the Horney High

Street would be temporary and would have minor negative significance. It is considered, however,

that the scale of the proposed development it would have a significant permanent affect on the

setting of the conservation area. Similarly, the demolition of the baths would also lead to the total

loss of a non designated heritage asset, which at present contributes positively to the conservation

area.

Principle of demolition: The development forms part of a wider regeneration of the site providing

several new homes to the borough and a retail unit to facilitate the High Street activities. Whilst

regrettable, given their present condition, the retention and reuse of the bath buildings would be

difficult and impractical. Thus their demolition, necessitated by the development would be

acceptable in this instance. A minimum of Level 3 recording as per English Heritage’s guidance to

‘Understanding Historic Buildings: A guide to good recording practice’ should be submitted prior to

works on site and should be conditioned accordingly.

Retention of the bay containing the arched doorway and crest: The principle of this retention is

welcomed. Whilst in conservation terms it is not ideal to relocate a salvaged architectural feature, it

successfully disguises what could be an unattractive elevation of the substation. It is, therefore,

acceptable only in this instance.

New Development: The various aspects of the proposed development are as discussed below:

Layout: The development would involve creation of a new access road off the High Street. This

would act as the main route for delivery vehicles for the retail use as well as the residential users. To

facilitate the permeability of the site, the scheme proposes further residential vehicular access from

Myddleton Road, Cross Lane and Miles Road/Mosselle Close. This creates four separate quadrants

through the site.

The larger blocks, Moselle quadrangle and Hornsey Gardens, are placed at the northwest and

southeast of the quadrant with the smaller blocks placed at northeast and southwest. A large car

park would be created at street level opposite the Horney Gardens West elevation. The landscaped

areas would be contained within the larger blocks as amenity spaces for the residential users. A

small retail unit with flats above would also be built at the southern end of the site, along the High

Street frontage.

From a conservation point of view, it is felt that the development along the High Street and to its

rear, including the car park, would have a considerable impact on the designated and non

designated heritage assets. Along High Street, the creation of the new access is considered to be

wider than preferable and would result in a visual break in an otherwise tightly developed

continuous street frontage. Views of the less attractive rear elevations of buildings to the west of the

High Street would also be opened from the back of the car park, into the conservation area. In

Page 132



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

addition, the wide access would facilitate views from the High Street into the open frontage of the

supermarket and the large car park opposite to it. These views would be commercial and urban in

character, in contrast with the more suburban and rural appearance of the conservation area

accentuated, by the Village Green to the east and Rectory Park to the west. This would be

considered detrimental to the overall character and streetscene of the conservation area.

However, it is argued, that given the potential of this site, any reasonable form of development

would have an impact on the suburban character of the conservation area. Additionally, the opening

would improve the setting of the locally listed mosque which would contribute to the appearance of

the conservation area. It is, therefore, acceptable in this instance.

At present, there are views of Alexandra Palace from the High Street and Hillfield Avenue over and

above the existing public bath. This also creates a vista point at the intersection of these two streets.

As noted previously, this forms a very important part of the character of the conservation area. In

addition, the demolition of the baths and the new block along the High Street would also preclude

part of the long distance views of Alexandra Palace from both Hornsey High Street and Hillfield

Avenue.

It is felt, however, that the availability of this view was purely accidental, from over and above the

public bath buildings that are single storey in height. It is presumed, that the original street frontage

would have had similar three storey buildings as is characteristic of the High Street and this view

would not have been an original view within the conservation area. Notwithstanding this, it is

regrettable that the proposed development would necessitate the loss of this view. However, the

layout of the blocks is such that the west elevation of Hornsey Gardens and Hillfield Avenue have a

staggered visual link, which would still permit some views of the Palace from between the gap on

High Street. Thus, this important aspect of the conservation area would be partly preserved.

Scale and massing: The Haringey Heartland Development Framework established this area for

potential high density residential development. The supermarket’s requirement of a large car park

has necessitated the density of the development to be concentrated to the sides of the quadrant in

high residential blocks. Whilst the height of the block referred to as Hornsey Gardens is staggered to

distribute its overall bulk and massing towards New River Avenue, the height at eight storeys is still

considered significant and will be visible from long distance views from within the conservation

areas (see verified view location 2). Views form the High Street and Hillfield Avenue would be also

dominated by the high rise blocks. As such the scale of the blocks would not relate to the domestic

scale of the High Street and the surrounding conservation areas. However, given the high density

identified for this site, any reasonable form of development would have had a similar impact and a

balanced judgment ought to be made regarding the relative impact of the proposed development.

The proposed three storey block along High Street appears taller than the buildings to its east.

Whilst not ideal, the building would act as the ‘bookend’ to the street frontage, the listed Great

Northern Railway Tavern being on the eastern end of the same parade.

Design: The overall design appears to what is being popularly referred to as ‘New London

Vernacular’ consisting of plain rectangular façades broken only by use of materials and fenestration.

Given the established local details of materials within the conservation areas, i.e bricks, tiles and

Page 133



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

rendering, the proposed development would not be considered out of character and would be

acceptable.

Along the Hornsey Gardens elevation, the long horizontal facade has been broken by the use of the

materials creating a rhythm similar to Hillfield Avenue, albeit much higher in scale. This continuation

of the rhythm somewhat mitigates the impact of the development and ties the high density

contemporary development with the traditional terraces along Hillfield Avenue. This aspect of the

proposal has some merit that could potentially make a contribution to the conservation area.

The proposed three storey block on High Street is considered to be a contemporary take on the

more vernacular style of architecture, following the shop frontage of the existing parade. As such,

there are no objections to the same.

Landscape: Most of the landscaped areas would be within the built up blocks of the site and would

not be visible from the High Street. As such the landscaped setting of the conservation area would

not be directly enhanced. However, the landscaping of the car park with trees and quality paving

materials would mitigate much of the impact of the harsh nature of the proposed development. The

landscaping to the access road would also help to mitigate the development’s impact on the locally

listed Mosque and the wider conservation area.

CONCLUSION:

Paragraph 133 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that ‘Where proposed development

will lead to substantial harm to total loss of significance of a designated heritage asset, local planning

authorities should refuse consent, unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm or loss is

necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh that harm or loss.’

Paragraph 135 of the same also states that ‘The effect of an application on the significance of a non

designation heritage asset should be taken into account in determining the application. In weighing

applications that affect directly or indirectly non designated heritage asses, a balance judgement will

be required having regard to the scale of any harm or loss of the significance of the heritage asset’.

It is felt that the Applicant’s assessment of the significance of the heritage asset and the impact on

the development could have been more thorough. Notwithstanding this, the contribution of the

Hornsey Public Baths is limited by the redundancy of the buildings and the lost interiors. Thus, given

the much wider regeneration of the site, the loss of significance caused due to their total demolition

would not outweigh the public benefits of the proposed development. It is, therefore, acceptable in

this instance.

The new development, especially Hornsey Gardens and the High Street block would have an impact

on the setting of the conservation area and other designated and non designated heritage assets.

The large car park and the wide access road, creating views of the 8 storey block and the retail unit

are not in character with the conservation area. The overall scale of the development would be

dominant and affect the setting of the conservation area. However, the ‘new vernacular’ design, the

quality of materials, the rhythm of the façades and the landscaping would mitigate this impact and

add a distinctive contemporary dimension to the character and appearance of the conservation

area.

Page 134



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

Overall, on balance the greater merits of the development from a regeneration point of view,

providing significant housing numbers, permeable circulation network and a contemporary

architectural language outweigh the loss of significance due to the demolition of the Baths and the

impact on the setting of the conservation area and other designated and non designated assets

CONDITIONS:

No demolition works should be undertaken unless an a minimum of Level 3 recording of the Hornsey

Public Bath buildings as per English Heritage’s guidance to ‘Understanding Historic Buildings: A guide

to good recording practice’ should be submitted and agreed to with the Council and English

Heritage.

Details of all materials including fenestration, bricks, mortar joints and type should be submitted to

the Council for further approval.

Nairita Chakraborty

Conservation Officer

10
th
January 2014

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 135



Page 136

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Hornsey Reuse and Recycling Centre, High Street, London, N8 7QB

